o
HALTON

Urban Renewal Policy and Performance
BOROUGH COUNCIL

Board

Wednesday, 20 June 2007 6.30 p.m.
Civic Suite, Town Hall, Runcorn

Chief Executive

BOARD MEMBERSHIP

Councillor Ron Hignett (Chairman)

Councillor Keith Morley (Vice-
Chairman)
Councillor Peter Blackmore

Councillor John Bradshaw
Councillor Ellen Cargill
Councillor Dave Leadbetter
Councillor Peter Murray
Councillor Paul Nolan
Councillor Christopher Rowe
Councillor Tim Sly
Councillor Dave Thompson

Labour
Labour

Liberal Democrat
Conservative
Labour

Labour
Conservative
Labour

Liberal Democrat
Liberal Democrat
Labour

Please contact Caroline Halpin on 0151 471 7394 or e-mail
caroline.halpin@halton.gov.uk for further information.
The next meeting of the Board is on Wednesday, 19 September 2007



ITEMS TO BE DEALT WITH
IN THE PRESENCE OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

Part |
Item No.
1. MINUTES
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (INCLUDING PARTY WHIP

DECLARATIONS)

Members are reminded of their responsibility to declare any
personal or personal and prejudicial interest which they have in
any item of business on the agenda, no later than when that
item is reached and (subject to certain exceptions in the Code of
Conduct for Members) to leave the meeting prior to discussion
and voting on the item.

PUBLIC QUESTION TIME
EXECUTIVE BOARD MINUTES
DEVELOPMENT OF POLICY ISSUES

(A) POST OFFICE CLOSURE - HALTON LEA

(B) ANNUAL REPORT

(C) WIDNES WATERFRONT 3D ANIMATION

(D) BIRCHFIELD ROAD / HALTON VILLAGE
CONSULTATION REVIEW

(E) URBAN RENEWAL STRATEGIC REVIEW & ACTION
PLAN 2007-10

(F) HALTON PUBLIC TRANSPORT ADVISORY PANEL AND
TRANSPORT / ACCESSIBILITY BEST VALUE
IMPROVEMENT PLAN UPDATE

6. PERFORMANCE MONITORING

(A) QUARTERLY MONITORING REPORTS

Page No.

16 - 25
26 - 30
31-33
34 -43

44 - 81

82 - 86

| 87 - 207

In accordance with the Health and Safety at Work Act the Council is
required to notify those attending meetings of the fire evacuation
procedures. A copy has previously been circulated to Members and
instructions are located in all rooms within the Civic block.



Page 1 Agenda ltem 3

REPORT TO: Urban Renewal Policy and Performance Board

DATE:

20 June 2007

REPORTING OFFICER: Strategic Director, Corporate and Policy

SUBJECT: Public Question Time

WARD(s): Borough-wide

1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 To consider any questions submitted by the Public in accordance with
Standing Order 33(5).

1.2  Details of any questions received will be circulated at the meeting.

2.0 RECOMMENDED: That any questions received be dealt with.

3.0 SUPPORTING INFORMATION

3.1 Standing Order 34(11) states that Public Questions shall be dealt with

as follows: -

(i) A total of 30 minutes will be allocated for members of the public
who are residents of the Borough, to ask questions at meetings of
the Policy and Performance Boards.

(i)  Members of the public can ask questions on any matter relating to
the agenda.

(iii) Members of the public can ask questions. Written notice of
questions must be submitted by 4.00 pm on the day prior to the
meeting. At any meeting no person/organisation may submit more
than one question.

(iv) One supplementary question (relating to the original question) may
be asked by the questioner, which may or may not be answered at
the meeting.

(v) The Chair or proper officer may reject a question if it:-

e Is not about a matter for which the local authority has a
responsibility or which affects the Borough;

e |s defamatory, frivolous, offensive, abusive or racist;

e |s substantially the same as a question which has been put at
a meeting of the Council in the past six months; or

e Requires the disclosure of confidential or exempt information.



4.0

5.0

6.0

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

Page 2

In the interests of natural justice, public questions cannot relate to
a planning or licensing application or to any matter, which is not
dealt with in the public part of a meeting.

The Chairperson will ask for people to indicate that they wish to
ask a question.

PLEASE NOTE that the maximum amount of time each
questioner will be allowed is 3 minutes.

If you do not receive a response at the meeting, a Council Officer
will ask for your name and address and make sure that you
receive a written response.

Please bare in mind that public question time lasts for a maximum
of 30 minutes. To help in making the most of this opportunity to
speak:-

Please keep questions as concise as possible.

Please do not repeat or make statements on earlier questions as
this reduces the time available for other issues to be raised.

Please note that public question time is not intended for debate —
issues raised will be responded to either at the meeting or in
writing at a later date.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS

None.

OTHER IMPLICATIONS

None.

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF THE
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972

There are no background papers under the meaning of the Act.



Page 3 Agenda ltem 4

REPORT TO: Urban Renewal Policy and Performance Board

DATE:

20 June 2007

REPORTING OFFICER: Chief Executive

SUBJECT: Executive Board Minutes

WARD(s): Boroughwide

1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 The Minutes relating to the Urban Renewal Portfolio which have been
considered by the Executive Board, Executive Board Sub and
Executive (Transmodal Implementation) Sub Board are attached at
Appendix 1 for information.

1.2  The Minutes are submitted to inform the Policy and Performance Board
of decisions taken in their area.

2.0 RECOMMENDATION: That the Minutes be noted.

3.0 POLICY IMPLICATIONS

3.1 None.

4.0 OTHER IMPLICATIONS

4.1  None.

5.0 RISK ANALYSIS

5.1  None.

6.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES

6.1  None.

7.0 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF THE
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972

7.1 There are no background papers under the meaning of the Act.



Page 4

APPENDIX 1

Extract of Executive Board, Executive Board Sub Committee and
Executive (Transmodal Implementation) Sub Board Minutes
Relevant to the Urban Renewal Policy and Performance Board

EXECUTIVE BOARD MEETING HELD ON 25 January 2007

78.MERSEYSIDE WASTE DEVELOPMENT PLAN DOCUMENT:

ISSUES AND OPTIONS REPORT FOR PUBLIC
CONSULTATION

The Board considered a report of the Strategic Director —
Environment covering the Merseyside Environmental Advisory
Service’s report, which had been produced in accordance with
the agreed governance arrangements for the preparation of the
Joint Merseyside Waste Development Plan Document (DPD).
This had been done in collaboration with officers from other
Districts that were part of the Joint Waste DPD. The core
contents and recommendations of the report were the same for
all the local authorities involved in the preparation of the Joint
Waste DPD to ensure that each district was following exactly the
same statutory planning process.

It was noted that the report was seeking approval for the
Issues and Options report for public consultation purposes as the
first stage in the statutory planning process. A copy of this
document, which asked specific consultation questions to
structure the consultation process and guide the development of
more detailed and specific policies at preferred options and
submissions stages, had been circulated for Members’
consideration.

It was noted that the consultation period would last for six
weeks until 6™ April 2007 after which a “results of consultation
report” would be prepared along with the policy response to the
issues raised. This would be accompanied by the required
sustainability appraisal commentary.

RESOLVED: That

(1) the issues and options report be approved for public
consultation commencing 23™ February 2007;

(2) a consultation response to the issues and options report be



Page 5

prepared by 6" April 2007; and

(3) further reports on progress of the Waste DPD project,
including the results of the consultation on issues and
options, preferred options report and financial matters, be
received later in 2007.

79 VICTORIA SQUARE: DEVELOPING THE NIGHT-TIME
"ECONOMY
The Board considered a report of the Chief Executive and
the Strategic Director — Environment outlining the approach to be
taken in developing a Management Plan for Victoria Square.

It was noted that much progress had been made in
regenerating Widnes Town Centre over recent years and, of
particular note, was the progress made in and around Victoria
Square. To ensure the benefits were maximised and the current
momentum was maintained, it was considered appropriate to
develop a Victoria Square Management Plan.

Much discussion had already taken place with the Police
in this regard and the Board was advised that the Police saw that
the development of such a plan was a good way forward for the
partners and authorities to meet their duties to reduce crime and
disorder within the areas they served (Section 17 Crime and
Disorder Act 1998). To this end, a preliminary workshop session
had taken place with representatives from all appropriate Council
departments, and partners, to look at the issues and
opportunities that would need to be considered in the
Management Plan.

An integral part of the management plan related to the
issues of “al-fresco” drinking and dining and, following
discussions with the Police, it was proposed to permit al-fresco
drinking/dining on designated parts of Victoria Square adjacent to
certain buildings.

It was noted that the development of a Management Plan
for Victoria Square at this time would be a very complex task. In
addition, it was confirmed that this was a pilot and, if successful,
the intention was to develop it across the Borough.

RESOLVED: That

(1) the development of a Management Plan including al-fresco
drinking and dining on Victoria Square be approved, subject to



Page 6

resolving any legal, health and safety, and risk management
issues; and

(2) further reports be provided on the progress of the Victoria
Square Pilot with a view to developing the night-time
economy across the Borough.

EXECUTIVE BOARD MEETING HELD ON 22"° FEBRUARY 2007

82. LOCAL TRANSPORT EXPENDITURE SETTLEMENT 2007/08
AND LOCAL TRANSPORT PLAN IMPLEMENTATION
PROGRAMME 2007/08

The Board considered a report of the Strategic Director —
Environment advising of the announcement made by the Secretary
of State for Transport on 18" December 2006, giving details of the
2007/8 Local Transport Capital Expenditure Settlement and the
classifications awarded to the Council’s second Local Transport Plan
2006/07-2010/11 (LTP2) and the first Local Transport Plan 2001/02-
2005/06 (LTP1) Delivery Report.

It was noted that, due to the high performance achieved in
both these reports, the settlement had included an additional
£392,000. In addition, the Board was advised that the DfT
performance assessments had placed Halton in the top quartile of
the 82 local transport authorities in England

Appendix A to the report provided details of the proposed
LTP2 capital expenditure programme for 2007/08. The total
settlement for 2007/08 was £4.15 million; this covered all items of
transport capital expenditure apart from major schemes such as the
Mersey Gateway and major maintenance on the Silver Jubilee
Bridge.

It was noted that an additional 25% of performance funding
had been allocated to the integrated transport block; 12.5% had
been achieved by gaining “Excellent” for the LTP2 grading and
12.5% for gaining “Excellent” for the LTP1 Delivery Report. The
Board congratulated officers on their outstanding achievement in this
area.

RESOLVED: That

(1) the 2007/08 Local Transport Capital Expenditure Settlement,
and the classifications awarded to the Council’'s second Local



Page 7

Transport Plan, be welcomed; and

(2) the implementation programme for 2007/08 at Appendix A be
recommended to Council for inclusion in the Council’s Capital
programme.

(NB Councillors McDermott and Polhill declared a personal interest

in the following item of business due to being Board Members of

Widnes Regeneration Ltd (WRL).)

83. HALTON BOROUGH COUNCIL (WIDNES WATERFRONT
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ZONE) COMPULSORY PURCHASE
ORDER 2006

The Board considered a report of the Strategic Director —
Environment and the Strategic Director — Corporate and Policy
seeking approval to use the Council’'s statutory powers of
compulsory purchase to assist with the comprehensive land
assembly needed to achieve the successful development of the
Widnes Waterfront Economic Development Zone (EDZ).

It was noted that the EDZ comprised 80 hectares of low quality
former industrial land located on the banks of the River Mersey to
the south of Widnes Town Centre, which had been designated as a
regeneration site of high priority. Funding to bring this land back into
full economic use was available until 31 March 2009 using
European Funding under Priority 3 of the North West England
Objective 2 Programme, Northwest Development Agency Funds and
Halton Borough Council monies. The redevelopment proposals were
described in the report and outline plans were contained in Appendix
D.

Detailed land referencing had taken place to identify the
interests to be acquired for the development, and this schedule
would form part of a proposed Compulsory Purchase Order (CPO).
Despite lengthy discussions, it was unlikely that agreement would be
reached with all interested parties within a reasonable timescale;
therefore the Acquiring Authority had legitimate, deep-seated
concerns that it would be unable to comply with the timetable set for
the delivery of the scheme unless it pursued a CPO to assemble the
land required.

It was considered that there was a compelling case for
making the Order in the public interest and this was outlined for
Members’ information; however, negotiations would continue with a
view to acquiring the properties voluntarily even after the CPO had
been made.



Page 8

The Board was advised that there were two small amendments
to the boundaries shown on the plan:

(a) there was an addition of site 17(b) which had been disclosed
by the ongoing site referencing; and

(b) the boundary around Tan House Garage on Tan House Lane
needed to be revised to reflect the actual ownership.

An amended schedule was tabled outlining these changes.

In addition, it was noted that, following the publishing of the
agenda, further comments had been received from Mr Routledge of
White Moss Landfill, and Mr Adam Gilson, Company Secretary of
British Gypsum-Isover Ltd. These were read out for the Board’s
consideration. Officers advised that discussions had been ongoing
with both parties for some time and it was hoped that a mutually
acceptable solution could be found in order that those properties
could be withdrawn from the CPO; this could be done at any time,
including after the start of the Public Inquiry.

Reason for Decision

_ The draft Statement of Reasons (Appendix F) outlined the case
and detailed the reasons for making the CPO. In summary, this was
to facilitate the comprehensive redevelopment of the area.

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected

The Council and/or its joint venture partner had contacted and
sought to commence negotiations with all the known freeholders and
leaseholders to purchase land covered in the Order by agreement.
These discussions were ongoing but it was unlikely that agreement
would be reached with all parties within a reasonable timescale
unless a CPO, to assemble the land required, was made.

Implementation Date

It was anticipated that the CPO would be made within 3
months of the Executive Board decision.

RESOLVED: That with the inclusion of the amendments tabled
at the meeting

(1) the Council makes a Compulsory Purchase Order under
Section 226(1)(a) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
for the acquisition of all interests in the land (the Order Land)



(4)

()

(6)

Page 9

shown edged red on the plan attached to the report, Appendix
E, for the purposes of facilitating its development,
redevelopment or improvement to secure a comprehensive
and integrated scheme thereby achieving the promotion and
improvement of the economic, social and environmental well-
being of the area;

the Council makes a Compulsory Purchase Order under
section 13 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous
Provisions) Act 1976 to acquire new rights over the land
shown edged blue on the plan attached to the report,
Appendix E, in order to secure the comprehensive
redevelopment of this run down zone;

authority be given to the Strategic Director - Environment and

the Strategic Director - Corporate and Policy, in consultation
with the Portfolio Holder for Planning, Transportation,
Regeneration and Renewal, the Portfolio Holder for Corporate
Services, and the Council Solicitor, to take all necessary
steps to secure the making and confirmation of the
Compulsory Purchase Order and for any other actions
necessary to give effect to the land acquisition and the
implementation whether on a voluntary basis or otherwise;

the Strategic Director - Environment, and the Strategic Director

- Corporate and Policy, in consultation with the Council
Solicitor, be authorised to enter into an Indemnity Agreement
with Widnes Regeneration Limited (WRL) which will indemnify
the Council in respect of all external expenditure concerned
with the making and implementation of the Compulsory
Purchase Order (CPO) and thereafter provide for WRL to
develop those sites to implement the Widnes Waterfront
Economic Zone in accordance with the principles of the
Masterplan;

the CPO not be entered into until the Indemnity Agreement has
been completed to the satisfaction of the Council Solicitor, the
Strategic Director - Environment and the Strategic Director -
Corporate and Policy;

authority be given to the Strategic Director - Environment and

the Strategic Director - Corporate and Policy, in consultation
with the Portfolio Holder for Planning, Transportation,
Regeneration and Renewal and the Portfolio Holder for
Corporate Services, to implement the Widnes Waterfront
Relocation Strategy (Appendix A); and



Page 10

(7) authority be given to the Strategic Director - Environment and
the Strategic Director - Corporate and Policy, prior to making
the Compulsory Purchase Order (CPO), to make such
changes as might be necessary to the Order in the light of
varying circumstances and information relating to
properties/businesses which might be affected by the CPO
including if necessary the authority to expand the Schedule 2
rights.

EXECUTIVE BOARD MEETING HELD ON 15™ MARCH 2007

92. HOUSING ALLOCATIONS POLICY

The Board considered a report of the Strategic Director, Health
and Community which sought approval to change the Council’s
Allocations Policy with regard to offers to homeless households and
undertaking first stage reviews of homelessness decisions.

It was noted that the changes outlined in the report were
subject to consultation and a further report would be presented to
the Board at the end of the consultation process.

RESOLVED: That

(1) the changes as set out in the report for consultation
purposes be approved; and

(2) a further report be presented to the Board on completion of
the consultation exercise.

93. HOUSING CAPITAL PROGRAMME (KEY DECISION)

The Board considered a report of the Strategic Director, Health
and Community which outlined the forecast outturn for the 2006/07
housing capital programme.

It was noted that the Appendix to the report compared the
approved 2006/07 programme with the forecast outturn position, and
also showed the proposed programme for 2007/08.

It was noted that the Council had been successful in receiving
£25,000 from a bid to the Regional Housing Board.

Reason for the Decision

The proposed programme would enable the Council to make



Page 11

continued progress in addressing the priorities set out in its Housing
Homelessness, Private Sector Renewal and Supporting People
strategies.

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected

The strategies referred to in paragraph 10.1 of the report had
previously examined a range of options for meeting housing needs
in the Borough, and the proposed programme of work has been
based on the priorities that had already been identified.

Implementation Date

April 2007.
RESOLVED: That
(1) the position regarding the 2006/07 programme be noted; and

(2) the proposed programme for 2007/08, as set out in Appendix
A to the report, be recommended to Council for approval.

EXECUTIVE BOARD MEETING HELD ON 29™ MARCH 2007

103. PRIVATE SECTOR HOUSING RENEWAL STRATEGY

The Board considered a report of the Strategic Director —
Health and Community which sought approval to the proposed
changes to the Private Sector Housing Renewal Strategy, both
to reflect recent legislative change and to amend the different
forms of financial assistance provided to clients.

It was noted that Halton had introduced its Private Sector
Housing Renewal Strategy in 2003 and a number of factors now
made it necessary to revise this Strategy; these factors were
outlined for the Board’s consideration.

An appendix was attached to the report summarising the
principle changes being recommended in terms of the range of
financial assistance to be offered to individuals and the rationale
for them. Also appended was the full strategy, which included a
new enforcement policy, HMO Licencing Policy, detailed
eligibility criteria/conditions for financial assistance, and a policy
for dealing with applications to reduce or waive requirements to



104.

Page 12

repay assistance.

The Board was advised that a consultation exercise had
been undertaken through the press, the Council’s website, the
Landlords Forum, and directly with other local authority and
stakeholder organisations: no responses had been received.

RESOLVED: That the Strategy be approved for
implementation as soon as is practicable.

LIVERPOOL CITY REGION HOUSING STRATEGY

The Board considered a report of the Strategic Director —
Health and Community outlining the development and draft
findings of the Housing Strategy for the Liverpool City Region. It
was noted that this Strategy was a major piece of work which
had been funded by Government Office North West but
commissioned by the Merseyside Housing Forum - it would
provide an investment framework for future housing
development across the City Region and it was a key element
of the Sustainable Communities workstream of the Liverpool
City Region Development Programme in response to the
Northern Way Challenge.

The findings of work undertaken so far were outlined for
the Board'’s consideration including information on:

Housing Market Assessment;
Vulnerable Housing Markets; and
BME/Gypsy and Traveller households.

The draft strategy identified seven strategic enablers as
the building blocks to meet the vision to create sustainable
communities. The “Strategic Enablers”, and the appropriate
policy responses required to deliver them, were also
summarised for the Board’s information.

It was noted that the Liverpool City Region Housing
Strategy undoubtedly had a new heartlands/Liverpool focus.
Informal discussions with colleagues in St. Helens and
Knowsley had revealed concerns about the degree of emphasis
based on the pathfinder area. Nevertheless, the findings and
recommendations of the strategy may present opportunities to
increase investment in some of Halton’s poorest
neighbourhoods. The Strategy also supported continued



Page 13

investment in Castlefields through the National Affordable
Housing Programme as the area was identified as one of the
top 15% Vulnerable Housing Markets.

There was a requirement to complete and pay for the
commission by the end of March and this had led to challenging
turnaround times for consultation and feedback. It was expected
that the current draft of the Strategy would be signed off by
Members of the Merseyside Housing Forum at its meeting on
2" April 2007 and endorsement of the Strategy would be
sought at the Chief Executives and Leaders Group at the end of
April. The authors of the Strategy had recognised that, given the
deadline for completing the Commission, it was unlikely that
agreement could be reached between partners on the relative
merits of each vulnerable area. Therefore, the report restricted
itself to suggesting a broad framework for partners to use to
determine priority areas for investment.

RESOLVED: That the report be noted and the thrust of
the comments identified in Section 6 — Conclusions — be
supported.

EXECUTIVE BOARD SUB COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 29™
MARCH 2007

111.REQUEST TO APPROVE SINGLE QUOTE TENDER
CONTRACT:- LOCAL BUS SERVICE 700

The Sub-Committee considered a request for a Single
Quote Contract (Procurement Standing Orders 1.5 and 3.1), to
be entered into with Arriva (North West and Wales) to divert an
existing express coach service linking Manchester City Centre
and Liverpool John Lennon Airport to serve the Borough.

There were currently no other local bus operators running
similar services. The proposal was based on an agreed financial
revenue contribution from the Council of £87,000 over three
financial years (2006/07 — 2010/11). This arrangement followed
a kick-start style funding profile, whereby the Council’s revenue
contribution would decline over three years as follows:

2007/08  £43,500

2008/09  £29,000



112.

Page 14

2009/10  £14,500

A service contract would be entered into with Arriva (North
West and Wales) in line with the Council’s standard supported
local bus service contract terms and conditions.

In addition, Arriva (North West and Wales) had
guaranteed to operate the service commercially for a minimum
of 7 years after the initial grant period from 2010/11 onwards.

RESOLVED: That Procurement Standing Orders in
relation to tendering be waived accordingly.

RENEWAL OF AGREEMENT WITH MERSEY WATERFRONT
REGIONAL PARK

The Sub-Committee considered a request for approval to
sign the new Mersey Waterfront Regional Park Agreement.

The Mersey Waterfront Regional Park was set up in 2004
to transform, energise and connect the collective potential of
areas along the Mersey Waterfront. The initial three-year period
was funded by £85m from the North West Regional
Development Agency (NWDA) and £13.25m of European
Regional Development Fund Objective 1 money. During this
period, Halton had benefited from substantial grants towards
Wigg Island Visitors Centre, Widnes Wharf Boardwalk and
viewing platform, and the Waterfront Maintenance Scheme.

It was reported that £16.5m of NWDA Funding had now
been secured for the succession programme, which would run
until 2009.

Although no major schemes had been identified within
Halton for this period, money may be available for smaller
schemes within the ‘Pride in our Promenades’ and ‘Coastal
Spaces and Places’ programmes. Halton would also benefit
from marketing and publicity initiatives for the wider waterfront
park. In addition, a spatial framework identified Halton as one of
the key windows on the waterfront, which could help to draw in
future funding.

RESOLVED: That the existing Mersey Waterfront
Regional Park Agreement be renewed and that the Strategic
Director, Environment be authorised to determine the terms of
the new agreement following the principles outlined in the
report.



Page 15

EXECUTIVE (TRANSMODAL IMPLEMENTATION) SUB BOARD
ON 19™ APRIL 2007

REVISIONS TO PROPOSED STRUCTURAL LANDSCAPING ON
HBC FIELDS

The Board considered a report of the Strategic Director,
Environment which gave Members an update on the revisions to the
design, planning issues and implementation of the structural
landscape around the area proposed for development on the ‘Halton
Fields’ site.

In addition it was noted that a revised landscape master plan,
albeit only a variation to that approved earlier would be submitted for
a further revised planning approval in May 2007.

RESOLVED: That
(1) the report be noted; and

(2) the submission of the revision to the existing planning
application be approved.

RAIL RECEPTION SIDINGS FOR 3MG - MERSEY MULTIMODAL
GATEWAY

The Board considered a report of the Strategic Director,
Environment which sought approval to submit a planning application
for Phase 1 of the Rail Reception Sidings for 3MG — Mersey
Multimodal Gateway.

A query was raised in relation to noise levels, particularly at
night and in response it was noted that this would be considered as
part of the environmental survey which would be carried out by MDS
Transmodal and 3MG.

RESOLVED: That

(1) the submission of the planning application as set out in
the report be approved; and

(2) delegated authority to develop and implement the
scheme, be granted to the Strategic Director,
Environment in consultation with the Executive Board
Portfolio Holder for Planning, Transportation and
Regeneration.



Page 16 Agenda ltem 5a

REPORT TO: Urban Renewal Policy and Performance
Board

DATE: 20 June 2007

REPORTING OFFICER: Strategic Director — Environment

SUBJECT: Future of Halton Lea Post Office

WARDS: Borough-wide

1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1 The purpose of this report is to draw Members’ attention to the
consultation exercise being undertaken by the Post Office regarding
the future arrangements for the provision of Post Office services in
Halton Lea Shopping Centre. Representatives of the Post Office have
been invited to attend the meeting and to address the Board on its
proposals.

2.0 RECOMMENDED that the Board:

(1) Hears from the representative of the Post Office the details
of the changes proposed for the delivery of the post office
service at Halton Lea

(2) Comments appropriately to the Strategic Director Corporate
and Policy who, in consultation with the Executive Board
Member for Corporate Services, has been authorised by
The Executive Board to make further comments to the Post
Office.

3.0 SUPPORTING INFORMATION

3.1 The Executive Board, at its meeting on 29th March 2007, considered a
report which provided details of a consultation paper issued by the
Department for Trade and Industry on the future of the Post Office
network. The Executive Board supported the actions taken by the
Chief Executive in expressing concern about any proposals that reduce
the Post Office network in Halton.

3.2 The Council has now been consulted by the Post Office regarding
proposals to change the arrangements for providing Post Office
services in Halton Lea, Runcorn. Their proposal is to transfer the
existing Post Office services from their existing location at 88 Forest
Walk to the Branch of W. H. Smith within Halton Lea. This was to be
have been considered by the Executive Board on 7™ June 2007.

3.3  Attached as Appendix 1 to this report is a copy of a letter received from
the National Consultation Manager from Post Office Ltd. which
provides more details of the proposals.



3.4

3.5

3.6

4.0

4.1

5.0

5.1

6.0

6.1

Page 17

In order to understand better the proposals being put forward by the
Post Office, the Urban Renewal Policy and Performance Board has
invited representatives from the Post Office to address this meeting to
provide more details on the proposed changes. These will be Peter
Mylchreest (Lead Project Manager - WH Smith Transfers) and Wendy
Martin (Senior External Relations Manager).

Unfortunately, this will be after the date set by the Post Office for the
receipt of comments, 14th June 2007. With this in mind the Executive
Board on 7™. June 2007 resolved that the Council should write in the
interim period to the Post Office objecting to the proposed new
arrangements. The Council also asked to see the proposed physical
layout of the new facilities in W. H. Smith, given concerns that have
been expressed about the capacity of the W. H. Smith premises to
house such a facility.

An informal discussion has been held with Fordgate, the owners of
Halton Lea. Their comments included:

o They are very disappointed with the move, but within the
existing lease agreements they cannot do anything about it.
. The current post office is very busy and they have concerns

about how W H Smith are going to cope with the management
of the additional footfall.

) The moving of the post office will leave the existing adjacent
shops there with much reduced passing footfall. The danger is
that this will result in a very dead corner in Halton Lea.

o The post office has a residue of lease left on their current
premises which Fordgate had not, at that time, been contacted
about.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS

The Council needs to fully understand the impact such a change will
have on the vitality and visibility of the Town Centre. Post Offices play
an important role in the community beyond the provision of services.
The Council will want to be reassured that there will be no reduction in
services.

RISK ANALYSIS

There are no direct risk implications for the Council.

EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES

The Post Office provides an important service access point for many

individuals. It is vital the service remains accessible to all who need to
use it.



7.0

Page 18

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D
OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972

Document

Place of Inspection

Contact Officer

Consultation letter

I. Leivesley’s Office,
6th Floor,

Municipal Building,
Widnes

l. Leivesley




HALTON EDROUGH

C"si r\rm

David Parr - Chief ,E/xecutive
Halton Borough-Coundil
Chief Executive's Directorate

Mun'}d al Building i : i
IDNES FoRATTENTIONOF| 1 biacoss o i

WA8 7QF — S et 18 April 2007

Dear Mr Parr

Post Offrce Runcorn Shopping Cltg branch
1 18 Rrver Walk Halton Lea, Runcorn WA7 ZBZ

lam very pleased to annou nce our mtentlon to extend our exrstrng partnershrp wrth WHSrnrth and
transfer a number of Post Office branches across the UK to therr stores mcludrng Runcorn Shopprng
City Post Offrce branch currentfg located at the above address s B

At a trme when Post Offi ce Ltd is losrng fama week partnershrps such as these enable us to contrnu
offering Post Office services in the heart of Runcorn. Without Lhern we smplg carl anL Sareguard hrg
street branches or the servrces theg provrde B et T L

At present Post Offrce Ltd own and manage the above Post orr ce branch Our intention is for
WHSmith to manage Runcorn Post Office branch on behalf of Post Ofﬂce Ltd from therr exrstrng
premises at 88 Forest Walk, Halton Lea, Runcorn, WA7 2GX, 120 uards away frorn the current site
partnership with us, WHSmith will continue to provide the high standard of S service and rang :
products currently available at Runcorn Shopping City Post Ofﬂce branc" .'-The new branch will. be
carefully integrated into their nearby store, and er[ remain fu!lg accessible for customers, with open
plan, level access into the branch. .

The transfer of this branch follows the successful trial of six Post Oft" ice branches last year.|am.
pleased to say that feedback from customers has been good, wrth customers welcomrng the pleasant :
environment, high standard of service and improved opening hours on offer at the new branches
WHSmith is one of the UK's leading retail groups, who currently operate more than 540 hrgh street
stores and around 130 travel stores at airport, station and motorway service locations nationwide,
selling a wide range of newspapers, magazines, stationery, books and entertarnment products Asone
of the UK's leading retail groups, we are confident that WHSmith have the customer focus, :
appropriate knowledge and retail experience to enable them to continue to provrde a hrgh standard
of service to our custorners in Runcorn. This has been dearly demonstrated by the success of the trzaf
branches and furthermore we are confident that the extensive range of statronerg and assoczated :
goods that WHSmith offers complements the wide range of rnarn Post Offrce servrces that erE

continue to be available following the transfer. - ;

Enclosed with this letter is a summary of what the newly franchised Runcorn Post Office branch will |
offer and answers to frequently asked questions as to why Post Office Ltd franchise branches.

Post Office Ltd. Reqistered in England and Wales Mumber: 2154540, Registered Office; 80-86 Old Street London ECTV 9NN



Page 20

We have an agreed Code of Practice on how we deal with a range of branch network change with
Postwatch, our independent consumer council. As part of that Code of Practice, Postwatch recognise
that the decision to transfer a Post Office branch to a franchise partner is a commercial decision to be
taken solely by Post Office Ltd and is, therefore, not subject to public debate or consent. However, it is
important to us that our customers and local community representatives like yourself, understand
the rationale behind our decision and that you also have the opportunity to comment on the facilities
that will be available at the new branch.

In view of this, we are inviting feedback from yourself and from customers who regularly visit
Runcorn Shopping City Post Office branch, on the following areas:

0] the proposed opening hours at the new branch;
(i1 access arrangements into the new branch;
(iii) the facilities that are planned for the new branch.

[tisimportant to understand that we are not proposing the removal or downgrading of the Post
Office service provided in Runcorn. On the contrary, our partnership with WHSmith will help us to
continue to provide a main Post Office branch in the heart of the town. As you can see from the
enclosed documents, customers will benefit from significant financial investment in the new Post
Office.

You may also wish to share this information with those you believe may have an interest in this
matter.

Please note, exceptionaily in this instance we have extended public consultation by two weeks to
allow for the forthcoming local elections. If you wish to give us any feedback on the facilities at the
new branch, please ensure that we receive this by close of business on 14 June 2007. | will write again,
after this date, to update you on any comments we have received on our plans, and to confirm the
arrangements we have made for Runcorn Post Office branch.

Among other local interest groups, we are also contacting the consumer council, Postwatch, and you
may wish to consider copying your response to them at the following address: Postwatch, 22
Grosvenor Gardens, London, SW1W OTT. You are under no obligation to do so and any
correspondence sent to us will be treated in the strictest confidence.

Thank you for giving me the opportunity to explain our position.

Yours sincerely

T

Philippa Wright (Mrs)

National Consultation Manager

Post Office Ltd, /o National Consultation Team
PO Box 2060, WATFORD, WD18 8ZW

Telephone: 08457 223344  Email via our website: www_postoffice.co.uk

The Post Office” is able to supply customers with this information, free of charge,
inan alternatsve format for people who are visually impaired. To obtain a copy, call
the Post Office® helpline on 08457 22 33 44 or textphone 08457 22 33 55.



Page 21

Current Runcorn Shopping City Post Office® branch located at;

118 River Walk

Halton Lea

Runcorn

WA7 2BZ

Franchise partner;
WHSmith

New Runcorn Post Office® branch, located at;
88 Forest Walk

Halton Lea

Runcorn

WA7Y 2GX

Distance from current site;

120 yards along level terrain

What will the new Runcorn Post Office® branch offer?

® Extended opening hours as follows;

Mon —Sat 09.00-17.30

The same wide range of main Post Office services currently available at Runcorn Shopping City Post
Office branch including; personal banking; financial services; car tax renewal; Post Office card
account; passport application checking and foreign currency services, but with the exception of
stamp vending machines.

Ten serving positions, comprising of eight open plan and two traditional style positions designated
primarily to Bureau de Change/Giro business banking that has the flexibility to be utilised for all
other Post Office transactions, during busy periods.

WHSmith is keen to ensure there is continued good access to Post Office services There will be open
plan, level access into the branch. The Post Office counter area will be carefully integrated into the
current store, providing adequate room for Post Office and retail customers alike.

Low level writing desk and serving counter, plus an induction hearing loop for those customers with
hearing difficulties.

Car parking facilities will remain the same.
Public transport services are available to and from the surrounding residential areas.

The new branch will be integratéd into the existing WHSmith store, providing customers the
opportunity to purchase an extensive range of newspapers, magazines, stationery, books and
entertainment products under one roof.

Planned month of transfer:  August 2007/



Page 22

" POST
| OFFICE |

If you have difficulty reading this leaflet please call

SR 22 o4




Page 23

There are currently over 14,000 Post Office® branches in the UK. The vast majority of
these - some 96% - are not directly operated by Post Office Ltd but are run by agents
on our behalf.

The larger Post Office® branches in high street locations have however often been run
by staff employed by Post Office Ltd. The cost of running these branches is very
high, and we don't make enough money in the branches to cover their costs. We
have experienced a steady decline in customers, due largely to the loss of some of
our most traditional areas of business, for example pension and benefit payments.
We are working hard to replace this lost business with income from new products and
services such as the new Post Office® credit card, Car and Home Insurance and our
very successful Post Office® HomePhone service.

Post Office Ltd is therefore actively looking at ways of maintaining services in the
most cost effective Wag possible. One option is to transfer the management of more
of our larger Post Office® branches to franchisees. This has many advantages for the
business, while at the same time preserving a main Past Office® presence in the
locality.

Franchise partners usually look to operate a Post Office® alongside their own retail
offer. This improves the viability of Post Office® branches, as both the Post Office®
and retail business can be operated from the same location. Equally, both the Post
Office® and retail business can benefit from the regular customer footfall visiting the
store; all of which helps to secure a viable and sustainable Post Office® and retail store
for our customers in the longer term. Coupled with this, franchisees put significant
investment into their branches, which Post Office Ltd simply cannot afford to do.

The savings we make from transferring a branch to a franchise partner are invested in
such areas as the development of new products and services, which help to sustain
our wider Post Office® network and therefore benefit all of our customers in the
longer term. We, therefore, see franchising as a very positive step in modernising our
network and maintaining our ability to continue to provide customers access to
reliable and high quality services and products.




Page 24

Post Office Ltd will train all customer advisors at the new branch to the same

standards as our own employees. They will also be supported within the first few
weeks of the branch transferring to our franchise partner. Inevitably, there will be a
settling in period as the franchise staff adjust to their new roles. Experience shows,
however, that following this initial period, our franchise branches achieve good
standards of customer satisfaction, as measured independently by an external
company, whilst at the same time offering a sustainable service to customers into
the long term future. Additionally, as with any other Post Office® branch, a local Post
Office Ltd Manager monitors service standards on an ongoing basis.

All customer advisors working at franchised branches are directly employed by our
franchisee. A dedicated branch manager would also be appointed by the franchisee
to run the branch on a day to day basis, similar to in branches directly managed by
Post Office Ltd.

Naturally, concerns are sometimes expressed by customers about the future of the
staff working at the current Post Office® branch. The decision to franchise a branch is
not made lightly, and Post Office Ltd values the hard work, commitment and loyalty
provided by our staff at directly managed Post Office® branches. We do however have
to take difficult commercial decisions that, regretfully, will have implications for
individuals. All staff will be given the opportunity to state their personal preferences
for future employment within the organisation and whenever possible, we will try to
ensure these preferences are met.




Page 25

T 5 : = s i
How are franchise partaers selected?: _ E
: r

All of our partners, whether they are independent business people or companies, are |
carefully selected. We only enter into agreements when we are entirely satisfied with I
their suitability to operate a Post Office®. ; ; ;

When considering the suitability of a future partner our criteria include, finanicial
status; commercial and retail awareness; prewous good emplogment record,
motivation and excellent customer focus




Page 26 Agenda Item 5b

REPORT: Urban Renewal Policy and Performance Board
DATE: 20 June 2007

REPORTING OFFICER: Strategic Director, Environment

SUBJECT: Urban Renewal PPB 2006/7Annual Report
WARDS: Borough-wide

1.0 PURPOSE AND CONTENT OF REPORT

1.1 This report presents a draft Annual Report of the activities of the Urban
Renewal PPB during 2006/7 for comment/amendment. Subject to
endorsement by the PPB, the Annual Report will go forward with the
Annual Reports of other PPBs to a forthcoming meeting of the full
Council for adoption.

2.0 RECOMMENDED: That
(1) the PPB consider, comment upon and if necessary agree
amendments to, the attached Annual Report of the PPB’s
activities in 2006/7; and
(2) the PPB endorse the attached/amended Annual Report for
the purpose of its adoption at a forthcoming meeting of the
full Council.

3.0 SUPPORTING INFORMATION

3.1 Annex comprising the draft Urban Renewal PPB Annual Report for
2006/7

4.0 POLICY IMPLICATIONS

4.1 None arising from this report itself.
5.0 OTHER IMPLICATIONS

5.1 None arising from this report itself.
6.0 BACKGROUND PAPERS

6.1  2006/7 departmental service plans



Page 27

G

i |

Councillor
Hignett

ANNUAL REPORT
URBAN RENEWAL POLICY AND
PERFORMANCE BOARD
JUNE 2006 - MARCH 2007

“Once again the Urban Renewal PPB has overseen the vast amount of
activity which is contributing to Halton’s renaissance. The number of
cranes which have appeared on the skylines of Widnes and Runcorn
are testimony to the priority which the Council attaches to renewing the
economy and the physical fabric of Halton. Also, the development
programmes which the Board has agreed in the past year will ensure
that this dynamism will continue to fuel Halton’s renewal into the
future.”

Councillor Hignett
Chairman, Urban Renewal Policy and Performance Board

MEMBERSHIP AND RESPONSIBILITIES

During 2006/7 the Board comprised eleven Councillors —

Councillor R. Hignett (Chairman) Labour
Councillor D. Leadbetter (Vice Chairman) Labour
Councillor Ellen Cargill Labour
Councillor K. Morley Labour
Councillor P. Nolan Labour
Councillor C. Rowe Liberal Democrat
Councillor D. Thompson Labour
Councillor T. Sly Liberal Democrat
Councillor P. Wallace Labour
Councillor I. Whittaker Conservative
Councillor P. Worrall Liberal Democrat

The Urban Renewal Policy & Performance Board is responsible for
scrutinising performance and formulating policy in relation to the following
areas:

Highways and Transportation,

Environmental Health and Planning,

Economic Regeneration and

Major Projects Departments with the additional responsibility
for

Contaminated Land (as from 2005/06)

Strategic Housing (as from 2006/07).




Page 28

REVIEW OF THE YEAR

The full Board met five times during the year. As well as considering
Executive Board decisions relevant to the work of the Urban Renewal Board,
agreeing the Service Plans of the relevant Departments and monitoring their
general activities and performance against them, set out below are some of
the main activities and issues that the Board has worked on during the year:

Corporate Responsibilities

e The terms of reference for the Board have been amended following
changes to the Council’s decision-making structures, implemented in
2006/07, in order to bring them into line with the Council’s Strategic
Priorities, as contained within the Corporate and Community Plans.
One amendment to the terms of reference being that this Board be
responsible for scrutiny of the strategic housing function.

e The Board received a report outlining the need for a Local Area
Agreement, negotiated with Central Government.

Major Projects Department

e Progress on the implementation of the Castlefields and Widnes
Waterfront Regeneration programmes was considered and noted.
The Board was asked to review and agree the Widnes Waterfront
NWDA Performance Plan for 2006/7 and then, later, for 2007/8.

e The Board received a presentation on the Contaminated Land
Inspection Strategy Review and noted the revised implementation
timetable.

e A report reviewing the conclusions and recommendations outlined in a
commercial property study, which assessed the supply of and demand
for employment land and premises (industrial, office and retail) in
Halton, was considered by the Board and resolved that
recommendations set out in that report be supported.

Planning

e Consideration was given to a report which advised on new powers
available to the Council to make Gating Orders. The report proposed
policy to be adopted in relation to these which was supported and it
was recommended that the Executive Board adopt a policy requiring
Gating Orders be made against future alley-gate proposals.

Highways and Transportation

e The Board reviewed a Delivery Report of the First Local Transport
Plan 2001/2 t02005/6. Of particular note was the difference that the
Plan had made in terms of the Council’s strategic priorities at that
time, as set out in the Borough'’s Corporate Plan.




Page 29

The Board was informed of the need to appoint a Chairman and three
Members to the Public Transport Advisory Panel. As a consequence
Clirs Hignett, Leadbetter, Sly and Polhill's names were put forward.
There was an update on the current position regarding the
measurement and treatment of highway skidding resistance, which
informed the proposal to introduce a policy for analysing skid
resistance data in order to produce programmes of treatment, which
was recommended for adoption.

The Board received a presentation on the Best Value Review of
Transportation and Access. Transport links to new developments and
local hospitals were discussed and it was determined that the Public
Transport Liaison Panel should scrutinise this further, to the benefit of
Halton residents.

The Street Lighting Topic Review was received.

A petition requesting signals at Derby Road, Widnes, was considered
by to the Board. A refuge was an option that was debated but not
adopted due to the presence of the bus route. It was determined that
this situation should continue to be monitored.

The Local Transport Capital Expenditure Settlement 2007/8 was
considered and welcomed. It was noted that this improved settlement
rewarded the high performance achieved in both the LTP2 and LTP1
Delivery Reports and that Halton was now in the top quartile of the 82
local transport authorities in England.

The Board reviewed and noted the Public Right of Way Milestone
Statement Progress Report 2007/8 in which a reduction in core
funding for Groundwork Mersey Valley was identified.

Economic Regeneration

The Board considered a study undertaken in Runcorn and Widnes
town centres to evaluate the level of support from traders and
businesses for developing Business Improvement Districts (BIDS) and
determined to support this initiative.

The Board reviewed and noted the draft Town Centre Strategies for
Halton Lea and Runcorn Town Centre, as Supplementary Planning
Documents, which had been approved for public consultation.

Widnes would, instead, have an Area Action Plan produced.

Housing

The Board received a report on the Housing Needs Survey 2006,
which had proved to be a comprehensive and robust housing market
and needs assessment.

An update on a review of Supported Housing by the Health PPB was
given and, due to a change in the Board’s remit, this will be
considered as a future scrutiny topic.

The Board reviewed an updated report on proposed changes to the
Private Sector Housing Renewal Strategy and determined that the
document be accepted for public consultation purposes prior to being
referred to the Executive Board.

The draft of the House Extension Supplementary Planning Document
was noted by the Board, prior to it going out to public consultation.




Page 30

Other

e The Board reviewed the Natural Assets Strategy, which was adopted
in 2000, together with associated DVD’s entitled ‘Swifts in Halton’ and
‘Pickerings Pasture’. The need to get the balance of vegetation right,
particularly during the planning process was discussed, along with the
regeneration works at Castlefields. The review was recommended to
be published in 2007, as a document available to the public, and
policies and actions contained therein be noted and followed by all
services in the Council where this would have an impact.

WORK PROGRAMME FOR 2006/7

e A report on the topic brief ‘Business Parks’ was considered as part of
the scrutiny programme and accepted, with key recommendations to
be considered and decided upon by the Executive Board.

e The topic brief report on ‘Raising Additional Revenue from Existing
Services’ was considered and recommendations made for further
action.

e The Board considered a report on the topic brief for ‘Street Lighting’,
which was noted and to be forwarded to the Executive Board for
consideration of the various recommendations.

WORK PROGRAMME FOR 2007/8

The Board has contributed a number of Topic ideas to be considered by the
2007-8 PPB for inclusion in their work programme for the coming year.

e Future of Town Centre Management;
e Housing Strategy;
e Income Regeneration (continuation of).

Members of the Public are welcome at the meetings of the Board. If you
would like to know where and when meetings are to be held or if you would
like any more information about the Board or its work please contact
Commiittee Services in the first instance, telephone 0151 424 2061
extension 1125 or email Lynn.Caims@Halton.gov.uk




Page 31 Agenda ltem 5c¢

REPORT TO: Urban Renewal Policy and Performance Board
DATE: 20 June 2007

REPORTING OFFICER: Strategic Director - Environment

SUBJECT: Widnes Waterfront 3D Animation

WARDS: Boroughwide

1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1 To describe the procurement process, development and marketing and
other related opportunities associated with the creation of a 3D
animation of the Widnes Waterfront programme (and adjacent) areas

2.0 RECOMMENDATION: That the Board consider the Widnes
Waterfront 3D animation in the context of the wider Widnes
Waterfront Marketing and Communications Strategy together with
the potential of utilising the animation for other, major regeneration
projects in the Borough.

3.0 SUPPORTING INFORMATION

3.1 The Widnes Waterfront is one of only fourteen Economic Development
Zones in the North West and will, over a six years period, utilise £8
million of European Regional Development funding together with £7.5
million of funding from the North West Development Agency and a
further £1.5 million from Halton Borough Council to facilitate the
wholesale regeneration of approximately two hundred acres of derelict,
former industrial land in Southern Widnes.

3.2 In 2003, as part of the overall Widnes Waterfront Marketing and
Communications Strategy, a 3D graphical animation of the Widnes
Waterfront Master Plan was produced. However, to more accurately
reflect the commercial development that has taken place in the
intervening period it became necessary to update and improve upon that
original model.

3.3 Three North West based specialist 3D mapping and animation
companies were, therefore, invited to tender to produce a new 3D digital
asset of the Widnes Waterfront programme area.

3.4  The following companies submitted valid tenders :-
o Fudge Studios Limited £46,850.00

o DHI 3D Limited £49,800.00
o T3D £29,480.00



3.5

3.5

3.6

3.7

4.0

4.1

5.0

5.1

5.2

Page 32

T3D supplied the lowest valid tender and were duly appointed.

The total area modelled is approximately 14 square kilometres, including
a higher level of modelling for the Widnes Waterfront Programme Area.
This includes approximately 45 office and commercial buildings, the
proposed leisure and retail complex, new roads, junctions, landscaping
area, public green space and, perhaps most, significantly the New
Mersey Gateway.

The model is fully interactivity within the virtual environment of the
internet effectively letting users ‘walk’ around the Widnes Waterfront
development

The model features a two and a half minute animation which includes :-

o  Avirtual fly through starting upstream and moving towards the New
Mersey Crossing and on towards the existing Silver Jubilee Bridge

o A virtual flight along the New Mersey Crossing to the Widnes
Waterfront programme area

o A virtual flight around the Widnes Waterfront programme area,
pausing at key developments and ending with high overview of the
site looking south towards the New Mersey Crossing.

The digital asset will be a key element of the programme marketing and
awareness raising activities in 2007. For example, it will form the
centrepiece of an enhanced programme web site
www.widneswaterfront.co.uk. The animation can also be delivered to
specific, targeted individual and companies by email.

The animation will also be made available to individual developers and
agents for marketing purposes who can, for example, choose to
introduce a greater degree of interactivity to their individual buildings.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS

The availability of a 3D digital asset of the Widnes Waterfront
programme area will be a key element of the programme Marketing and
Communications Plan and will contribute positively to the realisation of
the Borough’s wider regeneration objectives.

OTHER IMPLICATIONS

The creation of a 22 square kilometre digital asset of the Borough will
benefit many other regeneration projects. For example, the New Mersey
Crossing Team intend using the model to analyse different road
configurations associated with the new bridge. The model can also be
employed to raise awareness of the New Mersey Crossing.

The model can also be employed as part of the planning process. For
example, major new developments can be ‘dropped into’ the model



Page 33

graphically illustrating the impact they will have on adjacent development
and communities.

6.0 RISK ANALYSIS
6.1 The model is accurate to 30 cm across a kilometre. However, it is
important that when the model is employed to represent potential
developments then firstly, similar tolerances are employed and
secondly, it is made explicit that the model is only being used for
indicative and illustrative purposes.
7.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES
7.1 The model will make a positive contribution to the realisation of the
overall Widnes Waterfront programme objectives which seek to provide
inclusive employment and leisure and recreational opportunities for the
people of the Borough .
8.0 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF THE
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972
Document Place of Inspection Contact Officer
Valid tender documents | Economic Regeneration Tim Leather
Office




Page 34 Agenda ltem 5d

REPORT TO: Urban Renewal Policy and
Performance Board

DATE: 20" June 2007

REPORTING OFFICER: Strategic Director, Environment

SUBJECT: Outcome of Consultation
Review Panel Meetings

WARDS: Birchfield & Castlefields

1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1 To report the outcome of two Consultation Review Panel meetings over

the 2006/07 financial year.

2.0 RECOMMENDATION

2.1 That the report be noted.

3.0 SUPPORTING INFORMATION

3.1 In accordance with Council policy, Consultation Review Panel (CRP)

3.2

3.3

3.4

meetings have been held to review two schemes on which public
consultation exercises have been held during the 2006/7 financial year.

Halton Village, Runcorn - Traffic Calming. In March and May 2006
written complaints were received from residents of Norton Lane and
Stockham Lane, Halton Village, requesting traffic calming measures to
reduce vehicle speeds in the area. Previously, separate complaints had
been lodged concerning damage to property at the Norton
Lane/Castlefields Avenue South junction, allegedly caused by drivers
approaching the junction at excessive speed and losing control. Norton
Lane had hosted two traffic incidents involving injury in the previous three
years.

A Local Transport Plan funded traffic calming scheme was designed to
address the immediate issues, but given the relatively low cost of such
work and the value of prevention of the casualties to be saved, the
project was extended to offer calming over the whole of the Stockham
Lane, Norton Lane and Norton view residential rectangle. Drg. no. 8920
(attached) refers. Consultation was undertaken with affected residents.

The consultation indicated support for the project in Norton Lane, mixed
views in Stockham Lane and a majority against in Norton View. At the
subsequent CRP meeting (minutes in Appendix 'A') it was agreed that
the scheme be progressed in modified form over Norton Lane and
Stockham Lane but that the Norton View section should be deleted. It



Page 35

was also recommended that investigation be undertaken with a view to
extending the scheme adjacent to St. Mary's Primary School in
Castlefield Avenue South. This work is now in progress.

3.5 The recommendations have been incorporated into the scheme design

and implementation will take place during the current financial year.
Funding will be via the Local Transport Plan Local Safety Scheme
budget.

3.6 Birchfield Road, Widnes — Quality Transport Corridor. This scheme

was designed in consultation with the Police, bus operators and local
schools. The design included the realignment of Victoria Avenue and the
relocation of the pedestrian crossing and linking of existing cycleway
provisions by widening the footpath and installing a combined use
pathway. Other elements of the project included treatment of bus stops
with bus border kerbs and associated road markings, the closing of bus
lay-bys and road markings to narrow a section of carriageway fronting
Wade Deacon School to slow traffic and give the appearance of entering
a school zone. Drg. no. 8329/F/002 refers and will be displayed at the
meeting.

3.7 A consultation exercise was carried out on the scheme to include as

many interested parties as possible. The consultation exercise consisted
of the following:

Pre consultation meeting was held 27 November 2006 with Councillors
from the affected Wards — Kingsway, Birchfield, Farnworth and
Appleton prior to public consultation.

A public consultation took place at Wade Deacon High School — 5
December 2006 between 2 pm — 7pm, with all the surrounding
residents and businesses being invited via leaflet drop. Questionnaires
where issued to all who attended.

The bike users group.

3.8 All questionnaires received where analysed and reported to a CRP held

on 15 January 2007 attended by Councillors Dave Leadbetter and Ann
Gerrard, senior officers and Cheshire Police. (Minutes in Appendix 'B'.)
The following revisions to the scheme were recommended by the CRP:

Remove road markings narrowing road at Wade Deacon following
comments regarding safety issues from the bike users group.

Bus lay-bys to remain open but lined with clearway marking prohibiting
parking other than buses.

Approval of relocated crossing and conversion into a Toucan crossing.
Properties immediately affected may object to the position but at the
CRP the elected members and the Police felt this was the best position
for a road crossing to serve the schools and park and felt it was worth
pursuing.

3.9 These recommendations have been incorporated into the scheme

design. Implementation is programmed for July/August 2007 to coincide



Page 36

with the school holiday period. Funding will be via the Local Transport
Plan Quality Transport Corridor budget.

4.0 POLICY, RISK, FINANCIAL, EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY

IMPLICATIONS
41 None

5.0 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF THE

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972

5.1 Halton View, Runcorn. (Appendix 'A") Background information held in the

Traffic Management Section, Environment, Rutland House, Halton Lea,
Runcorn, WA7 2GW. Contact: Jo Brussels

5.2 Birchfield Road, Widnes. (Appendix 'B') Background information held in

the Highways Capital Section, Environment, Rutland House, Halton Lea,
Runcorn, WA7 2GW. Contact: Debbie Cragg



Page 37

Consultation Review Panel Agenda/Record

Project Quality Transport Corridor - Birchfield Road, Project File: M 1047
Name: Widnes
Date: Monday 15 January 2007
Present: DESIGN STAGE:
Clir Dave Leadbetter (DL) — Chair FEASIBILITY
Clir Ann Gerrard (AG) — Kingsway Ward Councillor PRELIMINARY
DESIGN
lan Stewardson (IS) — Cheshire Police DETAILED DESIGN
Alan West (AW) — Operational Director Highways and (Tick as applicable)
Transportation
Stephen Leng (SL) — Divisional Manager Highways
Dave Cunliffe (DC) — Section Leader Highways Capital
Debbie Cragg (DCr) — Senior Engineer Highways Capital
Agenda Meeting Record Action
1. Introduction. Apologies were received from Councillors Fraser, Horabin,

Polhill and Hignett.

DC introduced the scheme to all present and spoke around
the original Consultation plan Drg. No 8329/F/002. DC
explained some of the background to the scheme, which
originally was envisaged to be a traffic signal junction to
help movements of vehicles and pedestrians on Lockett
Road, Victoria Avenue and Birchfield Road. This initial
scheme was met with a lot of opposition from the local
residents affected especially those living in Victoria Avenue
who where concerned that the parking would become even
worse. The scheme was then put on hold and was revisited
as a Quality Transport Scheme to link in the principle of the
transport corridors for an extended length of Birchfield Road
(between Highfield Road and Lancaster Road).

DC explained that the scheme was designed in consultation
with internal officers, the Police, Bus Operators and the
Schools. The design included the junction realignment of
Victoria Avenue and relocation of the pedestrian crossing,
and the linking of the existing cycleway provisions by
widening the footpath and installing a combined use
pathway. Bus stops were to be treated with bus border
kerbs and lay bys where proposed to be closed. Road
markings were to be used to narrow a section of the
carriageway fronting Wade Deacon School to slow traffic
and give the appearance of entering a school zone.

A pre consultation meeting was held Monday 27 November
2006 with the Councillors of all Wards affected by the
scheme being Kingsway, Birchfield, Farnworth and Appleton
and minutes were taken recording their comments.

A public consultation took place at Wade Deacon High




Page 38

Agenda

Meeting Record

Action

School — Upper Wing, Victoria Avenue on Tuesday 5
December between 2:00pm — 7.00pm. Questionnaires
where issue to all who attended, approximately 20 people
attended although all surrounding properties and
businesses were leaflet dropped. From the public
consultation 8 written replies were received and the issues
raised by these are to be discussed.

Review of Design
Options and
Consultation
Issues Raised

Following the consultation event and the return of
questionnaires and feedback from Halton Bike Users the
following main concerns where raised.

1. Parking - Issues raised include the concerns of
parking of parents for the schools — on yellow lines,
obstructing junctions and parking in bus lay by and
causing safety issues for people using the bus. DC
said the parking for the station was being looked at
with the various interested parties; Halton Borough
Council had Section 106 monies allocated for
improvements to the security and parking at the
station. The issue of illegal parking was an
enforcement issue. The problem with parents
parking they are allowed a 10-minute grace and
have usually moved on in this time scale. The police
will respond to complaints from residents about
obstructive parking. DC said the scheme proposals
would be parking neutral.

2. Junction Realignment Victoria Avenue and
Relocation of Pedestrian Crossing — Concerns
raised by realignment of the junction regarding larger
vehicles accessing/ exiting and concern it will take
longer exiting Victoria Avenue at peak times. DC
again said the accessing/exiting would be neutral but
the junction would be formalised and safer to cross
for pedestrians. Vehicles would be channelled into
the correct positioning for the junction operation. DC
said the crossing was to be repositioned at the park
side of Lockett Road and converted into a Toucan
crossing for cyclists and pedestrians, the position
linked in with the pedestrian movements especially
to the schools. A resident who live adjacent to the
position doesn’t want the crossing to move fears it
will make exiting her drive even worse than it is at
present. DC said the scheme could work with the
crossing in the same position albeit not the ideal
location for movements and if it did stay insitu the
realignment of Victoria Avenue would still be carried
out. AG was very supportive of the new position, as
it would give the greatest benefit to the schools and
access to the park.

3. Bus Lay - Bys — the closing of the lay bys had been
met with a concerned response from the Bike Users
Group due to the vulnerability of a cyclist passing a
parked bus on the carriageway. DC said it was felt
on this issue to keep the lay bys adjacent to Wade




Page 39

Agenda Meeting Record Action

Deacon and the Park open but marked with
clearway markings to prevent them being parked up
and putting bus passengers in danger when alighting
or bordering the bus. The Bus lay by adjacent to
Lancaster Road is to be part filled and the remainder
was left open for parking for the shops and
allotments.

4. Combined Footway & Cycleway Provision —
concerns raised regarding an enlarged footway
being used for half on /off parking by parents picking
up children. Concern with regard the removal of the
guardrail on the bridge. DL / AG didn’t think this was
anymore of an issue regarding parking than existing.
DC explained the guardrail would be staying on the
other footpath giving no clear crossing position and
that a guard railed footway would restrict down the
footway width preventing development of a shared
cycleway / footway.

Other issued raised from the Consultation

5. Can’t cycleway be marked on the carriageway like
Kingsway — No because of insufficient carriageway
width.

6. Suggestion of the installation of a roundabout at
Victoria Avenue / Lockett Road and Birchfield — this
is not feasible due to geometry and levels.

7. lIssue raised that coaches laid on by the Railway
park at present at the bus stop adjacent to 121
Birchfield Road this would not be available as an
option. DCr said contact had been made with
Network Rail and a coach is only used when they
have maintenance works on the network or do not
have enough train drivers, they will be contacted and
informed that this stop will no longer be an option
after the scheme is implemented and coach parking
would have to be moved to Lockett Road.

8. Have HBC considered additional traffic calming to
Victoria Avenue. No - felt speeds would slow down
with the realigned junction mouth which will stop left
entering vehicles shooting in.

Recommendations | The following recommendations were made for AW to

made at discuss with Rob Polhill to sign off the scheme.

Consultation

Review

1. Crossing to be relocated and converted into a
Toucan. The properties immediately affected will
more that likely object to the position. AG and DL felt
it was the best position and was worth pursuing.

2. Red marking and hatching fronting the school to be
removed to keep road width in response to safety
concerns raised by the bike users group regarding
being pushed into the channel.




Page 40

Agenda

Meeting Record

Action

3. The bus lay bys would be left open at Wade Deacon
and adjacent to the park but marked with clearway
markings to prohibit parking other than buses.

The next PP Board that the note of the Panel meeting can

be reported to is on Wednesday 21 March 2007 at 6.30pm.

Distribution:

O

0 File Copy




Page 41

Consultation Review Panel Agenda/Record

Project Local Safety Scheme Traffic Calming — Halton Project
Name: Village (Norton View, Norton Lane and Stockham) File:
Date: Tuesday 13 March 2007

Present: Clir Ron Hignett (RH) — Chair

DESIGN STAGE:

Clir Dave Leadbetter (DL) — Vice Chair FEASIBILITY v
Alan West (AW) — Operational Director Highways and PRELIMINARY
Transportation DESIGN
Clir Rob Polhill (RP) — Halton View Ward Councillor DETAILED DESIGN
Clir Harry Howard (HH) — Castlefields Ward Councillor (Tick as applicable)
Clir Arthur Cole (AC) - Castlefields Ward Councillor
Ste Johnson (SJ) — Section Leader Traffic Management
Jo Brussels (JB) — Engineer Traffic Management
Agenda Meeting Record Action
1. Introduction. Apologies were received from Councillor Mrs. Cargill.

whole estate.

with the consultation.

Norton View.
(AC entered the meeting)

Scheme budget.

reviewed.

SJ introduced the scheme to all present and spoke around
the original Consultation plan. SJ explained some of the
background to the scheme. He explained that the project
arose from requests from the residents on the corner of
Norton Lane near the junction with Castlefields Avenue
South. A scheme was developed and an extension of the
works was offered to Norton View if there was local support.
This meant that a 20 mph zone could be offered to the

SJ apologised to the ward councillors for not being involved

The consultation did reveal strong support in Norton Lane,
mixed views in Stockham Lane and a majority against in

AC raised some objections regarding what budget was
funding this project and raised concerns over the ward
councillors not being involved at the beginning. SJ
apologised again for the councillors not being involved and
informed ward councillors the funding was from Local Safety

A petition received by the residents of Norton View was




Page 42

Agenda

Meeting Record

Action

Review of Design
Options and
Consultation
Issues Raised

Following the consultation the following main concerns
where raised.

1.

Norton Lane / Castlefields Avenue South Junction —
Most of the residents raised concerns over vehicles not

stopping at the give way markings.

Norton Lane / Main Street Junction — A majority of residents

were also concerned with vehicles not stopping at the give way
markings.

St. Mary’s Primary School — Concerns regarding
speeding along Castlefields Avenue South past the
school and parents parking during home time.

Recommendations
made at
Consultation
Review

The following recommendations were made for AW to
discuss with ClIr. Polhill to sign off the scheme.

1.

2.

Traffic calming on Norton View to be discarded
completely and on most of Stockham Lane.

A re-design of the scheme, concentrating on Norton
Lane and Castlefields Avenue South junction.

Ward councillors to contact St. Mary’s Primary
School regarding implementation of traffic
management outside the school to be incorporated
into the re-design of the scheme.

‘ Distribution: ©

© (3] ©® File Copy




e ]

=gt
/!

/:.? f,n"r*-». {
,,:/"' ,a‘f §]|| II_._‘___f,IJII!\\’
“ L
A /.\‘\\‘ ‘;';JII i E‘_i |
/(;(// g O {

) s
r'/

z ”
Page 43 si . 3
g _§-§ @
g€ ‘ G Qazg A 5 o 5
3 4 %péﬂgﬂ = E z |z
g O“T'E'=5 g & 9
: 3 EUpies T3 2
5 5 2 - Wa2Egn S 5 B | o
.3, g 1z sc38ds s N
345 o F& Y 5§ ;838 2 .8 T
g2 o3 = EEm’%gE E o =
£% 3 O S .58z =
XL & SGiess $ s g g
g £5¢ O iu 285k 8 = : 7|8
Z 2 3 s = ml—g § G % a
fey3s mos ¢ g8 s |3
3 - & BE o” g 5 |5 |8
= ey \‘C\
i X

0, [
g}

B ff .-'J
V\E .l{f,
' T x'_?_r) ['II 1
[l
i ['; I."'l'; ] l.' | l_,_

™)

upech

) Erown Copy
‘Councll Licence hio- LANTE123, s |

! |
.ll.l ’f ’ ij |
A T '__‘IL—--
o fefg
[Sh]e ™
fa iy A
I = il
/ § .r"la'lr."f o r’A_‘g'
Jg :,FH % - o
“fy & | g
{ e 2L 2,
: 2¢ e g
I
1@ | 5

19181

with the permission of Ordfiance Surveyen.

behalf bf the Contralier of HMSO @

r
PYyT -

"%
\[Haltan Soroug

N

s

) ‘\\ 1
e vrpgogs iy No

referen
\\ \

by

X

e - s
n @ 3‘ e
w22 g
cESSEE ¢
=

P

\\
\.
\




Page 44 Agenda ltem 5e

REPORT TO: Urban Renewal Policy & Performance

Board

DATE: 20" June, 2007

REPORTING OFFICER: Strategic Director, Environment

SUBJECT: Urban Renewal Strategic Review & Action

Plan 2007-10

WARDS: Borough-wide

1.0

1.1

2.0

3.0

3.1

4.0

4.1

4.2

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

To lay before the Urban Renewal Policy & Performance Board a draft of
the Urban Renewal Strategic Review & Action Plan 2007-10 for
consideration.

RECOMMENDATION: That

(1) The Board review the attached Report with a view to
setting priorities and creating an Action Plan;

(2) The Board refer the Report to the Employment, Learning
and Skills and the Safer Halton Policy Boards for
consideration of how their activities complement and
support the Urban Renewal activities described within it;

(3) the ‘Urban Renewal Strategic Review and Action Plan
2007-10’, together with comments from the PPBs listed
in 2 (2) be referred to be Executive Board for approval.

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

The previous Urban Renewal Strategy and Action Plan covered the
period 2003 — 2006. This document is intended to update that strategy
and inform Urban Renewal developments through to 2010.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS

The Strategic review sets the Urban Renewal Strategy through to 2010
and is in accordance with national, regional, sub-regional and local
regeneration strategies and policies as set out in the document itself.

He nature of the policies and activities described naturally impact on, and
are impacted upon by, activities which are the responsibilities of the
Safer Halton and Employment, Learning and Skills Policy Boards. It is
therefore recommended that their views be sought on the report.



5.0

5.1

6.0

6.1

7.0

71

8.0

Page 45

OTHER IMPLICATIONS

The financial and other implications are set out in the Review.

RISK ANALYSIS

All of the planned programmes and projects have bee subject to formal
risk analyses, the results of which are included in the Risk Register.

EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES
All of the planned programmes and projects have bee subject to equality

and diversity analyses, the results of which are included in the corporate
E & D strategy.

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF THE
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972

Document Place of Inspection Contact Officer



Designed & Produced by Lynden Advertising, Liverpool.

It’s all happening
IN HALTON

o
HALTON

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Halton Borough Council
Major Projects Department
Environment Directorate
Municipal Building, Kingsway,
Widnes, Cheshire
WA8 7QF

Tel: 0151 471 7347
Fax: 0151 471 7418

www.castlefields.info
www.widneswaterfront.co.uk
www.3-mg.co.uk




)
_N\_ Draft

HALTON URBAN RENEWAL

URBAN RENEWAL
ACTIVITIES _ _
Strategic Review
& Action Plan

2007 - 2010




Page 48

Strategic Review &

!BAN RENEWAL

Action Plan
2007 - 2010

Contents

Page
1.0 FACTS & FIGURES 3
2.0 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 3
3.0 ENVIRONMENT 3
4.0 REGIONAL WORKING - ROLES & RESPONSIBILITIES 4
5.0 REGIONAL STRATEGIES 5
6.0 FUNDING 6
7.0 KEY URBAN RENEWAL PROIJECTS 9
8.0 HOUSING 14
9.0 TRANSPORT 20
10.0 SILVER JUBILEE BRIDGE 22
11.0 MERSEY GATEWAY 22
12.0 CONSULTATION 23
13.0 FUTURE OPPORTUNITIES 23
14.0 RAIL 23
15.0 BUSES 23
16.0 STREET LIGHTING 24
17.0 PRINCIPAL ROAD INFRASTRUCTURE 24
18.0 CONTAMINATED LAND 24
19.0 REMEDIATION FUNDING 25
20.0 CONTAMINATED LAND REMEDIATION TECHNOLOGIES 26
21.0 KEY URBAN RENEWAL ACHIEVEMENTS 27
22.0 URBAN RENEWAL WORKING STRUCTURES & PARTNERSHIPS 28
23.0 EMERGING POLICY ISSUES 29
24.0 SKILLS & EMPLOYMENT 30
25.0 HOUSING 31
26.0 TOWN CENTRES 32
27.0 REGIONAL ISSUES 32
28.0 MAJOR PROIJECTS 34
29.0 CONCLUSION 35




Page 49

1.0 FACTS & FIGURES
1.1 Population Trends

The population of Halton has been gradually falling
by an average of 300-400 each year since 1990,
reaching 118,200 by 2002. However since 2003 the
population of Halton started to rise from 118,200
to 118,800 in 2005.

This was followed up by the Office of National
Statistics (ONS) releasing its revised population
projections for the next 25 years. These are based
on the 2004 baseline, which predicts that Halton's
population will rise to around 120,000 by 2020
before stabilising at this figure until 2029.

This is a substantial improvement over the previous
prediction undertaken in 1996, which showed that
Halton's population would continue to slowly
decline each year until it reached 110,000 in 2021.

2.0 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

2.1 With regard to economic development,
Halton performs well in terms of its current
economic performance and infrastructure.
However, the findings suggest that current trends in
economic growth may present problems in the
future. Although Halton currently contains a high
proportion of employment in the knowledge driven
sectors, ranking 62nd out of 408 districts in the
country, employment in the knowledge economy
has been declining.

In 2002-03, just 30.7% of the employed workforce
was engaged in knowledge intensive occupations,
compared to 36.6% in the North West and 39.6%
in Great Britain. The proportion of businesses
operating in the knowledge economy is also low. In
2002, 25.7% of businesses fell into the knowledge
driven sectors, compared to 26.7% regionally and
30.1% nationally. This suggests that we should place
more emphasis on the knowledge economy in our
urban renewal agenda and ensure that future policy
drives this forward.

22 Halton also performs poorly in terms of
skills and qualification levels, ranking 342nd out of
408 districts. Such a low skills base could not
support a growth in knowledge economy based
jobs, which would result in well paid positions being
taken by people from outside the Borough.

o
HALTON

BOROUGH COUNCIL

This is highlighted by the occupational
breakdown for Halton, which reveals that ‘higher
end’ occupations (managerial, professional and
technical jobs) are significantly under-represented in
the Borough (11.4% compared to 14.4% in Great
Britain).

As the predicted key growth sector, it is important
that urban renewal links much more closely with
education and training to balance out this skills
mismatch.

3.0 ENVIRONMENT
3.1 Housing

3.1.1  Whilst house prices in Halton are below the
national and regional averages, the latest Housing
Needs Survey indicates an emerging affordability
issue arising from house price increases over the
last five years which have excluded many “first time
buyers” from the owner occupied market.

The average house price in Halton was £134,493 in
April-June 2006, compared to a regional average of
£146,600 and a national average of £198,952 at
June 2006. The percentage of owner-occupier
housing is slightly below the national average at
65.8% compared to 68.3% nationally.

3.2 Commercial and Industrial Property

321 Between 1985 and 2003, the amount of
industrial and commercial floorspace in Halton
grew by 31.9% - slightly higher than the national
rate of 23.5% and substantially higher than the
regional rate of 12.9%.

The floorspace profile, however, shows a marginally
higher proportion of industrial and commercial
space at 77.7% compared to 69.3% in the North
West and 66.3% in England as a whole. Retail and
office space is under represented at 10.5% and
11.9% respectively, which is substantially lower than
the national average of 19.2% and 16.8%.

Establishing more office accommodation and
attracting suitable private sector business is
important for the Borough, particularly in the town
centre areas as it helps support other trade
throughout the day and evening.

322 A commercial property review was recently
presented to the Borough's Policy & Performance




Board and this will no doubt have an impact on
future actions with regard to commercial property
developments.

3.3 Action for Sustainability

3.3.1  The main regional institutions are
committed to the Action for Sustainability agenda,
which aims to establish a firm foundation for
balancing the region’s economic, environmental and
social needs. A toolkit has been produced to aid the
development of environmental sustainability.

4.0 REGIONAL WORKING
- ROLES & RESPONSIBILITIES

4.1 The North West Regional Assembly

4.1.1  Perhaps one of the most significant
developments of recent times was the formation of
the North West Regional Assembly (NWRA) in
1997. This represents Local Authorities and other
key economic and social stakeholder
representatives in the region.

412 The NWRA presents a regional view to the
Government and European Union institutions on
issues or areas falling within the Assembly’s
competence and also provides a forum for
considering and debating any issues or policy
proposals, especially those of a relevant social,
economic or environmental nature at a regional
level and having an impact upon the people of
North West England.

413 Their role has principally been in the
promotion of planning, transport and sustainability
in the region. They were also involved in the
development of the Housing Strategy and the
Regional Housing Board.

414 The 'no’ vote on Elected Regional
Assemblies has forced the NVWRA to review its
core business and activities and focus on three main
functions: the scrutiny of the North \West
Development Agency (NWDA), a role as the North
West planning body and acting as a strategic focal
point for the region.

Despite this, there is still uncertainty over future
membership of the assembly and, therefore, whilst
Halton needs to continue to form allegiances with
the NWRA, it would also be prudent to strengthen

Page 50

links with Government departments, and the
Government Office.

4.2 North West Development Agency

The NWDA leads on economic development in the
region. In April 2005 the NWDA produced its first
Strategic Investment Plan, which outlines the
Agency's priorities for financial support over the
next three years. This is rolled forward annually.
Halton will need to continue to promote its key
capital projects for inclusion in the Plan.

4.3 The Mersey Partnership (TMP)

431 TMP is the economic development
partnership for the Merseyside sub -region. It is
now NWDA's Sub Regional Partner for Merseyside,
with strategic responsibility across the region'’s six
local authority areas. This adds to TMPs existing
responsibilities in economic development, inward
investment and tourism.

432 TMPs strategic goal is to encourage
economic growth through building a positive image
of the Liverpool City Region that will attract more
visitors to the area and at the same time build
confidence among those already living, working and
investing in the region.

The members of TMP reflect a broad and diverse
range of activities representing over 400 businesses
across the Liverpool City Region including
manufacturing and trading companies, six local
authorities, government agencies, universities, media
organisations, professional agencies, tourism and
conference businesses.

433 The Mersey Partnership's activities take
place in three core areas:

o Economic Development - co-ordinating
Merseyside's economic development activity
through the Merseyside Action Plan.

o Investment - bringing new business into
Merseyside and encouraging growth in existing
businesses.

o Tourism - promoting Liverpool and Merseyside's
tourism assets to increase visitor numbers and
grow the economic benefit to the Liverpool
City Region.




Page 51

5.0 REGIONAL STRATEGIES

5.1 Northern Way Growth Strategy

5.1.1  Moving Forward: the Northern \Way Growth
Strategy was launched in September 2004 by the
Office of the Deputy Prime Minister (ODPM).

Its key objective was to work with the three
northern Regional Development Agencies (RDAs)
to reduce the economic performance gap of £29
billion between the North and South-East of
England by 2025.

The Growth Strategy sets out a framework for
taking forward the key economic assets and
opportunities of eight City Regions in the North of
England, which includes the Liverpool City Region.

512  The Northern \Way Business Plan was
published in June 2005. This set out the plan to
implement an economic development strategy for
the North of England. It set out ten investment
priorities, including improving transport links,
bringing more people into employment,
strengthening the North's knowledge base and
driving innovation. To support the Northern \Way, a
£100m Growth Fund has been established by the
ODPM and the RDAs.

5.1.3  This means that cities rather than regions
are the focus for economic development, with the
Government view that successful core cities will
'pull up’ the economic performance of surrounding
areas. It is therefore important for Halton to work
with the Liverpool City Region to ensure that
Halton's major projects are included.

5.2 City Region Development Plan

521 The Liverpool City Region is bringing
forward a strategic prospectus or 'City Region
Development Plan’ which sets out priorities for
growing the economy of the sub-region and the
region as a whole.

522 The Liverpool City Region submitted an
interim report for the Northern \Way Steering
Group in January 2005. The Liverpool City Region -
Transforming Our Economy was produced in May
2005. It focused on issues, assets and opportunities
which are of strategic significance to the North of
England as a whole, and set out priorities for

o
HALTON

BOROUGH COUNCIL

investment in the sub-region, aimed at
generating major economic benefits and impacts.
The implementation plan brings transformational
projects for the sub-region to the fore.

5.3 Merseyside Economic Review

The latest Merseyside Economic Review was
launched in February 2007 and provides an update
on much of the economic evidence underpinning
the development of the City Region Development
Programme, Regional Economic Strategy Review
and other related strategic frameworks. The review
is published each year and the 2007 report reveals
some notable successes against major economic
indicators. Merseyside is performing well and in
2004 (latest data) produced a £17bn economy -
keeping pace with the UK, regional and city
comparators on most measures and in some cases
doing rather better: closing the gap.

54 Regional Economic Review

The NWDA commenced work on its Regional
Economic Strategy in April 2005. The new strategy
was published in March, 2006. This placed emphasis
on the issues arising from the Northern \Way
Growth Strategy, in particular focusing on Gross
Value Added (GVA) and increasing jobs.

5.5 Regional Planning Strategy
5.5.1

5.5.2  This Bill was given Royal Assent in May
2004. Part 1 of the Bill states that there will be a
regional spatial strategy (RSS) for each region in
England. The Regional Planning Body must keep the
RSS under review and monitor and report on its
implementation.

553 Part 2 provides for the preparation of local
development documents (LDDs) to replace local
plans, unitary development plans and structure
plans. Part 3 of the Bill includes a duty to
contribute to the achievement of sustainable
development. A series of development control
measures are introduced in Part 4 of the Bill.

554  There are two types of LDDs: Development
Plan Documents (DPDs), which are statutorily
tested and form part of the Development Plan, and
Supplementary Planning Documents (SPDs), which

Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.




are not statutorily tested and do not form part of
the Plan. It is expected that Halton will produce 22
SPDs including 3MG (Ditton Strategic Rail Freight
Park), Widnes Waterfront Economic Development
Zone and transport in Halton. Of these 22
documents 15 have been written and 7 adopted. It
will also produce possibly seven DPDs including
housing, employment and retail & leisure, in addition
to the core strategy.

5.6 Regional Spatial Strategy (RSS) and
Spatial Development Framework

5.6.1 Sub-regional strategic spatial proposals have
been submitted to the North \West Regional
Assembly. Further work is continuing, including a
refinement of policies, spatial options and
sustainability appraisals. The Merseyside partners
are also working together to ensure there is
synergy between the RSS and City Region
Development Plan (CRDP), e.g., recognising land
and spatial requirements emanating from the CRDP.

5.62 Due to the new status of RSS as part of the
‘development plan’, as set out in the new Planning
and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, the issues
arising in the new RSS are of significant importance
to Halton Borough Council and the production of
the new Halton Borough Local Development
Framework (LDF).

56.3 The RSS will also be used in the
determination of planning applications. Decisions
will now have to be made in accordance with the
RSS, unless other material considerations indicate
otherwise.

A number of policies within the UDP which are to
be saved will have to be agreed with the Secretary
of State by October 2007.

5.7 Unitary Development Plan

The Unitary Development Plan for Halton was
adopted in April 2005. It is in two parts. Part 1 gives
a written statement of Halton's strategic planning
policies and Part 2 forms the framework for the
use and development of land. It conforms with the
Regional Planning Guidance for the North \West
(now the Regional Spatial Strategy), and describes
the role that Halton will play in the development
and regeneration of the region as a whole.

Page 52

5.8 North West Regional Housing Strategy

The revised North West Regional Housing Strategy,
published in 2005, sets out the priorities for
strategic housing investment in the region. More
information on the Strategy is available in the
Housing section of this report. The Liverpool City
Region Housing Strategy is likely to be adopted in
the summer of 2007.

6.0 FUNDING

6.1 Generally - there are a number of funding
pots to help deliver urban regeneration within
Halton. The main sources are identified below, but
more specific funding for specialist areas such as
contaminated land are considered under their
appropriate headings. However, many more exist
and the sources of funding and funding criteria are
constantly changing. For example the Kingsway
Learning Centre accessed 14 different funding
sources, many of which no longer exist, highlighting
a continuing challenge for the Borough.

6.2 Gershon - The required 3% all-cash saving
each year presents a real issue for local authorities
and the urban renewal agenda has already suffered.
This is likely to continue as attempts are made to
achieve yet further 'savings'.

6.3 North West Development Agency Funding

6.3.1  When the over-programming funding problems
of the NWDA were discovered, Halton went through
a process of cutting back on all non-high priority
schemes in order to concentrate available funding on
those deemed to be the most important, such as
Widnes Waterfront. At the time, we were led to
believe this would safeguard funding for those
initiatives. This was not always the case, with a prime
casualty being the economic initiatives contained within
the Castlefields Regeneration Masterplan. Other
initiatives such as town centres, tourism and waterside
developments are also no longer likely to receive
funding, as the priorities have shifted.

6.3.2 Halton now comes within the remit of the
NWDA's Merseyside Office. This means that we are
competing with other Merseyside districts for funding.
Land values are higher there and match funding is
more easily available through Merseyside'’s ERDF
Objective 1 'Phasing In’ status. Given the competition




Page 53

for funding, this will be a challenging time for Halton.

6.4 SRB

After nine years, the Single Regeneration Budget
programme ceased in March 2006. In the final year
£865,760 was committed to nine projects.

An Evaluation Report of Halton's three SRB
schemes is to be published.

6.5 NRF

6.5.1  Neighbourhood Renewal Fund has been
awarded to areas with high levels of deprivation, in
order to help bring them up to the standard of
other areas.

6.52 It has currently been in place for 6 years, in
which time Halton has received £31m, with a
further £5.377m for 2007/08, after which time the
NRF programme will cease. Successor funding, if
any, will form part of the Government's
Comprehensive Spending Review, planned for
Autumn 2007. All indications are that renewal
funding, in whatever guise, will be at a reduced level
and far more targeted.

6.5.3 Urban Renewal, as a Halton priority, was
awarded £768,000 in 03/04, £1.031m in 04/05, and
£1.367m in 05/06. However, this dipped to
£887,000 in 06/07 and to £769,700 in 07/08.

6.6 European Funding

6.6.1 Up to 31st December 2006, Halton lay
within a European Objective 2 area where
European Structural Funding has been available.
The Objective 2 Programme has provided in excess
of £22m of ERDF for the delivery of projects in the
Borough.

6.6.2 Halton Borough Council was appointed as
Accountable Body for the European funding on
behalf of partners and has entered into an
agreement with the Government to do this.
State Aid support overall has been worth £61.3m
to Halton businesses.

6.6.3 In 2004, the European Union increased from
15 to 25 Member States and then to 27 in January
2007.This led to an acceptance that the bulk of the
funds would be allocated to the new Member

o
HALTON

BOROUGH COUNCIL

States of Eastern Europe.

6.6.4 The National Strategic Reference
Framework, used to allocate European Funding
nationally, was approved at the end of 2006 and
regional allocations for 2007-13 were set.

The allocations for the North West are:

o Rest of the North West £314m
o Merseyside £213m

6.6.5 This represents a 50% cut in resources
compared with the previous programme - a key
challenge to the borough.

6.6.6 The North West Operational Programme
(NWOP) is the guiding document which presents
key priorities and actions with regard to how
European Funding will be allocated and spent in the
North West during the period 2007-2013.

6.6.7 The NWOP is expected to be published in
September 2007.The new European Programme is
therefore likely to start late in 2007 or early 2008.
It is expected that the European Programme will
focus on the following priorities and action areas:

Priority 1  Stimulating Enterprise &
Supporting Growth in New
Sectors and Markets

AA1.1 Developing High Value New Enterprise

AA1.2 Developing Higher Added-Value Activity in
Target Regional Sectors

AA1.3 Increasing Sustainable Consumption and
Production

Priority 2  Exploiting Innovation &

Knowledge
AA2.1 Exploiting the Science and R&D Base of the
Region
AA2.2 Encouraging Innovation to Improve
Productivity in All Companies

AA2.3 Developing Better Management and
Leadership

Priority 3  Creating the Conditions for
Sustainable Growth

AA3.1 Access to Major Gateways in Merseyside
AA3.2 Developing High Quality Sites and Premises

of Regional importance




AA3.3 Supporting the Improvement of the Region's
Visitor Offer and its Image

Priority 4 Growing & Accessing

Employment

AA4.1 Stimulate Enterprise in Disadvantaged
Communities

AAA4.2 Supporting Linkages to Key Employment
Areas

AAA4.3 Supporting Employment Creation in Areas
of Regeneration Need

6.6.8 It will be important for Halton to continue
to develop links with the North West Development
Association since RDAs in the English Regions will
be key players in the management and allocation of
European and non-European resources earmarked
for regional development.

Halton's attitude is that there must be some form
of ongoing support for areas which have a
continuing legacy of deprivation and decline. It
would not be sensible to ignore the needs of areas
such as Halton which have the potential to achieve
and sustain regional economic growth.

6.6.9 There is a wish to strengthen work already
undertaken through the use of the European
Structural Funds to ensure that Halton continues to
rise out of industrial decline and emerge with a
leading 'knowledge based’ economy for the 21st
Century.

6.6.10 It is worth noting that Halton's unique
position with regard to how Gross Value Added
(GVA) and Gross Domestic Product (GDP) figures
are collated could place the borough at a significant
disadvantage in the allocation of successor funding.
Whilst Halton is ranked as the 21st most deprived
Borough in the Index of Multiple Deprivation, 2004,
the over-reliance on a high-value chemicals industry
skews these figures, giving the result that Halton
appears to be more affluent than is actually the
case.

The chemicals industry is highly capital intensive,
with relatively few people employed for the value of
production. Capital (plant) and raw materials are
imported from outside the borough, with little
benefit to Halton. Similarly, in the chemicals

Page 54

industry much of the activity is undertaken by
branch plants. This means that profit is extracted to
and investment decisions take place in other
countries. Another difficulty faced by Halton is that
the better-paid employees tend to live outside the
borough, giving a clear mismatch between GDP per
capita and levels of prosperity.\Work has been
completed to disaggregate these figures for Halton
and we have now started lobbying the Department
for Trade & Industry and the NWDA accordingly.

6.6.11 Halton Borough Council sees it as vital that,
as part of its lobbying strategy, it is able to
disaggregate GDP and GVA figures from the
chemicals industry, together with an appropriate
analysis of the Halton/Warrington Travel to \Work
Area, as Warrington's economic buoyancy
statistically masks Halton's problems.

6.7 Regional Selective Assistance

Over the period 1st April 1999 - 31st March 2004,
a total of £61.2m was invested in Halton businesses
with the support of both Regional Selective
Assistance and Enterprise Grant Schemes. This
funding supported 63 separate organisations, a total
of 4,971 jobs and includes £50m investment in
Ineos Chlor. That funding has largely ceased to be
available to Halton businesses.

6.8 Review of State Aid Rules

6.8.1 'State Aid' is public money used to support
private sector business activities. European
Commission rules are designed to ensure that if
businesses do receive financial support then they
should not be given an unfair commercial
advantage.

6.82 Some form of support is allowed, providing
this does not exceed permitted levels. Different
parts of the European Union are allowed to provide
different levels of support, dependent on how
affluent or poor they are considered to be.

6.83 The 2006 review of the Assisted Areas Map
left Halton outside the redefined area with effect
from 1st January 2007.

This means that the level of financial support which
the public sector can give to companies in Halton
has been reduced significantly. However, despite this




news, there are still opportunities to support
economic regeneration projects through special
exemptions and exclusions.

6.9 National Lottery

6.9.1 National Lottery funding has been very
successfully used across Halton for a number of
arts, community, heritage and sports projects. In
2002, 51 grants were awarded, totalling £1,719,651;
in 2003 this increased to 63 grants totalling
£3,393,076, whilst up until August 2004, 36 grants,
totalling £487,053 were awarded. Between April
1995 and March 2005, Halton received £25,616,657
from a total of 394 grants.

6.9.2 By April 2006, Halton had moved up from
13th to 12th position in the league of North \West
authorities that record the amount of funding
received from the National Lottery. In April 2004,
regionally, Halton was in 18th position. By April
2005, we had improved by 6 places to 13th
position.

6.9.3 Funding is allocated through the following
lottery distributors:

6.9.3.1

'‘Awards for All' is a joint lottery programme funded
by the Arts Council England; Big Lottery Fund;
Heritage Lottery Fund and Sport England. It offers
grants for arts, heritage or community projects of
from £500 to £5,000.

Awards For All

6.9.32 Big Lottery Fund

‘The Big Lottery Fund' has been formed from the
Community Fund and New Opportunities Fund. It
is responsible for 50% of the money going to good
causes and will offer a range of grant programmes,
from smaller grants at a local level through to large
capital projects. It will continue to fund charities,
the voluntary sector, education, health and the
environment, but will also support large-scale
regeneration projects.

6.9.3.3 Arts Council England

Arts Lottery funding is spent on a wide range of
projects, including the construction and
refurbishment of arts venues, arts activity and
public participation in the arts.

o
HALTON

BOROUGH COUNCIL

6.9.34 Heritage Lottery Fund

Halton was a priority area for Heritage Lottery
funding until March 2006.

The Heritage Lottery Fund distributes money
raised by the National Lottery to support all
aspects of heritage, from historical buildings and
museums to nature conservation. It helps
community projects with relatively small amounts,
as well as multi-million pound developments and
can fund both capital and revenue projects. In the
last 18 months, 14 heritage projects have been
funded within Halton.

6.9.3.5 Sport England

Sport England is responsible for delivering the
Government's sporting objectives. It is committed
to creating opportunities for people in the North
West Region to start in sport, stay in sport and
succeed in sport.

7.0 KEY URBAN RENEWAL
PROIJECTS

Halton has a number of key urban renewal projects
currently ongoing or to be delivered in the near
future. These are:

1.1 The Castlefields Regeneration Programme

7.1.1  The Castlefields Masterplan was approved,
following public consultation, by all partners
(including English Partnerships) at the end of 2003
and became the basis of a Supplementary Planning
Document, which was adopted by the Borough
Council in 2005. Proposals included:

o The creation of a new link road to provide
direct access to a proposed new local centre
and existing community facilities.

o A programme of pedestrian and cycle link
improvements, to improve access to facilities;

o Street lighting improvements on Castlefields
Avenue North;

o The development of a state-of-the-art youth
activity park, the Phoenix Park, including a skate
park, flood-lit multi-use games area, a climbing
boulder and play areas; the release of land for
the development of new houses for sale.




10

112
the selective demolition of over 700 problem deck-
access flats and the building of aimost 400 new homes.

Excellent progress has already been made in

7.1.3  NWDA funding has still to be secured to
allow the skills and workforce development
elements of the Masterplan to be delivered.

714 £7m of further funding, over and above that
committed to the implementation of the
Regeneration Masterplan has been secured from
the Housing Corporation to continue housing
renewal projects until 2010. Coupled with
additional funding promised by the RSLs, this will
help deal with all but two of the remaining problem
blocks.

7.1.5  However, further regeneration work under
Phase 2 of the Masterplan will still remain to be
completed. Therefore funding is being sought from
the Housing Corporation and English Partnerships
to allow this to be effected.

1.2 Widnes Waterfront Economic
Development Zone

721 The Widnes Waterfront EDZ area will
become a strategically important ‘Gateway’
development, linking the region's ‘Metropolitan Axis’
along the M62 Corridor with the ‘Southern
Crescent’ along the M56.The Council appointed
the Manchester-based consultancy, building Design
Partnership, to undertake a masterplanning exercise
in 2002 which provided a framework for the
transformation of the southern part of Widnes over
six years to create around 2,700 new jobs.

722  This Masterplan was agreed in 2003 for the
80 ha.Widnes Waterfront site which is located
adjacent to the River Mersey. It set out a key vision
and outputs for the area, to be delivered through a
set of projects. These include landscaping and
environmental upgrades, enhancing existing business
premises, road works and signage, marketing and
training which engages with local businesses.

This Masterplan has subsequently been converted
into a Supplementary Planning Document.

723  £5.59m has been committed from the NVWDA
to add to the £8m of ERDF and £3m of Halton
Borough Council funding to assist with the

Page 56

regeneration. This will support the considerable public
and private sector investment which is already
bringing forward new office and industrial park, retail
and commercial leisure developments.

1.3 3MG - Mersey Multimodal Gateway
(formerly known as Ditton Strategic Rail
Freight Park or DSRFP)

731 3MG will utilise brownfield land for rail-
related warehousing (up to 200,000 M?), new rail
sidings, a new link road to the A5300 Knowsley
Expressway and the generation of 5,000 jobs over a
10-year period (and potentially up to 8,000 in 15/20
years time).

732  The site is 26 hectares in total and will
result in derelict and contaminated land being
brought back into productive use. There will be
lasting improvements to the environment and 195
million HGV kms will be removed from the UK
road network per annum. The cost of the
regeneration over five years has been estimated at
£80m. The UDP Public Inquiry Planning Inspectors'’
Report's recommendations gave clear support for
the creation of 3MG, stating that "...through a rare
combination of advantages the Rail Freight Park is
accepted to be a project of exceptional potential
worth.”

7.3.3  The Masterplan for this site was approved
by Halton Borough Council in December 2004.

7.34  The Supplementary Planning Document for
3MG has been adopted by the Borough Council.

7.35  Planning Permission for 75,000 M? of new
rail-related warehousing space has subsequently
been granted to Drawbridge Securities Ltd., for the

Innovis development on land formerly owned by
AHC at West Bank.

Planning permission for an extensive landscaping
scheme at HBC Fields was secured by Halton
Borough Council in 2006 with implementation
planned for 2007. Negotiations with Network Rail
and design work are on-going over the replacement
of the Hale Road bridge.

7.3.6 Common facilities will need to be effectively
managed 'in common’ for the effective working of
3MG.To this end, Halton Borough Council is




Page 57

negotiating the establishment of a management
company with the private sector to achieve this.

A further key issue for Halton Borough Council is
the future disposal and development of 'HBC Fields.

14 New Mersey Crossing
- The Mersey Gateway

The Mersey Gateway is being promoted by the
Mersey Crossing Group which includes public and
private sector bodies. A Major Scheme Appraisal
was submitted to the Government in July 2003 and
approved in 2006.

A project team has been established and work is
ongoing, in preparation for the submission of a
planning application expected in 2008.

1.5 Business Parks Improvement Programme

75.1  The Council is currently delivering a
programme of regeneration to businesses on local
industrial estates. Steering Groups have been set up
on individual estates in order that businesses can
formulate action plans to improve their own area.

15.2  The Business Parks Improvement
Programme offers grants to enhance business
premises, improve safety and security and improve
the environment on older industrial estates.

To date, site improvements have been made on
each of the Tanhouse and Gorsey Lane, Astmoor,
Halebank and Riverview Industrial Estates.

1.6 St Michael’s Golf Course

Major remediation works are planned at St
Michael's Golf Course, to be funded by DEFRA, in
order to seal in contaminated material and install a
leachate collection and treatment facility.

Further phases will remould the land and re-
establish fairways, greens and tees for the continued
use of the site as a municipal golf course. More on
this can be found in the contaminated land section
of the report.

1.7 Halebank Regeneration

A new-build 'Co-op’ convenience store opened in
mid-August 2004, to coincide with the closure of
the old ASDA supermarket. Planning permission
was obtained for 156 new houses to be built on

o
HALTON

BOROUGH COUNCIL

the former ASDA site and work is now
underway. A Supplementary Planning Document
has been approved by the Borough Council.

78 Halton Stadium

A new East Stand was opened in September 2005
as the final development stage of the Stadium.

The East Stand has a capacity of approximately
2,500, taking the overall capacity of Halton Stadium
to about 13,500.The Stadium is Council owned and
provides an excellent events venue which is well
patronised.

79 Halton Castle

79.1  Halton Borough Council was gifted this
Grade | Listed Building by the Duchy of Lancaster
in September 2002 under a 99yr Guardianship
Agreement and Norton Priory Museum Trust
(NPMT) has subsequently agreed to manage the
site.

792 Halton Castle has problems with vandalism,
youth nuisance and drinking. NPMT and the Council
have been working together in an attempt to
resolve these issues.

79.3  The Council has recently invested £50,000
to secure the site and make it safer. This has funded
essential masonry repairs, together with
interpretative fencing which reflects the history of
the Castle.

794 A successful preliminary bid for funding
from the Heritage Lottery Fund was submitted in
Spring 2005. This has funded consultancy work for a
Conservation Management Plan and Access Plan in
advance of submitting the main bid to HLF.

7.9.5 The ultimate aim is to renovate and enhance
Halton Castle with links to Norton Priory and the
Town Park.

It is hoped to develop a visitor centre, lighting of
the castle (if vandalism issues can be addressed) and
general enhancement of the site's special features,
including sunken garden and 'lock-ups'.

7.10

The second phase of landscape works on this site
were completed in June 2005.

Wigg Island

11



12

This includes new cycleways and footpaths, as well
as an outdoor ‘classroom’. A new Visitor Centre will
be opened in summer 2007.

7.1

This programme of works aims to reclaim land
adjacent to strategic corridors and gateways into
Merseyside. £70,000 Neighbourhood Renewal
Funding has enhanced the major routes through the
Borough as part of the 'Strategic Routeways
Programme.’ This has involved major landscaping
works, including new planting, management of
existing trees and woodlands, tidying verges and
bulb planting.

1.12

7.121 The Borough of Halton is unusual in having
three distinct town centres, each of which provide
an essential service for the community it serves.
Since the end of the last century, Widnes and
Runcorn have grown to meet the needs of their
separate communities. The third centre, known as
Halton Lea, is the result of a decision in the early
1960's to develop the New Town area of Runcorn.

New Approaches

Town Centres

7.122  All three town centres have changed in
recent times and more change is planned with
public and private sector involvement.

7.12.3  Such development in town centres is guided
by national and regional planning policy advice,
including Planning Policy Statement 6 (PPS6), which
aims to sustain their vitality and viability.

It requires local authorities to develop effective
town centre strategies in partnership with the
private sector, as part of the development plan
process. Halton currently has an overall town
centre strategy and three separate, more detailed
strategies for each of the town centres dating from
1997.These are in the process of being updated.

Supplementary Planning Documents (SPDs) for
Runcorn Town Centre and Halton Lea are currently
being developed, whilst \Widnes will have an Area
Action Plan - a detailed document, which will set
and prioritise development objectives as well as
specifying and co-ordinating requirements for new
infrastructure and services. Funding for this work
has not yet been identified.

Page 58

7.13

7.13.1  Widnes is the largest of the three town
centres, with approximately 46,450M2 of retail
floorspace in over 350 separate units.

Widnes Town Centre

It also has both an indoor and an outdoor

market. \Widnes has developed from a traditional
'‘High Street’, with the addition of the new ASDA
and the regeneration of Albert Square, Green Oaks
and the Windmill Centre. There is a wide mix of
retailers providing a more comprehensive shopping
offer than at the other two centres.\Widnes is one
of the top 10 performing centres in the North
West over the last 10 years, showing a 66% growth
in prime retail rents.

7.13.2 Progress to date:

Widnes Town Centre has seen the addition of a
number of new retail units and enhancement
schemes in the last five years. These include:

1) Relocation of the ASDA store from Halebank
to Widnes town centre, providing 4,180M?
of retail space and 470 car parking spaces;

2) New 9,290M? JIB Fitness Centre and retail
store;

3) New road at Marzahn \Way;
4) Revamping of retail units at Albert Road;

3) New retail units at Gerrard Street, Liebig Court
and Simms Cross, all adjacent to the new ASDA
store;

4) New town centre housing at Alfred Court and
‘The Element at Liebig Court’;

5) 40 new homes provided at Lacey Street;

6) Streetscape improvements to both Widnes
Road and Albert Road;

7) A Home Zone development of the 'Streets
Ahead’ project around the new ASDA site;

7) The Windmill Centre redevelopment and
creation of new retail space;

8) Streetscape improvements to Victoria Square,
including new paving and street furniture;

9) A new Mental Health Centre in Broseley
Square, together with the new Primary Care
Centre on Moor Lane;




Page 59

10) Residential developments over bar/restaurant
provision in two developments at Victoria
Square;

11) A programme of shop-front improvements
throughout the town centre.

1.13.3 What is planned for the future?:

1. Widnes Town Centre is constrained from
widening by housing and road infrastructure,
but consideration is being given to the future of
adjoining sites such as the Widnes Waterfront
and the 'P&O site’ for development with
appropriate uses. For example, the P&O site
has been considered in the UDP (Policy TC3)
as suitable for retail, warehousing and leisure
(after 2011), while the construction of a new
B & Q store on Dennis Road will take retailing
into the EDZ.

2. The Council is also welcoming plans for a
leisure development on Venture Fields.

3. As Widnes Waterfront is developed, it is
recognised that there is a need to develop
better links to the town centre. To facilitate
this, junction modifications are being
implemented. A new gyratory on Fiddlers Ferry
Road is being created in order to improve
access by foot and cycle.

4. The production and adoption of the proposed
Action Area Plan will be key to the delivery and
change proposed to be delivered within \Widnes.

1.14

7.14.1  Building upon the investment made by the
Council and the private sector, particularly in the
renovation of Victoria Buildings, further regeneration
initiatives are currently in progress in this area to
enhance the evening/weekend economy.

Victoria Square/Queens Hall

7.14.2 Progress to date:

The Kingsway Learning Centre, which is within the
Victoria Square Conservation area, opened
following a £7m refurbishment of the original
Widnes Library/\Widnes Technical College/St Paul’s
Youth Centre building. A complete lifelong learning
package is offered at the centre including an
improved and extended \Widnes Library, a
Neighbourhood Nursery, Sure Start New Steps,

o
HALTON

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Connexions & Youth Service, as well as
Adult Learning facilities.

7.14.3 What is planned for the future?

7.144 The Council intends the redevelopment of
the Halton Business Forum (the former Widnes
Town Hall) into new bars and restaurants.
However, this development has been delayed by the
failure of private sector partners.

7.145 Encouraged by the regeneration successes
to date, other private sector-led proposals have
begun to emerge around Victoria Square. Two
prominent public houses are being redeveloped as
bars with residential apartments above; a retail unit
has been converted into a restaurant; and shop
units have been, and are continuing to be, converted
into wine bars.

1.15

7.15.1  Runcorn 'Old Town' operates as a small
market town and as such incorporates a number of
individual niche market traders, some of whom have
been there for many years.

Runcorn Town Centre

7.15.2 Progress to date:

7.15.3 The centre has seen much private sector
investment as a result of traders improving their
shop frontages (with the aid of SRB and NRF
funding). Although this centre serves a fairly
localised catchment, the area is usually very busy,
with parking often difficult to find. However,
Runcorn Town Centre has fewer than half of the
multiple retailers of the other two Halton centres.

7.154 The Brindley, Halton's purpose-built theatre
and arts centre, opened in November 2004. It
provides a 420-seat theatre, 108-seat studio, other
flexible space as well as exhibition and gallery
space, together with associated refreshment
facilities, all overlooking the Bridgewater Canal.
The Town Centre survey of people in Runcorn
Town Centre worryingly identified a reluctance to
visit that centre during the evening. The Brindley is
overcoming this challenge with a vibrant Show and
Events programme.

7.15.5 Runcorn Town Centre has seen many new
developments in the last five years, which include:

13



14

1) A new campus for the Riverside College;
2) A new Market Hall with additional shop units;

3) The new Halton Direct Link facility that will
offer residents a ‘one-stop-shop’ experience for
council-related business;

4) A new Somerfields supermarket with
associated car park

5) The new Bus Station interchange;

6) Upgrading of car parking and access at Runcorn
Railway Station;

7) The new Brindley Arts Centre
8) A new link road at Leiria \Way

7.156  What is planned for the future?:

A joint venture between Halton Borough Council
and award-winning developers Urban Splash has
been established to secure the development of the
Canal Quarter alongside the Bridgewater Canal.
This will bring new retail, residential and civic
amenities to the town centre. The development will
also include the site of the former Crosville Bus
depot, on the opposite side of the canal. Still the
subject of further work and discussion, this
programme technically began late in 2006 with a
planning application, with the development due to
commence in early 2007.

A DIY store for Homebase is being constructed on
the Daresbury Expressway, while 450 residential
apartments are being built in "The Deck'
development on the waterfront adding considerably
to the vitality of the Town Centre.

7.16

7.16.1 Halton Lea is a custom-built, elevated and
covered shopping mall with 4 dedicated multi-storey
car parks offering 1,950 free car parking spaces
(excluding Trident and ASDA parking). Surrounding
this main structure, the Trident Retail Park and
ASDA superstore have been developed in the last
ten years.

Halton Lea

Halton Lea encompasses 46,450M? of shopping
space with a range of national multiple retailers
within the centre. It is also close to the police
station, library and Halton Direct Link, together with
Post Office and Job Centre.

Page 60

7.16.2  The Town Centre User Survey showed
general customer satisfaction with Halton Lea
shopping centre. They were happy with the
cleanliness of the main shopping area and public
facilities were considered well maintained, whilst
public perception of safety was very high.

1.16.3 What is planned for the future?:

There are proposals for an extension of the
existing general retail provision at Halton Lea
incorporating a new superstore. There are also
plans for an extension to the ASDA development.

7.17  Astmoor Industrial Estate

Parts of the Astmoor industrial estate will be
affected by the new Mersey crossing. The estate
was built as part of the Runcorn new town
development in the 1970s and 1980s. Many of the
units no longer reflect the needs of modern
business. For example the car parking provision is
inadequate, servicing access is poor and the units
are not of sufficient internal height for some
industrial uses.

8.0 HOUSING

8.1 The two largest sites for residential
developments in the Borough over the past decade
or so have been at Upton Rocks in Widnes and
Sandymoor in Runcorn. The focus on providing a
broader range of housing types by concentrating on
more executive styles of property has led to an
increase in the number and proportion of
managerial and professional socio-economic groups
living in the Borough. At the time of the 1991
census, these groups accounted for just 14% of
total households. By 2001, this figure had increased
to 19%, while the number of detached houses
showed a similar increase. A wider choice of house
types does seem to produce a more rounded
spectrum of socio-economic groups.

8.2 Demand for housing is reliant upon prices
and mortgage rates.\When both of these rates were
relatively low, demand for social housing significantly
decreased. However after several years of large
price rises in the housing market, home-ownership
is no longer so affordable to those in lower income
groups and demand for social housing is again on




Page 61

the increase. Indeed, the local housing waiting list
has increased by 23% since 2004.

8.3 The Halton Housing Needs & Market
Assessment Survey, completed at the end of 2005,
provides the most comprehensive and up-to-date
information available on current and future housing
needs and preferences of households living in the
Borough. The Survey found that, despite house
prices in Halton being lower than the regional and
national averages, there is an emerging affordability
issue caused by the relationship between local
incomes and the realistic supply of the cheapest
stock available. The average price of a terraced
dwelling increased by over 150% between 2000 and
2005, exceeding local income inflation by over 7
times. Consequently, access to the market for first
time buyers is very limited. The cheapest 2 bedroom
terraced house in the Borough requires a minimum
income of £21,900 and 79% of concealed households
(i.e. someone living within a household who wishes
to move to their own accommodation and form a
separate household) earn below £20,000.

84 The Housing Needs Survey identified a need
for 176 affordable housing units per annum, after
allowing for current re-let supply, and recommends
this be achieved through the adoption of an
affordable housing policy within the Local
Development Framework, which contains a 25%
target for new units to be developed as subsidised
affordable housing.

8.5 The Needs Survey also recommended that
the supply of small units be improved to address
the future needs and preferences of increasingly
smaller households and that a comprehensive
delivery strategy to address future housing for the
elderly and for care needs be developed to cater
for an increasingly ageing population, with a
particular emphasis on extra care accommodation.
The Survey found a relatively high proportion of
households contained at least one person with a
disability or limiting long-term illness and
recommended the development of a register of
adapted property and disabled people needing
adapted accommodation to ensure their specific
needs are met and that best use is made of the
existing adapted stock.

o
HALTON

BOROUGH COUNCIL

8.6 The National Context:

86.1 In December 2000, the Government
published ‘Housing Policy Statement - The \Way
Forward for Housing'. This document set out a
wide range of policies determining the
Government's aim that everyone should have the
chance of a decent home.

86.2 In 2003, 'Sustainable Communities: Building
for the Future’ was published, which seeks to
create the framework for a sustainable housing plan
for the nation. This set out a number of national
priorities for housing under two broad headings:-

1) Achieving a better balance between demand
and supply, which includes tackling low demand;
ensuring 60% new build on brownfield land;
increasing the supply of affordable housing to
key workers and reducing homelessness;

2) By 2010, to make all social housing ‘decent’ and
to reduce the proportion of private sector
housing occupied by vulnerable groups that is
not decent.

86.3 'The Sustainable Communities - Homes for
All' Plan was published in 2005 and sets out an
£18m investment for housing in the North \West,
to tackle low demand outside of the pathfinder
areas. Both Liverpool and Manchester City Regions
have commissioned consultants to develop City
Region Housing Strategies, which will help to
identify areas in need of this additional funding.

864 The Government also established Regional
Housing Boards that have developed Regional
Housing Strategies to target investment to regional
housing priorities.

87 North West Regional Housing Strategy
2005

The North West Regional Housing Strategy 2005
sets out a number of key priority areas. These are:

1) Urban renaissance and dealing with changing
demand;

2) Providing affordable homes to maintain
balanced communities;

3) Delivering decent homes in thriving
neighbourhoods;

15



16

4) Meeting the region’s needs for specialist and
supported housing.

8.8 Urban renaissance and dealing with
changing demand

This regional priority aims to address changing
demand across the North West, particularly the
contrast between the hot-spots and other areas
where increasing numbers of properties are vacant,
experience high turnover or are subject to falling
house prices. The North West has the largest
concentration of low demand areas in the country.
The 'Pathfinder’ areas cover about half of the
homes affected by low demand. There is also a
great deal of housing which, although not suffering
the worst extremes of low demand, can be
classified as ‘at risk. This priority looks to maximise
the impact of the market renewal Pathfinders,
whilst also developing a targeted approach to
preventing further market failure in other areas at risk.

8.8.1

In order to deliver this investment agenda, the
NWDA, Government Office North West (GONW),
the Housing Corporation and English Partnerships
are seen as having important roles to play.

The reality is that Housing Market Renewal Areas,
or 'Pathfinder’ areas, will receive a significant
proportion of the available funding. Halton has not
been identified as a priority Pathfinder area and
therefore cannot hope to benefit significantly from
this funding source. However, the draft Liverpool
City Region Housing Strategy identifies areas such
as Castlefields, Windmill Hill and \West Bank as
vulnerable housing markets. It is hoped that this will
strengthen the case for investment under this
priority. There are, however, limited funds available
for investment outside of the Pathfinder area and
Halton is only one of a number of authorities which
will be seeking investment.

The Halton Perspective:

89 Providing affordable homes to maintain
balanced communities

89.1  This priority aims to tackle areas where
increasing house prices have forced many, including
key workers, out of the housing market. The strategy
hopes to address the shortages of affordable
housing in these areas.

Page 62

8.9.2

89.2.1 Despite the findings of the Housing Needs
Survey, affordability issues in Halton are not as extreme
as those experienced in some other areas of the
region, e.g., Macclesfield and Southport, and the Borough
does not experience particular problems with key
workers being unable to afford to live in the area.
Therefore, Halton is unlikely to benefit from this priority.

The Halton Perspective:

89.22 To bring a spatial dimension to the

Regional Housing Strategy, the Regional Housing
Board have devised a high level typology of housing
markets which describes in general terms the ways
in which housing markets function in different parts
of the region.

The typologies used are: unbalanced markets,
balanced markets, high value/demand, low value
with potential, high value/rural towns, high
value/potential, rural/commuter pressure and city
centre market. Halton falls within the balanced
market typology where demand/supply is roughly in
equilibrium but with possible pockets of low
demand or affordability problems.

The recommendation for this typology is for
planning policies to continue to meet demand with
an appropriate balance of affordable provision.
Halton aims to develop an Affordable Housing
Policy in 2008 as part of the Local Development
Framework process on the strength of evidence
from the Housing Needs Survey.

810  Delivering decent homes in thriving

neighbourhoods

8.10.1 This priority aims to address the physical
condition of properties in the North \West. All
social housing tenants are required to have ‘decent
homes' by 2010 in order to meet the Government
target.

8102 The Halton Perspective:

8.10.2.1 Although Council housing stock (6,680
dwellings in 2004) was generally well maintained,
the scale of work required to meet this target
required a much greater investment. It is estimated
that 54% of the Council stock failed to meet the
decent homes standard compared to a national
average of just over 40%, with an investment of
£85m required by 2010.As a result, Halton Borough




Page 63

Council transferred its stock to a newly created
Housing Trust in December 2005, following a
positive ballot of tenants.

8.10.2.2 Significant investment is not only required
into public sector, but also into private sector
housing, for which there is a secondary target 'to
reduce the number of owner occupied dwellings
occupied by vulnerable households that fail the
Decent Homes Standard'. Halton's Private Sector
House Condition Survey was undertaken in 2002,
before this requirement came into being, and the
Council consequently has no detailed information
on how many households in Halton fall into this
category. Recognising this as a problem facing many
authorities, the Government has developed a model
based on the findings of the English House
Condition Survey that will produce an
approximation of the numbers in each authority
area.

For Halton, the model suggests that 65.7% of the
homes occupied by vulnerable households currently
meet the decent homes standard, which matches
the 65% target set by Government for achievement
by 2006. This figure will be used as the baseline for
future monitoring until the next housing condition
survey can provide more accurate data. In the
meantime, it is proposed that grants awarded under
the new Private Sector Housing Renewal Strategy
will be used to bring homes occupied by vulnerable
households up to the Decent Homes Standard.

8.10.2.3 Halton Borough Council is working to
establish a Home Improvement Agency, which will
act as a 'one-stop-shop’ to assist applicants through
the grants process. A Landlord Accreditation
Scheme has recently been established in
conjunction with the Private Landlords Forum, to
improve conditions and drive up standards of
private rented property.

811  Registered Social Landlords (RSLs)
(excluding the Halton Housing Trust) owned 7,668
dwellings in Halton in 2006. Most of these were
constructed in the late 1960's and 1970's. However,
latest information suggests that only 8% of these
properties currently fail the decency target and
there is confidence that they will meet the 2010
target.

o
HALTON

BOROUGH COUNCIL

812  Figures from the Private Sector

Stock Condition

A Survey carried out in 2002 show that the average
SAP value (a measure of energy efficiency on a
scale of 1 to 120) of private sector dwellings is 48 -
better than the national average of 44. It also
indicates that 82% of private sector properties have
central heating.

813  Regional Priority 4: Meeting the region’s
needs for specialist and supported housing looks at
how best to meet the needs of our most
vulnerable residents. This includes older people,
people with learning disabilities, people with mental
health problems, people with physical disabilities,
victims of domestic violence, people with drug
and/or alcohol-addictions, teenage mothers and ex-
offenders.

8.13.1

8.13.2 Current demographic predictions for Halton
show a growing elderly population and increasing
demands for a variety of housing types such as
bungalows, supported housing and residential care.
With existing waiting lists for such provision, this
issue will be a key challenge for the future, as our
elderly population increases.

The Halton Perspective:

8.13.3 Halton is in the process of developing an
‘Extra Care Housing' scheme in Palacefields,
Runcorn. This will provide over 40 units of
supported accommodation for elderly people, giving
older people more choice and independence.

8.13.4 A new private retirement homes scheme
has also been developed in Peel House Lane,
Widnes and there are proposals to provide at least
one further such development in Widnes. However
the public sector provision of bungalows and other
suitable retirement homes is under pressure, with
demand currently exceeding availability.

With a growing elderly population, as identified
above, this situation is likely to worsen and needs
to be addressed.

8135 The Council's Planning Department has
produced a Supplementary Planning Document
(SPD) for housing entitled Design of New Residential
Development. This takes into account changing

17



18

housing needs, promoting 'lifetime homes’ which are
built to be accessible and meet the occupants’
lifelong needs. It encourages a greater provision of
homes suitable for the elderly, e.g., bungalows,
which developers are often reluctant to build
because they have a greater footprint on the
ground - allowing fewer to be built on available
land, which makes them less economically viable.
This is further exacerbated by planning guidance,
which encourages house-building to be of increased
density.

8.13.6 Because of the variety of people this
priority is hoping to address, it is important that a
wide range of partners work together to establish
need, map existing provision and develop strategies
accordingly.

8.13.7 Financial resources provided by the Regional
Housing Board to local authorities will primarily be
allocated to fund Priorities 1 and 3. Funding for
Priorities 2 and 4 will be administered through the
Housing Corporation via RSLs. As Halton is unlikely
to be allocated funding under Priorities 1 and 3, we
will rely on funding under Priorities 2 and 4 from
the Housing Corporation. The Regional Housing
Board has, in principle, agreed further significant
funding for Halton toward the next phase of the
Castlefields redevelopment. However, this may
restrict the amount of additional funding we are
allocated for other priority areas, leading to
another real challenge for Halton.

8.13.8 This challenge is likely to intensify should
there be a continuing realignment of the regional
housing pot with the Regional Housing Strategy,
which seems likely to happen. The funding safety net
currently in place for areas is likely to diminish, with
areas allocated funding under Priorities 1 and 2
taking greater shares year on year and others such
as Halton having to cope with fewer resources.

8.14

The implications of the Regional Housing Strategy
are addressed through the Halton Housing
Partnership. This comprises representatives from
the Council and the larger RSLs. In addition Halton
plays an active role in a number of cross
authority/agency groups. These include the North
West Housing Forum, the Merseyside Housing

Halton Partnership Approach

Page 64

Forum, the Merseyside Planning and Housing
Officers Group and the M62 Corridor Group.
This enables us to further our understanding of
market change and to adopt common goals where
appropriate.

8.15

A considerable amount of research has been
undertaken which helps inform Halton's Housing
Strategy. The key issues and trends are summarised
as follows:-

8.16

The Council has sought to stabilise Halton's falling
population through economic growth, improving
the environment and providing attractive new
housing. As mentioned earlier, the average
household size is decreasing in Halton, whilst the
proportion of single person households is
increasing. According to the 2001 census, the
number of households has increased by 3,000 from
45,857 in 1991. However, Council Tax records
suggest an increase of nearly 6,000 to 51,000
showing that the trend towards smaller households
is sustaining the demand for increased housing
provision.

8.17

8.17.1 The social rented sector has remained
relatively static within Halton for some time, whilst
the private sector has nearly doubled. In 2006 there
were 13,882 social rented properties (26%), as
compared to 38,733 (74%) private sector
properties. Despite this, the social rented sector
still represents an unusually large proportion of the
housing stock when compared to the North West
figure of 20% and the national figure of 19%
(Census 2001).

Housing Market Research

Population

Housing Tenure

8.17.2 The Housing Needs Survey found that
about 4% of the total of Halton's housing stock is
privately rented and it is estimated that these
properties are owned by approximately 600
different landlords.

8.18

8.18.1 Housing markets in Widnes and Runcorn

operate separately, with little or no interaction
(1997 DTZ Pieda Urban Capacity Study).

The Private Sector




Page 65

The Housing Needs Survey identified that 39% of
households who moved into the Borough over the
last 3 years were from Merseyside, 16% from
Cheshire, 13% from Warrington, 17% from outside
the North West and 6% from abroad. The majority
of households moving into the Borough were
owner occupiers with a mortgage (56.2%) and a
fifth of households said the most important reason
for moving into the Borough was employment
related, with a further fifth stating that they wished
to move to a larger home. There are indications,
therefore, that the local housebuilding policy has
helped address population decline to some extent,
whereas in the past the lack of such housing caused
people to move away to neighbouring areas.

8.18.2 Average house prices within Halton tend to be
lower than Merseyside and the North \West, but are
significantly lower than those for England/\Wales.A high
proportion of properties built in recent years have
been in the upper price bracket. Reflecting land
availability and demand, these have mainly been located
on the fringes of the Borough. Land contamination and
lack of available sites in the inner parts of the Borough
has limited development. However, with 70% of
properties in the lower Council Tax bands, this has
helped to address the imbalance in the range and type
of property available.

8.18.3 The Council estimates that to address
population decline 500 dwellings a year need to be
built, but Regional Planning Guidance in 2003 set a
target of 330 for Halton. However, the draft revised
Regional Spatial Strategy proposes a target of 500 for
Halton, but with limits on how much of this can be
built on greenfield land. Given the land contamination
issues mentioned in a previous paragraph this could
cause some difficulties in meeting the target.

8.19 The Social Rented Sector

In Halton, 26% of housing is within the social rented
sector. This relatively high level has been sustained, due
to significant unemployment, a low wage economy and
other deprivation issues. Findings from the Housing
Needs Survey found that the current market situation,
in terms of affordable housing, is increasing demand in
the social rented sector and that overcrowding in
social housing may be a result of this. The Survey also
identifies that there may be a need for RSLs to consider

o
HALTON

BOROUGH COUNCIL

restructuring their stock in the long term, to
take account of the needs of elderly and disabled
households.

8.20

8.20.1 There are clear links between the Council’s
Supporting People Strategy and its Housing
Strategy, with a key aim being to enable vulnerable
people to remain in their homes. The Supporting
People Strategy for Halton identifies priority client
groups as:

Supported Housing Needs

those with mental health problems,

o

single, homeless young people,
o older people and
o those with physical and sensory disabilities.

8.20.2 \\e also work in partnership, to ensure the
necessary provision of supported housing for
teenage parents, refuges for victims of domestic
violence, together with suitable accommodation for
ex-offenders, people who misuse drugs and alcohol
and those with HIV/Aids.

8.21 Halton Stock Transfer

The transfer of Council owned housing stock to
Halton Housing Trust, a newly created organisation,
took place in December 2005.

8.22

8.22.1 With recent regeneration schemes in
Castlefields and Dukesfield, the quality of housing in
the Borough has increased. However there are
pockets of housing which will require attention in
the near to mid term. These will include \West Bank
in Widnes, which now has some of the oldest
properties in the Borough.

Considerations for the future

Consultants have been appointed and are carrying
out work to assess housing conditions in the area
and carry out an environmental assessment. Links
will also be made to the neighbouring Widnes
Waterfront EDZ development.

A number of costed options are expected to be
reported.

8222 \Windmill Hill requires regeneration work if
the estate is to continue providing viable
accommodation for local residents.

19



20

The design and layout of the estate no longer
meets modern day needs, e.g., there is inadequate
car parking provision and poor public transport
links increase the isolation felt by residents of the
estate.

8.22.3 Development at Upton Rocks and
Sandymoor is likely to continue for the next few
years. However, Upton Rocks has dwindling land
availability. The emerging Local Development
Framework will examine land availability and site supply.

9.0 TRANSPORT

9.1 Halton Borough Council is responsible for
the maintenance of nearly 500km of roads, 22km of
busways and 200km of footpaths. In addition, we
maintain the Silver Jubilee Bridge and a further 200
highway structures, including expressway and
busway bridges.

9.2 Legislation

921 In 2004, the Government produced a review
of its 10 year Transport Plan in the form of a \White
Paper entitled The Future of Transport. This had
three key themes:

o Sustained investment over the long term.
The spending review settlement supports the
Governments' commitment to deliver sustained
improvements to transport networks. Spending
by the Department for Transport (DfT) will
rise by an annual average of 4.5% in real terms
between 2005-06 and 2007-08. An additional
£1.7 billion transport reform package will be
provided for the railways, over and above the
10 Year Plan provision.

o Improvements in transport management.
The rail industry is to be re-organised to
improve performance, drive down costs and get
better value from public spending. Better traffic
management is proposed and where it makes
sense economically and environmentally to
increase the capacity of the road network,
measures will be required to 'lock in’ benefits
e.g., road pricing. In addition, assistance will be
given to local authorities to combine better bus
services with local charging schemes.

o Planning ahead, the long-term trends in travel
are evident to all.

Page 66

We cannot build our way out of the problems we
face on our road networks and doing nothing is not
an option. The Government intends to lead the
debate on road pricing and will ensure that
transport decision-making will be shared with
regional and local stakeholders.The Government
also intends to ensure that regional and local
planning will be based on a shared view of
priorities, deliverability and affordability.

922 Underlining these themes is balancing the
need to travel with the need to improve quality of
life. This means seeking solutions that meet long-
term economic, social and environmental goals.

Achieving this aim will clearly contribute to the
objectives of the UK Sustainable Development
Strategy.

923 The Traffic Management Act received Royal

Assent in July 2004 and is being implemented over

the next two years. It places responsibility on Local
Authorities to be pro-active in the management of

the road network. The aims of the Act are to tackle
congestion and reduce disruption.

9.3 Regional Context

9.3.1 The North West Regional Assembly’s
Transport Strategy is being reviewed as part of the
Regional Spatial Strategy. The regional context
currently remains as published in RSS 13, Regional
Planning Guidance for the North West (March
2003). This lists the Mersey Crossing Study as a
‘regionally significant transport study’ and as a
‘transport proposal of regional significance'.

932 The Regional Economic Strategy provides
the economic development framework for the
North West. Improving transport is key to
delivering four of the five priorities of the strategy,
e.g., business development, regeneration,
infrastructure and image.

9.33 InJanuary 2005, Merseyside produced

‘The Liverpool City Region’, which looks at how
Merseyside will contribute to the Northern \Way.
This includes expansion of the John Lennon Airport
(located just outside Halton) and the Mersey
Gateway, which will help improve connectivity of
the City Region.




Page 67

9.4 Local Transport Plan (LTP)

94.1  In July 2000, Halton produced its first Local
Transport Plan for the period 2001/02 to 2005/06.
This document was well received by Government
Office and resulted in a £2.227m increase in funding
for 2001/02 over that awarded for 2000/01.

Halton has made significant progress towards
achieving its transport aims and objectives. In the
period 2003/04, 87% of Halton's targets were either
already achieved or on track, with Halton achieving
a 'well above average' classification from the
Department for Transport. In 2006 it was deemed
to be an Excellent Authority in this respect, one of
only two in the North West.

942 The Council's LTP 2, covering the period
April 2006 to March 2011, sets out the Council’s
vision for local transport and its long-term strategy
for tackling transport problems within the Borough.
A five-year implementation programme of schemes
and initiatives is included, together with targets and
performance indicators that will be used to
monitor progress in delivering objectives.

9.4.3 The Plan is structured around the four
shared priorities for transport agreed between local
authorities and the Government, which are:

o Tackling congestion

o Delivering Accessibility
o Safer Roads and

o Better Air Quality

944  Tackling Congestion - The biggest
congestion problems within Halton are on the
approaches to the Silver Jubilee Bridge, where up to
90,000 vehicles cross every day. This bottleneck
stands in the way of economic development both
within the Borough and across the wider
Merseyside area. However congestion at peak times
also occurs at other key junctions, including the A56
Chester Road/A558 Eastern Expressway roundabout,
the Widnes Eastern Relief Road/ Fiddlers Ferry
Road and the A557 approach to M56. There is also
growing evidence that regeneration is bringing
about local congestion within the town centres.
Congestion not only constrains the economy but
also impacts on air quality.

o
HALTON

BOROUGH COUNCIL

945 The approval and development of

the second Mersey crossing, the Mersey Gateway,
will lead to significant journey time savings for cross
river traffic and will enable the Silver Jubilee Bridge
to cater for sustainable local travel. A decision on
the crossing is expected in the near future, but
even if it gets the go ahead, it will not be completed
before 2012.

946 Delivering Accessibility - The ability of
people to be able to move around Halton and
access services, such as schools, hospitals, work,
shopping and leisure, has a big impact on their
quality of life. The key objective is to ensure that
vulnerable communities have good access to these
services, which are fundamental to tackling
problems of social exclusion. However, it is now
widely recognised that accessibility problems
cannot be addressed by transport authorities alone,
but require close co-operation with providers and
users of the services.

In consultation with our partners, a wide range of
measures are proposed, including focused
improvements to non-commercial and accessible
bus services, highways network travel planning
advice and publicity and facilities for cyclists and
pedestrians. In addition, planning conditions on new
developments will continue to be used to maximise
opportunities to increase accessibility through
sustainable travel. These will include use of S106
and S278 Agreements.

94.7 Safer Roads - Halton has made significant
progress in reducing accident casualty rates and we
are on track to meet Government targets. However,
accident rates are still above the national average
and more work needs to be done to bring levels
down further. In particular, the number of children
killed or seriously injured on Halton's roads is twice
the national average. There has also been an
increase in the number of injuries to users of two-
wheeled motor vehicles, with the total casualty rate
in Halton for the five years up to 2003 being 33%
higher than the 1994-98 baseline figure.

A comprehensive and holistic approach to casualty
reduction will continue to be employed,
incorporating targeted highway improvements,
safety cameras, traffic-calming, road safety

21



22

education, training and publicity, traffic management
and safety audits.

948 Better Air Quality - There are clear
linkages between high levels of air pollution and
people’s health. Extensive modelling of pollution in
the Borough has shown that pollution levels are
currently within acceptable air quality standards.
However, we will continue to introduce measures
and interventions to encourage sustainable travel,
to reduce the potential for congestion and
pollution and monitor air quality.

9.5 Local Transport Plan Funding

The Government is consulting on a new formula
approach to allocating funding for the ‘Integrated
Transport’ block. Current indications are that this
will have a major impact on Halton's ability to
undertake capital improvements to the transport
system in future years. The following table indicates
the potential allocations for the Maintenance and
Integrated Transport elements.

Year 06/07 07/08 08/09 09/10/10/11 | Total

Integrated
Transport
block-
Indicative
(£000s)

1,639 1,500 (1,428 1,500 1,575 | 7,641

Maintenance
of Roads &
Bridges-
Indicative
(£000s)

2,089 12,131 2,237 2,344 | 2,467 |11,268

Total |3,728/3,631/3,665|3,844 4,042/ 18,909

N.B. In addition, a major scheme bid of between
£25m and £35m has been submitted to the DfT to
enable the Silver Jubilee Bridge to be brought to a
steady state of maintenance. (See immediately
below for further information on the bridge).

Comparing the above indicative programme to that
which was available for the period 2001/2 - 2005/6,
it is possible that there will be an overall reduction
over the next five-year period of £11.7m.

9.6 The Government has provided Halton with
an indicative allocation of Local Transport Plan
funding of £8.334m for integrated transport and
£11.458m for highway maintenance over five years.

Page 68

10.0 SILVER JUBILEE BRIDGE

10.1  The Silver Jubilee Bridge is a Grade Il listed
structure, opened in 1961. At that time, it was the
third longest span steel arch bridge in the world.

It was designed to carry 9,000 vehicles a day, but
was widened in 1977 to increase capacity to 65,000
vehicles. This capacity has now been massively
exceeded, with daily flow rates reaching 90,000
vehicles per day.As a result, traffic flow across the
bridge is extremely sensitive to disruption, with the
slightest incident during peak hours causing
congestion over a wide area.

102 80% of vehicles using the Silver Jubilee
Bridge have a final destination outside of the
Borough, the remaining 20% being local traffic.

This demonstrates the high strategic importance
of the crossing.

10.3  The Silver Jubilee Bridge is now over 40
years old and is operating beyond its original design
capacity. Before Halton, as a new Unitary Authority,
took on responsibility for the structure, its
maintenance had been consistently under-funded
for years and as a result of these factors, the bridge
continues to require significant investment. To date,
it has benefited from £9m of essential structural
maintenance. However, £25m is required for a
further 10-year programme. This will be pursued
through a major scheme bid as part of the LTP and
will bring the bridge to a steady state condition to
ensure its continued viability.

11.0 MERSEY GATEWAY

1.1 By the end of the 2005/6 financial year total
development costs for the Mersey Gateway since
2001/02 exceeded £5.7m. Halton's contribution was
£3.2m from internal resources supported by £1m
from LTP allocations, with the balance of £1.5m
from partners. The development work has included
modelling the impact of the new bridge on the
motorway network and looking at the impact of
the new crossing on river flows, water quality, the
economy, wildlife and the landscape. There has also
been extensive consultation with interested
organisations and the local community, 97% of the
latter being in favour of a new crossing, which
emphasises the strength of support.




Page 69

112 In July 2003, a detailed bid was submitted to
the Government for over £300m for the new
crossing. In December 2003, the Government
responded positively by awarding the project the
status of ‘super work in progress’. A revised and
expanded appraisal was submitted in December
2004. It was approved in 2006.

11.3  Itis intended that a planning application will
be submitted early in 2008.

114  The Mersey Gateway will be more than just
a bridge for Halton. It will support the regional
economy and act as a catalyst for regeneration
within Halton. In particular it will be a major boost
to the Widnes Waterfront EDZ and 3MG. It will
have the capacity to take up to120,000 vehicles a
day and provision for a light rail system, together
with walking/cycling access. It will also enable the
Silver Jubilee Bridge to cater for more sustainable
local trips.

12.0 CONSULTATION

As part of the LTP development, a series of
consultation events were carried out, including a
household survey, which went to 6,935 residents,
and a series of LTP conference events for
stakeholders.

13.0 FUTURE OPPORTUNITIES

13.1  There is huge scope for future transport
opportunities:

13.2  Improved public transport links to Liverpool
John Lennon Airport will benefit the development
of this important regional airport and, as a
consequence, the economy of the whole region.

13.3  Liverpool Capital of Culture in 2008 is on
the near horizon and improved transport links will
have a beneficial impact on this important year-long
series of events, together with the anticipated
economic expansion we can expect, as seen in
recent Capital of Culture cities such as Dublin and
Glasgow.

14.0 RAIL

141 Halton Curve Rail Link is a £7.5m scheme
which, if implemented, would lead to new local
services, a possible new local station at Beechwood

o
HALTON

BOROUGH COUNCIL

in Runcorn and the re-opening of Ditton Station.
It would also complement the Mersey Gateway.

142  Car Parking and Access Improvements could
be made at both Widnes and Hough Green
stations.

143 3MG is a large-scale road/rail freight
interchange to undergo considerable expansion in
south west Widnes. It will provide major investment
into existing rail freight businesses and be of
regional and national significance. In order to
deliver this programme, however, other road
infrastructure improvements, which are part of the
LTP, are being worked on. These include a new
bridge on Ditton Road and the provision of an
HGV bypass.

A Masterplan for this site was approved in
December 2004 and details a five-year
implementation programme. This has now been
converted into a Supplementary Planning
Document.

15.0 BUSES

15.1  The vast majority of the bus network within
the Borough is operated commercially, with the
remainder supported by Halton Borough Council.
In recent years, there had been a general decline in
bus usage, but in the last year this has reverted to a
small increase of 0.3%.

152  There is a good, high frequency core bus
service in the Borough, which includes a unique
20km dedicated Busway in Runcorn. However there
are opportunities for improvement such as:

o More flexible bus services using low-floor
vehicles, together with enhanced passenger
infrastructure and frequency improvements;

o Direct bus links between the town centres and
railway stations;

o Increased public transport information, advice
and pubilicity;

o Re-alignment of the supported bus network, to
better meet locally identified needs;

o Roll out of 'real time information’ scheme;

o Introduction of a multi-operator, pre-paid bus
ticket pilot covering all bus services.

23



24

15.3

Key Issues

15.3.1 There is a lack of funding to local bus
services. Supported bus networks are necessary for
general public accessibility but are not commercially
viable. Improvements should include late night and
weekend services, as well as services to industrial
areas and hospitals. The cost for providing the
current level of service is rising each year and this
will lead to cuts in services unless budgets are
increased.

15.3.2 At present, bus operators are reluctant to
operate busway routes after 9:30pm due to the
number of anti-social behaviour incidents and
attacks on bus drivers.\With the proposal and
promotion of the night-time economy, this presents
a key challenge. However, the 'Travelsafe’
programme, which puts police and community
support officers on the buses during the day, has
been successful in tackling these issues and could
be extended, but this would have resource
implications.

15.3.3 There are potential links to be made, to
support the growing night-time economy, including
late night bus services to take people out of the
town centre areas as quickly as possible.

16.0 STREET LIGHTING

16.1  Currently, there are 19,200 lighting units in
the Borough, about 46% of which are over 30 years
old and are consequently at the end of their
designed life.

162  Key Issues

16.2.1 Funding over recent years has not been
sufficient to remove older and potentially
dangerous units. Their removal therefore needs to
be prioritised.

16.22 Increases in energy charges and the
introduction of new lighting columns on new
developments will significantly increase energy costs.

17.0 PRINCIPAL ROAD
INFRASTRUCTURE

17.1  The Expressway network in Runcorn was
built at approximately the same time as the Silver

Page 70

Jubilee Bridge and is wearing out. At the moment,
discussions are underway with the DfT and
GONW to review the allocation for road
maintenance within Halton. Resources need to be
secured to ensure that roads are suitably
maintained to take modern loads and vehicle usage.

172  Key Achievements

17.2.1 As part of the CPA assessment, the
environment, which includes transportation issues,
was given full marks.

17.22 The annual programme reports submitted
to show progress against the LTP have all been
‘above average’ with the last one 'well above
average. This currently places Halton 8th in the
country.

17.2.3 Halton is a '‘Centre of Excellence’ for local
transport services.

17.24 Halton is a '‘Beacon Council’ for better local
public transport.

18.0 CONTAMINATED LAND

18.1  The Environmental Protection Act, 1990
addresses some of the issues surrounding
contaminated land: in particular, the retention and
treatment of contaminated land on site rather than
removal to tip, and a 'source-pathway-target’
approach for dealing with risks to health.

182  The 'source-pathway-target’ approach
involves local authorities using historical records of
land use and other information to identify
contaminated or potentially contaminated sites
within their area. Site investigation works then need
to be carried out at these sites, to establish the
types and location of the contamination. The
Council is able to prioritise key sites depending on
location, current land use and the likely
contaminant present. This then establishes that a
contamination or a 'source’ is present.
Contamination on its own will not always present
an immediate health risk and the next step is to
identify if there is a pathway, such as a watercourse
or drainage system, which would give the
contamination the means to move or ‘leach’ from
the site. Once contamination is no longer locked




Page 71

into the ground, it is able to cause harm to the
health of humans and wildlife.\When contamination
can be shown to be causing or have the potential
to cause harm, the Council is required to act. If
contaminated land is in private ownership, we can
serve notice requiring remediation to be
implemented. If the Council own the site then we
need to remediate it. Sites meeting these criteria
are categorised as 'Special Sites’ under the
Environmental Protection Act.

183  The National Land Use Database (NLUD),
produced in 2004, shows that 27.69% of Halton's
previously developed land remains derelict - a
significant decrease from 36% in 2003. This
represents 3% of the entire land in the Borough:
217 sites covering 248 ha., with 173 sites and 75
ha., in Widnes and Runcorn respectively.
Unsurprisingly, these sites tend to be concentrated
on land either side of the River Mersey, as for many
years this was dominated by the chemical industry.
Bringing these sites back into productive use is a
key aim of the Council and of the Council's Unitary
Development Plan. However, this legacy presents a
major disincentive for development and makes it
impossible to meet Government Policy objectives
i.e., for most new development to take place on
previously used land. Up to 75% of this land is
economically and environmentally beyond
reclamation for a hard end use. Despite this, since
1974 the Council has brought back into use 190
ha., of derelict and contaminated land, 71% of which
was so badly contaminated it is suitable only for
green end use.

19.0 REMEDIATION FUNDING

19.1  DEFRA

19.1.1 Derelict Land Grants

19.1.2 Between 1974 and 1990, over 397 acres of
derelict land within Halton was reclaimed through
funding from the Government's Derelict Land
programme. It represented a public investment
figure of over £20m. Derelict Land Grant aid and
our success in attracting such funding has made an
immense difference to the image of Halton.
However with our industrial heritage there still
remains much to do. In fact, some of the sites which

o
HALTON

BOROUGH COUNCIL

had already been reclaimed fell below the
environmental standards that were subsequently
expected. The Municipal Golf Course is a good
example of this. Following a reclamation operation,
leachate continued to enter Steward's Brook, but
because we were not allowed to attract two lots of
grant for different contamination problems in the
same piece of land remediation, this remains
unresolved.

19.1.3 The Council continues to access Derelict
Land Grant each year. This has gone towards the
reclamation of sites such as Percival Lane, Barrows
Green Lane, Southern Widnes, the ICI Coal Stock
Yard, TAC Derby Road and Factory Lane. Derelict
Land Grants are issued from the governments
Derelict Land Programme, controlled by English
Partnerships (EP). The NWDA act as administrator
and our contact. There are various different funds
that deal with contaminated ground when linked
into hard end use, all under EP's control.

19.1.4 Under part IIA of the Environmental
Protection Act, funding is now disbursed by Defra.
This is provided for three specific areas:

1) Site investigation;
2) Risk assessments/consultants reports;
3) Costs for remediation work.

19.1.5 Funding for Parts 1) and 2) is available for all
potential contamination sites identified, but money
for Part 3) is only available for sites that are
designated as 'Special Sites'. Halton currently has
only one designated special site: St Michael's Golf
Course, which was reclaimed many years ago using
Derelict Land Grant. However, this site no longer
meets today's more stringent environmental
standards and obtaining designation is proving a
lengthy process, which the Council originally
embarked upon back in 2003.

19.1.6 The process has involved putting a case
together for designation to the Environment
Agency (who need to formally support the
proposal), as well as carrying out site investigation
works and developing a design scheme. Although
funding was available for the site investigation
works, the design scheme had to be funded by the
Council at a cost of £270,000.As Defra has agreed

25



26

to designate the golf course as a Special Site, these
costs will be refunded as part of the overall
reclamation costs. Closure of the golf course while
this process continues is incurring additional costs
for security - currently running at in excess of
£150,000 per annum, which will not be eligible for
refund from Defra.

19.1.7 Such a lengthy and costly process presents
some real issues for Halton.As an area with more
‘blackfield’ than ‘brownfield’ sites, we potentially
have some way to go to prove our need to Defra.
We are, however, continuing with a programme of
testing to identify sites and categorise any possible
risks. This work is funded through Defra.

19.1.8 Key sites in Halton which may possibly
require future designation as special sites are
Weston Quarries, Johnson's Lane Tip, Weston
lagoons and parts of the Widnes Waterfront EDZ.
Although some of these are currently in private
ownership, they may eventually become the
responsibility of the Council.

19.1.9 In Halton, site contamination is often severe
and the consequent cost for remediation is
therefore very high. St. Michael's Golf Course will,
for example, cost in the region of £4.5m to
remediate.

19.2  Landfill Tax Credits

This is a further source of funding that can be used
for smaller scale projects involving site
contamination. As its name suggests, it is funded
from Landfill Tax, which is a tax levied on all waste
that currently goes to landfill. The ICl Coal Stock
Yard received £300,000 from Landfill tax credits
towards the costs of site remediation.

193  North West Development Agency (NWDA)
Funding NWDA single pot funds can also be used
for land reclamation, but this has become
increasingly difficult for Halton to access due to the
NWDA's changing priorities.

20.0 CONTAMINATED LAND
REMEDIATION TECHNOLOGIES

20.1  The variety of technologies for treating
contamination and remediating sites is advancing all
the time.

Page 72

Halton Borough Council has carried out pioneering
works using ‘Cement Stabilisation Technology' at a
number of sites in the Borough. This process is
particularly suitable for a commonly occurring
contaminant in Halton called ‘Galligu.’ This semi-
liquid substance causes major land stability
problems and poses a risk to watercourses, etc. The
cement stabilisation technique locks up the
contamination and changes its consistency to a hard
solid, thus preventing further risk and improving the
quality of the site for potential further
development. This technique was used on the Coal
Stock Yard site in Widnes which is now a
demonstration project being monitored by the
Environment Agency and the University of
Liverpool. To date, tests have proven the technology
to be successful. This method also has the
advantage of being relatively cheap and is thus more
cost effective when compared to landfill. The
cement stabilisation technology is also likely to be
used on parts of St. Michael's Golf Course and the
Widnes Waterfront EDZ.

202  Other technologies include:

o bio-remediation and vacuum extraction,
which remove oils and solvents; and

o] permeable reactive barriers, which treat
collected leachate from sites with suitable
chemicals in order to make them safe.

20.3 Land Reclamation Schemes

20.3.1 Halton Borough Council is currently

reclaiming approximately 10 hectares of
contaminated land each year. These sites, e.g.\Wigg
Island, are mainly being reclaimed for green, soft
end uses: generally most appropriate given the site
conditions. However the cement stabilisation
technique has been so successful that it may be
viable to build on sites in the future. Sites treated in
this way, e.g., the old Crosville Bus Depot, Runcorn,
could be viable for a number of uses, including
housing, as the ground conditions are much more
suitable.

20.3.2 One site which has recently been reclaimed:-

20.3.3 The Brindley Arts Centre is the former site
of an old tannery and soap works in Runcorn Town
Centre, where various contaminants were left in
the ground.




Page 73

20.3.3.1 The first phase of this development involved
dealing with the contamination which, due to
environmental regulations, had to be retained on
site. Temporarily encapsulated as ‘the mound’
adjacent to the Brindley, it was prevented from
causing further harm. However, as part of the
nearby new development for the Runcorn Canal
Quarter, the mound is being removed.

20.3.3.2 In addition, the foundations for the Brindley
were piled in order to accommodate the ground
conditions.

20.34 Reclamation schemes proposed in the future:
20.3.4.1 St Michael’s Golf Course

It is hoped that work will begin on the golf course
in the near future, but it is estimated that it will be
four years before the site will again be open to the
public. As the site was a 1970s design, consideration
is being given as to how it can be improved and
updated, for example through the inclusion of a golf
driving range.

20.34.2 HEDCO or Hutchinsons Tip, West Bank

Currently in private ownership, this heavily
contaminated site, adjacent to Stewards Brook and
the Mersey estuary, will require some remediation
in the near future to prevent leachate from entering
these watercourses.\Work is currently underway to
look at the possibility of collecting the leachate and
burning it.

20.34.3 3MG

This site has two watercourses, Ditton Brook and
Stewards Brook, into which leachate could
potentially escape. The site adjacent to Stewards
Brook has been sheet-piled, which will prevent
further contamination from entering the brook.
However, other parts of the site may require
additional treatment.

21.0 KEY URBAN RENEWAL
ACHIEVEMENTS

21.1  The Highways and Transportation
Department won Beacon Council status in 2004,
under the theme 'Better Local Public Transport'.

212 In November 2003, the Planning

o
HALTON

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Department achieved runner up status in

the Local Government Award category of the AGI
Awards (Association of Geographic Information)
for its on-line planning application system and were
short-listed in the 2004 Local Government
Chronicle Awards category of 'Improving Services
with E-Technology'.

21.3  Landscape Services won Beacon Council
status in 2002, under the theme ‘Improving Urban
Green Spaces'.

214 In the Best Value Audit Inspection carried
out in 2003 for urban renewal, the service was
awarded a Good 2* Service with 'Promising
Prospects for Improvement.” Halton was praised for
having a strong track record over many years of
reclaiming contaminated and derelict land and of
completing re-development projects on the land
released. Inspectors felt that Halton had been
successful in creating employment opportunities by
attracting private sector investment into the
Borough. In addition, they found that Halton had
good working relationships with locally based
businesses and that progress had been made in
demonstrating leadership in partnership-working
and devolving influence over the use of resources
to local communities. Relative data showed Halton
compared well with others on refurbishing derelict
housing.

215  Awards Won for Halton Regeneration

Schemes in 2004/5/6:
21.5.1  Green Apple Awards for:

21.5.1.1 Halton Business Forum,Victoria Square,
Widnes (2004);

21.5.1.2 Transporter House, Widnes (2004);

21.5.1.3 The regeneration of the Kingsway Learning
Centre, Widnes (2005);

2152 Royal Institute of British Architects (RIBA)

Award for The Brindley Arts Centre, Runcorn
(2005);

2153 Royal Town Planning Institute (RTPI) for the
Wigg Island reclamation project in Runcorn (2004);

21.54 2005 Regeneration Award: Best Design-led

27



28

Regeneration Project awarded for The Brindley Arts
Centre, Runcorn (2005);

2155  Civic Trust 2005: Centre Vision Special
Award for The Brindley Arts Centre, Runcorn;

2156  'Green Flag' for Parks & Open Spaces for
Wigg Island, Runcorn (2006);

2157  Local Government Chronicle (LGC)
Environment Award 2006 for the development of
the former Coal Stockyard (now Ted Gleave Fields)
into playing fields.

2158  Chartered Institute of Housing: Excellence
in Delivering Regeneration Award for Castlefields
area (2006).

2159  Regional Property Awards: Best
Partnership Project (with Plus Housing Group) for
the Waterbridge Mews Development (2006) in
Castlefields.

21.6  In addition, a number of projects have been
shortlisted for awards for this year, but results have,
to date, not been announced.

22.0 URBAN RENEWAL
WORKING STRUCTURES
AND PARTNERSHIPS

221 The process of urban renewal is a highly
complex, cross-cutting issue. As the Government's
White Paper makes clear, the requirements for
success go well beyond the relatively tight definition
of urban renewal used in this paper, which
emphasises the physical environment.

222.1 Halton Borough Council recognised the
importance of bringing responsibility for the
delivery of physical regeneration programmes under
one roof, by creating the Major Projects
Department in 2002. This department, together
with other directorates within Halton Borough
Council, various partners, agencies and
organisations having an input into urban renewal,
are brought together in several ways:

22.2.2 Tnhe Urban Renewal Specialist Strategic
Partnership (UR SSP), reporting to the Halton
Strategic Partnership Board, manages Halton's
Urban Renewal Strategy. It approves, disburses,

Page 74

monitors and co-ordinates Halton's NRF allocation
for Urban Renewal projects and acts as
Management Board for the NWDA funding for the
Widnes Waterfront EDZ.

2223 The Castlefields Regeneration Partnership
agreed the Castlefields Regeneration Masterplan

and Action Plan and oversees its implementation.
The Castlefields Implementation Group monitors
progress on the Council’s behalf.

2224 The 3MG Steering Group has brought
together land-owners and public sector partners in
the formulation of the Ditton Strategic Rail Freight
Park Masterplan and monitors progress against the
agreed Action Plan. Halton Borough Council’s
Executive (Transmodal Implementation) Sub Board
manages the implementation of the programme.

2225 The Widnes Waterfront EDZ Steering
Group consists of officers with an interest in
delivering the Widnes Waterfront EDZ Masterplan
and Action Plan.

2226 The Council's Urban Renewal Policy and
Performance Board monitors and reviews progress
on all Urban Renewal matters.

22.3  In addition there are other informal and
formal partnerships with private sector developers
driving forward Urban Renewal. These are:

22.3.1 \Widnes Regeneration Ltd., established in
February 1999 as a joint venture development
company between Halton Borough Council and

St. Modwen Properties plc., to tackle the
regeneration issues facing Widnes Town Centre and
other named sites in Widnes. This partnership has
delivered:

o Widnes Road redevelopment with a new
ASDA store, Albert Court 20-unit
residential scheme, Gerrard Street shops,
the Lacey Street housing development and
the Liebig Court mixed residential and retail
developments.

o The North Albert Road redevelopment with
the JIB leisure/retail development and
Streetscape Improvement scheme;

o Two Streetscape Improvement schemes, one
in Widnes Road and one in Broseley Square;




Halebank Local Centre;

o

The Simms Cross Redevelopment,
incorporating retail and commercial
floorspace;

o Following the purchase of the former
Lafarge and Clariant sites, the Heron Business
Park development on the Widnes \Waterfront
EDZ;

o The sale to Barratt's of a housing development
site with planning permission for 204 houses on
the former ASDA site at Halebank;

o the commercial leisure development at \Widnes
Waterfront.

22.3.2 Halton Development Partnership Ltd., which
is a joint venture company with Peel Holdings Ltd.,
to promote development/regeneration initiatives
targeted solely to Council-owned land. The joint
venture company has delivered the Runcorn Old
Town Central Area Redevelopment Scheme and is
currently progressing the proposed District Centre
at Upton Rocks, Widnes.

2233 The Council has entered into an exclusivity
agreement with Urban Splash to bring forward
development proposals for the ‘Canal Quarter’, a
collection of sites alongside the Bridgewater canal
in Runcorn. The development will include
residential, commercial, retail and civic elements.

2234 Tne Council is in discussion with private
sector developers wishing to procure the Halton
Business Forum for redevelopment.

22.3.5 Pochins plc - A joint venture company that
has built and is now managing industrial units at
Dock Road, Runcorn.

2236 An informal private sector regeneration
partnership was also established with Maryland
Securities in developing a proposal for one of the
key buildings (the former Co-op store) in Victoria
Square, Widnes.

22.3.7 There are also partnerships within both
Runcorn Town Centre and Widnes Town Centre,
which are aimed at increasing the vitality and
viability of these two town centres.

o InWidnes, the Widnes Traders Group has 70
members concerned with retail and

o
HALTON

BOROUGH COUNCIL

commercial interests in the Town Centre.

o In Runcorn Town Centre the business
community there has established the Runcorn
Traders Group with 7 member representatives
for 100 commercial interests in the town.

These groups meet bi-annually.

22.3.8 Halton Borough Council is a member of
two regional partnerships which include
developments in Halton within their programmes:

o The 'New Approaches' programme aims to
reclaim under-used land on strategic corridors
and gateways to and from Merseyside;

o The 'River of Light' scheme aims to create light
beacons to form 'lighting routes’ throughout
the Merseyside coastline.

224  Comments on partnership working

224.1 Substantial progress is being demonstrated
in achieving the desired outcomes, as measured
through the Floor Targets and action plans in place
to address areas where challenges remain and to
focus on continuing needs.

224.2 Successful expenditure of all external
resources committed to the borough in line with
strategic plans. Partners have demonstrated their
commitment through dedicating their own
resources to Partnership activity and in examining
mainstreaming.

2243 An exemplary strategic planning process is
in place, which allows partners to address the
needs and aspirations of our communities. This is
reflected in a very favourable Audit Commission
report on the Partnership's Performance
Management Framework, which is deemed to meet
all necessary criteria. In addition, the Government
Office assessment of the Partnership and its work
places it in one of the upper (“green/amber”) bands
for the annual review for the Neighbourhood
Renewal Unit.

23.0 EMERGING POLICY ISSUES

The Local Government Bill, currently before
Parliament, will have profound implications for areas
like Halton. It reinforces the need for councils to
pursue the well-being of residents in an holistic way;

29



30

strengthens the role of Partnerships by placing a
duty on many organisations to co-operate; and
places engagement with residents and businesses as
a cornerstone of the approach to be taken. Key to
this is a radical reworking of Local Area Agreements
as a means to promote and facilitate partnership
working across cross-cutting themes.

231  Local Area Agreements

From April 2007, there is a requirement for every
area to produce a Local Area Agreement (LAA).

It is important that we work together to deliver
key outcomes for the Borough as part of this
process. Halton has developed a robust LAA, which
mirrors the focus on five strategic themes, including
Urban Renewal, set out in the local Sustainable
Community Strategy.

23.2

23.2.1 As has been explained previously, external
funding changes are likely to result in Halton
receiving far less resource than we have had in the
past, as a number of funding sources upon which
urban renewal has relied in recent years are now
coming to an end. The task will be to work in a
smarter way to make best use of what resources
are available.

23.22 In addition we are not identified as a
Pathfinder area and are therefore likely to miss out
on many of the resources allocated for housing.

Funding

23.23 Halton is now allocated NVWDA resources
via The Merseyside Partnership (TMP) and is
therefore having to compete for funding with the
Merseyside area generally. As mentioned earlier,
this is likely to be a key challenge for Halton.

23.24 It is important that Halton continues to
develop links with the NWDA as RDAs in the
English Regions are likely to be key players in the
management and allocation of European and non-
European resources earmarked for regional
development in the immediate future.

23.2.5 Thnere are, therefore, major challenges for
Halton in delivering Urban Renewal. It is likely that
we will increasingly have to focus on private sector
funding and partnership.

Page 76

However, we must acknowledge that much of the
private sector intervention to date has relied upon
public sector funding to attract it to the Borough,
or to provide improvements which have acted as a
catalyst to private sector development.\With
diminishing public funding support, opportunities
may be fewer or on a smaller scale.

23.3  Best Value Review

23.3.1 The Audit Commission Inspectors for the
2003 Best Value Review of Urban Renewal felt that
Halton did not have sufficiently well defined service
delivery outcomes and that the focus had been on
managing existing projects as well as securing
funding for future projects, rather than on
identifying how projects would meet the needs of
local people and their environment.

As a consequence, they felt that this had led to a
‘piecemeal’ approach to physical renewal and
regeneration in the past. Comparative data showed
that performance was poor in respect of some
indicators associated with housing, economic
development and the environment.

23.3.2 Although much has since changed and
improvements have been made following that
review, more still needs to be done to address this
challenging agenda.

24.0 SKILLS AND EMPLOYMENT

241 Although considered as part of
‘Employment, Learning & Skills’, skills and
employment issues also cut across part of the
urban renewal agenda. Halton generally performs
poorly in terms of skills and qualification levels,
ranking 342nd out of 408 districts. The 19+ age
group has a particular lack of employment skills and
qualifications, leading to new Halton businesses
recruiting from outside the Borough. Halton is,
therefore, not fully benefiting from the inward
investment to areas such as Daresbury Park. This
issue needs to be addressed by both the Urban
Renewal and the Skills and Employment priorities,
with better links made between the two.
Intelligence needs to be provided to schools and
colleges, to support curriculum development and
provide more informed careers advice to students.




Page 77

There is also a question as to whether colleges are
catering for local businesses in offering students
what businesses need in terms of flexibility and
vocational training opportunities.

24.2  Education in Halton, and the UK generally, is
currently very focussed on academic qualifications.
This option may not suit some students, who could
learn valuable vocational skills and gain greater
employment opportunities through a more
structured approach to learning.

24.3  While we need to focus on the knowledge
economy, the current skills mismatch is unlikely to
be able to support a growth in this sector. This is
further impacted upon by a loss in our youth
population, predicted at 20% decline over the next
ten years in the 10-19 yrs., age group and 6% in the
20-30 yrs., age group. It is likely that these losses
will be due to families moving out of Halton, to
Cheshire and surrounding areas, and students
moving to university. This presents us with the
challenge to:

o make Halton a more attractive and viable place
to live and

0 meet the needs and quality of life issues

and in order to keep families here and attract new
graduates back to the area, businesses should also
be encouraged to employ local graduates. These
issues will need to be addressed if we are to have a
young, local, skilled workforce in place that will
underpin Halton's economic growth.

25.0 HOUSING

25.1  Housing may present the key to reversing
Halton's population decline amongst young people.
As mentioned above, current predictions suggest
that by 2015, the number of young people aged 10-
19 and 20-39 will decline by 20% and 6%
respectively (based on a 2003 baseline). If we are to
attract graduates and young families into the area,
we need to meet the demand for high quality
residential property. Otherwise, people will continue
to 'vote with their feet' and leave the borough.
However, regional restrictions placed upon the
Authority with regard to new-build housing, together
with diminishing land reserves (particularly in \\Widnes)

o
HALTON

BOROUGH COUNCIL

present key challenges for the borough.

252  For a variety of reasons, the problems
facing the borough do not correlate with the
priorities of the Regional Housing Strategy, which
may result in Halton not securing funding for the
housing investment we require.

253  As the Regional Housing Board has, in
principle, agreed significant funding for Castlefields,
the amount of additional funding which we are
allocated for other priority areas may be restricted,
leading to a major challenge for Halton.

254  Within Halton there are a few housing areas
where properties may require attention in the near
to mid-term. These include West Bank in Widnes,
which has some of the oldest properties in the
borough. Consultants are currently carrying out a
condition survey in the area, which will inform the
future housing strategy.

255  Current demographic predictions for Halton
show a growing elderly population, with projected
rises in the over 60's and the over 75's by 27.5%
and 19% respectively by the year 2015 (based on a
2003 baseline). This dramatic rise will put increasing
demands on a variety of housing types, including
bungalows, supported housing and residential care.
With existing waiting lists for such provision, this
will present another key challenge for Halton, as its
elderly population increases.

256 The 2001, census figures showed a trend
towards a smaller household size within Halton,
which is expected to reach an average size of about
2.2 within the next decade. This may lead to an
increase in demand for apartments or smaller
properties, rather than large houses. The trend
towards smaller households is currently sustaining
the demand for increased housing provision and it
is likely that this will continue into the future.

25.7  The Housing Needs Survey has identified an
emerging affordability issue in the Borough and
recommends that 25% of new units should be the
target for subsidised affordable housing, subject to
site viability. Officers from the Housing and Planning
Departments of the Council plan to work together,
with a view to developing an affordable housing

31



32

policy for the borough to address this.

The current market situation has implications for
the social rented sector, which is beginning to
experience an upturn in demand.

258  The housing stock transfer took place in
December 2005 and the Council has committed to
work closely with Halton Housing Trust, in order to
ensure the delivery of the significant investment
required to the stock.

259  Halton Borough Council is strengthening its
links with private sector landlords in order to bring
about improvements in the condition and
management standards required in the private
rented sector, with the introduction of the Landlord
Accreditation Scheme.

26.0 TOWN CENTRES

26.1  Halton's town centres are currently being
developed to support a night-time economy.
However, restaurants and bars may suffer from
sparse trade during the day, due to the low number
of other businesses and commercial offices available
to be serviced. This detracts from the vibrancy of
the town centres during the day and affects the mix
and viability of gustatory premises in the borough.
If we are to attract quality night-time investment
and have vibrant town centres, then we also need
to develop office space which will provide the trade
to ensure that restaurants and bars remain viable
and thrive. Linking the Widnes Waterfront EDZ
area to the town centre should help enhance the
economic development of \Widnes, particularly
during the day, but possibly with employees also
going for a drink or meal after work.

26.2  Within Halton, retail and office floorspace is
relatively under-represented commercially, at 10.5%
and 11.9% respectively - substantially lower than
the national average of 19.2% for retail and 16.8%
for office floor space. This presents a further
important challenge for our town centre
development.

26.3  There are a number of private sector
investment projects proposed within our town
centres, including those of Urban Splash in Runcorn
and Marmalade in Widnes. Halton needs to work
with these investors and attract further private

Page 78

sector investment to the town centres in order to
ensure their continued regeneration.

As mentioned earlier, this will become increasingly
difficult as public sector funding diminishes. The
remarkable regeneration of both Widnes and
Runcorn is far from complete and new
developments, such as the Canal Quarter in
Runcorn and Liebig Court in Widnes, need to be
supported by continuing the physical improvements
of the established areas. Over the last three years,
schemes such as the Streetscapes Enhancement and
Shopfront Improvements schemes have used NRF
funding to supplement private sector investment
with other funding such as Local Transport Plan and
Section 106 monies. It is vital that the improvement
of these town centres remains a high priority for
future funding, whilst available.

27.0 REGIONAL ISSUES
21.1  NWDA Funding

21.1.1  The North West Development Agency has
now produced a Strategic Investment Plan, setting
out their priorities for funding. Castlefields no
longer features as a priority in this plan.As this
programme’s employment and skills initiatives were
reliant upon NWDA funding, a major review of
spend for these projects has been necessitated. This
is a real issue for Halton, both in the short and
longer term.As NWDA funding priorities change,
support is increasingly diverted to areas outside of
Halton.

27.1.2 Halton has recently been placed within the
remit of the NWDA's Merseyside Office. This
means that we are now competing with areas
where land values are higher, land more sought
after and match funding more easily accessed
through European Objective 1.28.2 City Region
Development Plan.

212  City Region Development Plan

2721 The City Region Development Plan builds

on a detailed mapping of key actions and initiatives
across Merseyside, which together form an Action
Plan for the years 2006-2009. This Action Plan and
the Development Plan itself are designed to show
how the Merseyside Region can make a significant




Page 79

contribution to initiatives such as the Northern

Way Growth Strategy and the Regional Economic
Strategy.

2722 The Liverpool City Region does not feature
significantly in the Northern Way Growth Strategy,
which seems to be Leeds-Manchester focused, and
Halton's major strategic initiative, the Mersey
Gateway, is barely mentioned in the document.

2723 The New Mersey Gateway is, however,
named and given prominence in the North West's
Regional Economic Strategy, a document that will
give a significant steer to projects and programmes
to be supported by NWDA and key regional
partners both in the short and the long term.

21.3  The North West Regional Assembly

The 'no’ vote on elected regional assemblies, has
forced the North \West Regional Assembly to
review its core business and activities.

There is now uncertainty over future membership
of the Assembly and, whilst Halton needs to
continue to form allegiances with the NWRA, it is
also prudent to strengthen links with Government
departments and the Government Office.

2714  Planning

The draft Spatial Development Framework for the
Regional Spatial Strategy recognises both Liverpool
and Manchester as regional centres (Policy RDF1).

Halton and sub-regional partners will need to push
to ensure that the Liverpool City region is
identified as being of equal significance as a regional
centre, placing emphasis on joint working between
the two areas.

215  Transport
215.1 Mersey Gateway

271.5.1.1 The Mersey Gateway means much more to
Halton and the region than just a means to get
across the Mersey Estuary.

For far too long the Borough and the North \West
region have been constrained by the current
inadequate capacity of the Silver Jubilee Bridge.

o
HALTON

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Over time, this has cost the North \West

economy a significant amount of money through
delayedorders, late arrival of employees at work
and companies taking business outside of the region
to avoid such potential problems and delays.

27.5.1.2 The new Mersey crossing will deliver

a real boost to the regeneration of the North
West. It will make transport and access across the
region much faster, more reliable and more
efficient, thus increasing confidence in the area. It
will also open up new areas of land in Widnes and
Runcorn - in particular the Widnes Waterfront EDZ
- bringing much needed investment.

215.2 The Silver Jubilee Bridge

The Silver Jubilee Bridge presents a daily problem at
peak times, with the slightest incident causing major
traffic tailbacks across the region. The infrastructure
of the bridge is also struggling to cope with traffic
flows, as it now takes well in excess of its designed
capacity of traffic, on narrow and substandard width
carriageways.

Essential works are difficult and costly to
programme, due to the heavy and constant traffic
demand. This presents a major challenge for Halton
Council, responsible for the maintenance of the
structure, and it is currently struggling to keep
abreast of the necessary work. ldeally, the bridge
needs to be closed for significant blocks of time
and over a long period, which is simply not feasible.

Unless a new crossing can be put in place, it
remains only a matter of time before this work will
become essential, regardless of the resultant traffic
chaos. It is also key that necessary funding for
maintenance is made available through the LTP
process, to try and bring the bridge to a steady
state of maintenance.

21.5.3 Road Accidents

Halton has made significant progress in reducing
accident casualty rates and is on track to meet
associated government targets. However, accident
rates are still above the national average and more
needs to be done to bring levels down further.

33



34

In particular, the number of children killed or
seriously injured on Halton's roads is 2.3 times the
national average.

2154 Public Transport

27.5.4.1 Supported bus networks are necessary for
accessibility but are not commercially viable. Some
networks are available, although there is currently a
lack of funding for these services. These will be
extended to include late night and weekend
services to support the night-time economy, as well
as those serving industrial areas and hospitals.

The costs for providing the same services each year
are rising. This will lead to cuts in provision unless
budgets are increased.

21.5.4.2 Bus operators do not currently operate
busway routes after 9:30pm due to the number of
anti-social behaviour incidents and attacks on bus
drivers.With the promotion of the night-time
economy, this presents a difficult challenge. Halton
has developed the "Travelsafe’ scheme, which puts
police and community support officers on buses
during the day. This scheme has been successful in
tackling these issues, but more needs to be done.

216  Street Lighting

The funding available for street lighting over recent
years has not been sufficient to remove older and
potentially dangerous units and their removal
therefore needs to be prioritised.

28.0 MAJOR PROJECTS

28.1 Castlefields

28.1.1 There are two key issues with regard to this
programme of works:

28.1.2 Castlefields has now been downgraded by
the NWDA and is no longer viewed as a priority
area, despite an initial agreement to invest £1.9m.
An ongoing debate is continuing in an attempt to
move this forward and secure funding.

28.1.3 The current and approved programmes of
works will leave the renewal of two residential
blocks unfunded, together with several other
regeneration projects. Support needs to be sought

Page 80

for the completion of this scheme.

28.2 Widnes Waterfront EDZ

The EDZ area includes some of the previously

reclaimed area known as 'Venture Fields.” As this
site was reclaimed using Derelict Land Grant, there
will be an issue of ‘claw back’, whereby any profits
from the sale would need to go back to the
Treasury. In the short term we have agreement to
utilise this money for the reclamation of adjoining
sites in the EDZ. However, in the longer term, this
may present an issue of up to £2.5m being repaid.

283 3MG

28.3.1 A key issue for Halton Borough Council
concerns the disposal and development of ‘HBC
Fields'.

28.3.2 The establishment of a Management
Company to administer common facilities will
involve both the Borough Council and the private
sector.

284

28.4.1 Although significant achievements have been
made in reclaiming contaminated sites within
Halton, much remains to be done.As an area with
such significant contamination this presents a
challenging agenda. As the birthplace of the
chemical industry, many of the contamination
problems within the Borough are much worse and
more difficult to deal with than other areas of the
country. This makes it both difficult and expensive
to develop these sites.

Contaminated Land

284.2 Halton has long been leading the way in
utilising new technology and has made great
progress in remediation techniques, which will assist
with future site development. However there are a
number of key challenges still facing Halton. These
include the uncertainty of public funding, generally,
in the medium term and the lengthy and costly
process involved in accessing government funding.
Other key issues include the severity of the
contamination and the ongoing liability of these
sites for the foreseeable future.




Page 81

o
HALTON

BOROUGH COUNCIL

285  Economic Development

285.1 The knowledge economy needs to be placed
at the heart of the economic development agenda.
Although Halton has a high proportion of

employment in the knowledge driven sectors, this is
declining. The proportion of businesses operating in
the knowledge economy is also low. Growth in this
sector would need to be supported by an increase
in the skills and qualifications of Halton's workforce.
A current occupational breakdown for the
Borough, reveals that ‘higher end’ occupations are
under-represented.

28.5.2 The likely reduction, if not removal, of grant
aid from areas such as Halton will prevent us from
offering financial grant incentives to potential
investors. This will leave us in open competition
with other areas which are perhaps much easier to
develop and will be a key issue for the area.

28.5.3 \We are currently losing young people from
the Borough and, as already stated, predictions
suggest that by 2015 the number of young people
aged 10-19 and 20-39 will decline by 20% and 6%
respectively. If we are to attract graduates and
young families to the area, we need to meet the
demand for high quality jobs and investment in
Halton. Without this, the young people of the
Borough will have no choice but to seek better job
opportunities elsewhere.

2854 Retail and office space is under-represented
at 10.5% and 11.9% respectively, which is
substantially lower than the national average of
19.2% and 16.8%. Establishing more office
accommodation and attracting suitable private
sector business is important for the borough,
particularly in the town centre areas, to help
support their trade throughout the day and
evening.

29.0 CONCLUSION

Much has been done; there is still much to do.
With diminishing public funds available to us over
the period covered by this report, that will not be
easy.

35



Page 82 Agenda ltem 5f

REPORT TO: Urban Renewal Policy and Performance Board
DATE: 20™ June 2007

REPORTING OFFICER: Strategic Director Environment

SUBJECT: Halton Public Transport Advisory Panel and
Transport / Accessibility Best Value Improvement
Plan Update

WARD(s): Boroughwide

1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 To inform Members of the Urban Renewal PPB, of the agreed
membership arrangements for the forthcoming municipal year of
the Halton Public Transport Advisory Panel, and provide an
update on progress being made to implement recommendations
as set out in the recently completed Transport and Accessibility
Best Value Improvement Plan.

2.0 RECOMMENDED: - That Members note:-

e  During the municipal year 2007/8, the Halton Public Transport
Liaison Panel will comprise of the following Members: Clirs
Hignett (Chair), Morley, Polhill and Sly.

o Progress being made to implement the recommendations as
set out in the Transport and Accessibility Improvement Plan.

3.0 SUPPORTING INFORMATION
Halton Public Transport Advisory Panel

3.1 Urban Renewal Policy and Performance Board resolved when
they met on the 21" June 2006 (Minute URB12), that the Chair of
Urban Renewal PPB, in consultation with the Executive Board
Holder should nominate at the start of each municipal year the
Chair and three Members to attend the Halton Public Transport
Advisory Panel.

3.2 The nominations for the forthcoming municipal year are as
follows: -

e Chair — ClIr Hignett
e Other Members: - Clir's Morley, Polhill and Sly.

3.3 The purpose of the Halton Public Transport Advisory Panel is to: -



Page 83

¢ Monitor the performance of the public transport network within
the Borough to ensure it meets the mobility needs of local
people and the principles of Best Value;

¢ To make recommendations to the Urban Renewal Policy and
Performance Board for amendments and improvements to the
public transport network; and

e Toreview and comment on the effectiveness of the Council’s
public transport policies.

Transport and Accessibility Best Value Improvement Plan.

3.4

3.5

3.6

Urban Renewal PPB also considered a report when they met on
the 15™ November 2006, detailing the outcome of the recently
completed Transport and Accessibility Best Value Review and
requested (through Minute URB33) regular updates on progress
with the various initiatives outlined in the accompanying Best
Value Improvement Plan.

The Best Value Improvement Plan included a number of
recommendations based on the following themes: -

o Improving the quality and accessibility of public transport
services within Halton, by the introduction of a single
integrated booking system;

o Developing the local bus network within the Borough;

e Improving the quality of passenger information, including the
further development of real time passenger information;

o Improving further the provision of good quality and accessible
transport for post sixteen learners;

e Reducing the environmental impact of passenger transport
within Halton;

o Internal service improvements

Progress being made against a number of these improvement
themes is detailed in Appendix One.

4.0 POLICY IMPLICATIONS

41

As can be seen in Appendix One a number of key improvements
are being made to improve public transport services and
accessibility within the Borough in support of the Halton Local
Transport Plan 2006/7 — 2010/11.

5.0 OTHER IMPLICATIONS

5.1

Progress is being made to improve access to Warrington General
Hospital following the reorganisation of health care facilities
between Halton and Warrington General Hospital sites during
2006.



Page 84

6.0 RISK ANALYSIS

6.1 Many of the transport improvements set out in the Best Value
Improvement Plan, are subject to the Authority securing external
funding or the delivery of effective partnership agreements with
key partners.

7.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES

7.1 The service improvements will ensure that all sections of the
community benefit from good quality public transport choices, with
a special emphasis to ensure that access to key facilities is
improved especially for socially excluded people.

11.0 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF THE
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972

Document Place of Inspection Contact Officer
Final Report of the Best Value and Les Unsworth

Best Value Review of Performance Best Value Advisor
Transportation and Management Division, Ext. 1162

Access Municipal Buildings,

Widnes.



Page 85

Appendix One -
Transport and Accessibility Best Value Improvement Plan — Update

(June 2007)
Improvement Initiative Progress/Timescale | Cost (£) /
Theme Funding

Source

Improving the o New o Software o £125,535
quality and integrated purchased — (Local
accessibility of passenger March 07 Transport Plan)
public transport booking / Installation and
services within scheduling testing (June / July
Halton, by the system. 2007)

introduction of a
single integrated
booking system

e Launch of
new “Door to
Door”
bookable
transport
service for
residents.

e Purchase of
additional fully
accessible
buses for
Halton
Community
Transport.

o Anticipated launch
of new service -
October 2007. All
bookings to be
routed through
Halton Direct Link
contact centre
(open 24 hrs per
day)

o Delivered in
January 2007

o Existing
Resources

e £85,000
(Local
Transport Plan)

Developing the
local bus
network within
the Borough

e Launch of
new pre —paid
multi operator
travel tickets
(including
“Halton
Hopper”);

o New service
700 linking
Widnes to
Liverpool
John Lennon
Airport and
Manchester

e Introduced May
2006

e Introduced 3"
June 2007.

o Existing
resources in
partnership
with bus
operators

e £87,000
over 3
years.

Halton BC

“‘pump priming”

service through

a 3 year funding

agreement with

Arriva (North




Page 86

West and
Wales)
New service Planned for e Jointly
linking the September 2007 funded by
Borough to Halton BC
Warrington and North
General Cheshire
Hospital NHS
Hospitals
Trust.
Improvements To be completed |« £350,000
to Halton lea mid August 2007. | (Local
North Bus Transport Plan)
Station
Improving the New Introduced in o £12,000
quality of computerised December 2006 (Local
passenger bus timetable Transport Plan)
information, information
including the system for
further use at bus
development of stops.
real time
passenger
information
Reducing the Use of September 2007. | o Existing
environmental biofuels in the Resources
impact of Council Fleet
passenger Vehicles.

transport within
Halton




Page 87 Agenda ltem 6a

REPORT TO: Urban Renewal PPB

DATE: 20 June 2007

REPORTING OFFICER: Chief Executive

SUBJECT: Performance Management Reports for 2006/07
WARDS: Boroughwide

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 To consider and raise any questions or points of clarification in respect of the
4th quarter year-end performance management reports on progress against
service plan objectives and performance targets, performance
trends/comparisons, factors affecting the services etc. for:

e Economic Regeneration

Highways & Transportation
Environment & Regulatory Services
Culture & Leisure

Major Projects

Health & Partnerships

2. RECOMMENDED: That the Policy and Performance Board
1) Receive the 4™ quarter year-end performance management reports;

2) Consider the progress and performance information and raise any
questions or points for clarification; and

3) Highlight any areas of interest and/or concern where further
information is to be reported at a future meeting of the Policy and
Performance Board.

3. SUPPORTING INFORMATION

3.1 The departmental service plans provide a clear statement on what the
services are planning to achieve and to show how they contribute to the
Council’'s strategic priorities. The service plans are central to the Council’s
performance management arrangements and the Policy and Performance
Board has a key role in monitoring performance and strengthening
accountability.

3.2 The quarterly reports are on the Information Bulletin to reduce the amount of
paperwork sent out with the agendas and to allow Members access to the
reports as soon as they have become available.

It also provides Members with an opportunity to give advance notice of any
questions, points or requests for further information that will be raised to
ensure the appropriate Officers are available at the PPB meeting.



4.1

5.1

6.1

Page 88

POLICY AND OTHER IMPLICATIONS

There are no policy implications associated with this report.

RISK ANALYSIS

Not applicable.

EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES

Not applicable.

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTIONS 100D OF THE
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972

Document Place of Inspection Contact Officer



Page 89

QUARTERLY MONITORING REPORT

DIRECTORATE: Health & Community
SERVICE: Culture and Leisure Services
PERIOD: Quarter 4 2006/07

1.0 INTRODUCTION

This quarterly monitoring report covers the Culture & Leisure
Department for the period 1 January 2007 to 31 March 2007. It
describes key developments and progress against all objectives and
performance indicators for the service.

Given that there are a considerable number of year-end transactions still
to take place a Financial Statement for the period, which will be made
available in due course, has not been included within this report in order
to avoid providing information that would be subject to further change
and amendment.

The way in which traffic lights symbols have been used to reflect
progress to date is explained within Appendix 6

It should be noted that this report is presented to a number of
Policy and Performance Boards. Those objectives and indicators
that are not directly relevant to this Board have been shaded grey.

2.0 KEY DEVELOPMENTS

The revised timetable for the Mobile Library was introduced in March
with 60 new stops. The response has been very positive so far with 150
new members in the first month. As well as introducing new stops, the
hours have been extended so the service is available after 5pm and on
Saturdays.

An application to redevelop the library at Halton Lea was submitted to
the Big Lottery Community Libraries fund at the end of March.

The £1.4 million bid aims to improve the layout and facilities of the library
and create appropriate learning and community spaces for the whole
community.

A new Anti-Social Behaviour Strategy for Halton has been finalised
following extensive consultation. The Strategy — Promoting Positive
Behaviour will be launched at Victoria Park on 10™ May 2007.

External funding has been achieved to carry out a feasibility study on
establishing a one-stop-shop for the voluntary sector in Halton.

Culture and Leisure Services



Page 90

Connexions are to establish a Youth Academy at Grangeway
Community Centre.

A consultant has been commissioned to produce a Public Art Strategy
for Halton.

The Brindley has become a nationally accredited Arts Award Centre for
young people aspiring to be artists and arts leaders.

Parks and Countryside’s new Brochure has been produced for 2007/08.
There will be 168 free events available to the Halton public.

3.0 EMERGING ISSUES

Executive Board have agreed the establishment of an Olympic 2012
fund, within existing resources to encourage young people to aspire to
participation in sport at the highest level.

Executive Board have agreed in principle the hosting of a two day youth
cultural festival in July 2008 as part of the Capital of Culture
celebrations. Other Merseyside authorities and their twin towns will be
invited to participate.

A Member/Officer group have finalised processes to manage Alleygates.
The procedure will go to Executive Board on 16% May 2007 to seek
approval.

4.0 PROGRESS AGAINST KEY OBJECTIVES / MILESTONES

o o -
Total 6 2 5 w0 ol 1
T =] o]

(Appendix 1)

4.1 PROGRESS AGAINST OTHER OBJECTIVES / MILESTONES

O o -
Total 4 214 <0 ol 0
' =] =

(Appendix 2)

Culture and Leisure Services



Page 91

5.0 SERVICE REVIEW

The Draft report from the IDeA has been received following their
assessment visit of Culture and Leisure Services under the Towards an
Excellent Service regime. The report judged the service to be good.

The report is awaited from Government Office North West regarding the
Regional Agencies assessment of Culture and Leisure Services
following their visit in March.

Under the CPA assessment, Culture and Leisure Services scored a
maximum of 4, and were only one of two authorities nationally to show
significant improvement.

6.0 PROGRESS AGAINST KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

o o -

Total 6 kil 4 R 0 o 2
s o o

(Appendix 3)

6.1 PROGRESS AGAINST OTHER PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

o o -

Total 38 kil 22 R 0 O 6
s (o] o

(Appendix 4) Traffic lights not assigned for BVPI 226 & 170 (awaiting
data) and C16, 17, 18 & 19 for which no targets were set.

7.0 PROGRESS AGAINST LPSA TARGETS

For details of progress against LPSA targets, please refer to Appendix 5

8.0 RISK CONTROL MEASURES

During the production of the 2006-09 Service Plan, the service was
required to undertake a risk assessment of all Key Service Objectives.

Where a Key Service Objective has been assessed and found to have
associated ‘High’ risk, progress against the application of risk treatment
measures is to be monitored, and reported in the quarterly monitoring
report in quarters 2 and 4.

At the end of year, all relevant risk treatment measures have been
implemented for key service objectives that were initially assessed as

Culture and Leisure Services



Page 92

high risk in the Directorate Risk Register.

9.0 PROGRESS AGAINST HIGH PRIORITY EQUALITY ACTIONS

During 2005/06 the service was required to undertake an Equality
Impact Assessment. Progress against actions identified through that
assessment, with associated High priority are to be reported in the
quarterly monitoring report.

There are no High priority equality actions for this service, there is no
progress to report.

10.0 APPENDICES

Appendix 1- Progress against Key Objectives/ Milestones
Appendix 2- Progress against Other Objectives/ Milestones
Appendix 3- Progress against Key Performance Indicators
Appendix 4- Progress against Other Performance Indicators
Appendix 5- Progress against LPSA Targets

Appendix 6- Explanation of traffic light symbols

Culture and Leisure Services



01

Ensure Halton has maximum benefits as

Local working group

Sport England due to launch Vision

o
possible from Liverpool’s Capital of Culture established. Links with < document May 07.
2008 status CoC established. ¥
Develop programmes for
year of performance,
April 2006.
02 Develop programmes to enable Halton people | Establish policy with o Paper to Executive Board - fund
to benefit from 2012 London Olympics Sport England Sept o established. Programme to be
2006. * developed to include grants, coaching
Liase with local clubs clinics, special events, 2012 legacy.
(March 2006)
Roll out programme
03 Implement review of Sports Strategy Launch Strategy April [ ] Review complete.
2006 o
#]
04 Develop Arts Strategy Strategy developed with ¢] Nearing completion but overtaken by
Cultural Partners. March o need to produce a public arts strategy.
07 L& ]
05 Implement BLF proposals to enhance 2 ATP’s operative April [ ] BLF monitoring visit completed
community sports facilities 2006 ;E 12.03.07 all satisfactory
06 Develop and enhance Sports Resource Review book stock. % Book stock reviewed.
Centre’s Purchase standard texts. o 15 multi skill equipment resource bags
September 2006. i purchased and on long term loan to

community sport clubs.

APPENDIX ONE — PROGRESS AGAINST KEY OBJECTIVES/ MILESTONES
Culture and Leisure Services

£6 obed



Service
Plan Ref.

Objective

2006/07
Key Milestone

Progress
to date

Commentary

07

Contribute to Halton’s Health. Improvement by
increasing participation in sport and related
cultural activities

Develop adherence
levels April 2006.

]

]
i

*

Active people data provides full
demographic breakdown of current
participation rates. Results being
analysed at NW; Merseyside and
Halton to assist planning future
interventions. Intervention
examples Q4 Active aging
programme, sheltered
accommodation, 43 older people
involved, loan on sports equipment
to facility for regular participation.
Increased awareness via Stay
Active events and Healthy Halton
week promotions. Workplace health
walks. Focus for 2007/08 girls and
women’s 16+ and older adults.

08

Develop and implement community and leisure
opportunities as part of Castlefields
Regeneration

Scheme operative May
2006.

o0

Phoenix Park open and exceeding
all expectations, over 100,000 visits
in first year. 25 volunteers
registered, regular health walks,
coached activity. Scheme
developed for Community Centre.

o]

APPENDIX TWO - PROGRESS AGAINST OTHER OBJECTIVES/ MILESTONES

Culture and Leisure Services

6 abed



10

Establish a single service point for drug users Operative July 2006.
and those in recovery.

Complete.

o0

APPENDIX TWO - PROGRESS AGAINST OTHER OBJECTIVES/ MILESTONES
Culture and Leisure Services

G abed



Page 96

) Mo data for Annual
2 ] g Cuwturn Gzrtile came Ot 1argEt hit of

BFI Lower figures
1273 Vinlent crime per 1000 population represent better
performance
Key
i
I:I 20055
25 3
- 00T Trend
20
T et
15 Top 25%
1o Micdle S0%
3 I - Bottom 25% Green
u]
oy | =]

lastyear exceeded
Commentary

FLEASE MOTE - During February 2007 Cheshire Constabulary implemented new crime recording systems and
therefore, Cluarter 4 data may be subject to change during settlement period. Halton population for calculations
supplied is 118,450, During QUARTER 4 Halton Area recorded B46 Yialent crimes equating to 5.45 per 1000
population. Halton Area has achieved a 14.6% decrease when compared to previous quarter (756 to B46) and a 3.2%
decrease when compared to the same period during the previous year (704 to B46). Fiscally, 0607 Halton Area
recarded 2978 “iolent crimes equating to 25,14 per 1000 population. Ywhen compared to 05/06 Halton Area has
achieved 3 3 A5R% decrease (30 o 2978 Cnaerly oedormance dorineg 057 as follows Chare s O = 799 crimes or

BRI Loweer figures
127h Fobheries per 1,000 population represent hetter
perfarmance
ke
15 ¥
20055
12 - i Trend
Red
g T et
Top 25%
E l-l-l
R I:' Middlle 50%
l.l.l
3 L]
et - Bottom 25%
p— o - =
o = Mo data far Annual
oy | o2 o3 g Cuwturn Cizrtile same ot target
lastyear missed
Commentary

FLEASE MOTE - During February 2007 Cheshire Constabulary implemented new crime recording systems and
therefore, Cluarter 4 data may be subject to change during settlement period. Halton population for calculations
supplied is 118 4580, During QUARTER 4 Halton Area recarded 35 Rabbery crimes equating to 0.30 per 1000
population. Halton Area has achieved a 2.8% reduction when compared to previous guarter (36 to 35) and a 32.7%
reduction when compared to same period during the previous year (52 to 350). Fiscally, 0607 Halton Area recorded 137
Robbery crimes equating to 1.16 per 1000 population. However, when compared to 0506 Halton Area has increased
Eohhery b 3 799% (132 tn 1371 Cnarterly oedormance dorineg 0507 as follows Coaedonn 05 = 29 crimes or 024 ner

APPENDIX THREE — PROGRESS AGAINST KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
Culture and Leisure Services



BFI
128

20

Page 97

YYehicle crimes per 1000 population

15

10

0

1 a2 e g

Commentary
FLEASE MOTE - During February 2007 Cheshire Constabulary implemented new crime recording systerm and
therefore, Cluarter 4 data may be subject to change during settlement period. Halton population for calculations
supplied is 118 450, During QUARTER 4 Halton Area recarded 379 Yehicle crimes equating to 3.20 per 1000
population. Halton Area has increased recorded crimes by B.2% when compared to previous quarter (357 to 379)
however, have achieved a 16.3% decrease when compared to the same period during the previous year (453 to 379).
Figcally, 06/07 Halton Area recorded 1438 “ehicle crimes equating to 12.14 per 1000 population. When compared to
05MR Haltnn Area has achieved 8 23 7% decrease MBAR o 1435 Cnaderly oedornance dorineg 05207 a5 followes

Bl
198

7o
=]
a0
40
30

20

Farticipation in Orug Treatment Programmes (per

Cuwturn Gzrtile

1,000 population aged 15 to 44)

i

e Q2 e g

Commentary
Mumber of drug users in treatrment per 1,000 head of population aged 15-44 is based on February figures and may well
be higher at the end of year

1N )

Cuwturn Cizrtile

Lower figures
represent hetter
perfarmance

Key

I:I 20055
- 00T Trend

T et

Top 25%

hidclle S0%

- Bottom 25% Green

Mo data for Annual
same Qtr || target hit or
lastyear exceeded

Higher figures
represent better
perfarmance

Key

200505

- 0BT Trend

 Target

Top 25%

I:' iccdle 509
- Bottom 25% Green

Mo data far Annual
same Qir || target hit ar
lastyear exceeded

APPENDIX THREE — PROGRESS AGAINST KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Culture and Leisure Services



Page 98

BFI Higher figures
CALEIPLS Mumber of library visits per 1,000 population represent better
SRC 2o performance

ke
E000 i

I:I 20055
- 200657
4000

T et
Ly Top 25%
2000 Micdle S0%
1000 I - Biottom 25%
0
@1 @2 @3 4

Cutturn Gluartile Mo quartile data

=000

available
Commentary
Library visits have inceased by 5% this year
BRI Higher figures
CALEIC 4 Active borrowers as a % of population represent better
perfarmance
Ke
25 ¥
200505

i

A - 20067
15 I Tt
Top 25%
10
I:' hiclclle S0%
- Bottam 25%
1
sy o2 =3 G

Cutturn Zwartile o qua.mle st
available

Commentary

Trend

Green

Mo data for Annual
same Qtr || target hit or
lastyear exceeded

Trend

Mo data far Annual
Same Gir target
lastyear missed

Cwer 8,000 members joined in 200607 . YWe were on target at just over 21% until March. Howewver, a significant number
of peaple joined in Feb-Mar 2006, and & proportion of these have not used the library since, we therefore cannot count
these as active members now. This has resulted in a net loss overall. This figure will imprave slightly once the correct
population figure can be applied and the year end total will be 20.8%. We have been told by the organisation who help
us collate these figures (IPF) that our population is 119500 - current predictions are that it will be revised to 118300 in

August, and this revised population figure will be used.

APPENDIX THREE — PROGRESS AGAINST KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
Culture and Leisure Services



Corporate Health

BVPI Advise and guidance services, Final out-turn figure not yet available.
226
(a) Total spend by authority (£k) | 403 403
(b) % Of spend where service 81.4 81.4
provision was by
organisations holding the
CLS Quality Mark
(c) Direct provision (£k) 5790 5884
Cost Efficiency
BVPI Compliance against the Public 3 3 3 [ ] Target met.
220 Library Service Standards (PLSS) i
C13 Cost per visit (libraries) £3.13 £3.26 £3.25 % Target met.
&
¥
Service Delivery
BVPI (a) % Of library users who found | N/a 65% 88% [ ] All targets exceeded. Adult satisfaction
118 the book they wanted ;E rates were the highest in the country.
(b) % Of library users who found | N/a 70% 80% [ ]
the information they wanted i
(c) % Overall satisfaction of N/a 94% 97% (o]
Library Users %

APPENDIX FOUR — PROGRESS AGAINST OTHER PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
Culture and Leisure Services

66 abed



BVPI (a) Number of visits to/usages of 2202 2220 Awaiting figures from Catalyst Museum
170 museums per 1,000 population for final quarter.

(b) Number of those visits that were | 246 273

in person per 1,000 population

(c) Number of pupils visiting 21187 21200

museums in organised groups
BVPI Domestic burglaries per 1,000 14.43 13.3 13.72 PLEASE NOTE - During February 2007
126 households Cheshire Constabulary implemented new

crime recording systems and therefore,
Quarter 4 data may be subject to change
during settlement period. (Quarter 4
calculations are based on 48,550
households). During QUARTER 4 Halton
Area recorded 180 Domestic Burglaries
equating to 3.71 per 1000 households.
When compared to the same quarter
during the previous year Halton Area had
a 2.9% increase (175 to 180).

Fiscally Halton Area recorded 665
Domestic Burglaries equating to 13.70 per
1000 households and achieving a 4.5%
decrease when compared to 2005/06
(696 to 665)

APPENDIX FOUR — PROGRESS AGAINST OTHER PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Culture and Leisure Services

001 abed



BVPI Number of racial incidents recorded | 21.03 21 24 P January showed a sharp increase in the
174 by the Authority per 100,000 number of recorded incidents, but
population e February and March have seen a
decrease just as sharp. There is no
apparent pattern or reason for this,
although recent rise in ethnic population
may be a contributing factor, alongside
media attention.
BVPI % Of racial incidents that resulted in | 100% 100% 100% o All racial incidents had further action
175 further action taken.
BVPI Actions against domestic violence 91% 100% 100% o 11 out of 11 questions satisfied.
225 (the % of a set of 11 questions to
which the Authority can answer fus
“yes”)
PLSS 5 | Requests supply time,
/C11a
(a) % Within 7 days 52% 52% 50% ] Although the 7 day target has not been
e} met we have still achieved the Public
[ ] Library Standard for all 3 elements of this
(b) % Within 15 days 70% 70% 70% (o] Indicator and the CPA threshold targets.
i Number of reserves taken on pre-
— publication titles has affected
(c) % Within 30 days 85% 85% 85% g performance.
#]
PLSS 9/ | Annual items added through 272 226 230 [ ] Target exceeded, helped by stock
C11b purchase per 1,000 population < selection policy and discounts achieved
b through consortium buying.
PLSS Time taken to replenish the lending 4.54 6.2 5.24 (o] Target exceeded. As above.
10/ C11c | stock on access or available on loan i

APPENDIX FOUR — PROGRESS AGAINST OTHER PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Culture and Leisure Services

10| ebed



C12 Stock level and stock turn
C12 has now been deleted from the CPA
(a) Stock turn —issues per 1,000 | 6.99 7 7.02 [ ] range of indicators, although target met
population/books per 1,000 < due to active stock management policy.
population i
(b) Stock level per 1,000 1189 1135 1107 ¥ Need to increase items borrowed, or
population o] create extra service points to create
L& capacity to house extra stock.
C16 % Of 5-16 year olds in school sports | 79.9% 85% Not yet N/a Performance management of this
partnerships engaged in 2 hours a available indicator within Advisory service.
week minimum on high quality PE 06/07 figure is based on national PESCAL
and school sport within and beyond survey; the results are not available until
the curriculum September.
Cc17 % Of adults participating in at least N/a N/a 19.62% N/a Active people data provides full
30 minutes moderate intensity sport demographic breakdown of current
and active recreation on 3 or more participation rates. Results being
days a week analysed at NW; Merseyside and Halton
to assist planning future interventions
above inside average.
C18 % Of population volunteering in sport | N/a N/a 5.67% N/a Good level of volunteering above
and active recreation for at least 1 Merseyside average. Active volunteers
hour per week policy managed through Sports
Partnership.

APPENDIX FOUR — PROGRESS AGAINST OTHER PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Culture and Leisure Services

20| obeyd



Quality
BVPI % Of residents satisfied with (o] Results follow tri-annual survey of
119/ C5, o 2006/07. All targets met with encouraging
6,7,8,9 (a) sport and leisure N/a 54% 57% i upward trends. Need to continue
(o] marketing and communications strategy.
% Investment in Kingsway Learning Centre,
(b) libraries N/a 70% 80% ! the Brindley, Victoria Park and Leisure
g Centres have contributed to success.
(c) museums N/a 31% 32% é
e
v
(d) arts activities/venues N/a 36% 42% —
e
v
(e) parks and open spaces N/a 73% 77% —
PLSS 7/ | Assessment of users 16 and over of | N/a 94% 97% (o] Target exceeded. A number of nationally
C14a their library service i recognised initiatives undertaken.
C15 Museums accreditation 2 2 2 (o] Target met.
I+
#]
Fair Access
PLSS 1/ | Proportion of households living within Cannot meet (a) without a new library.
C2a a specified distance of a library, ] Had anticipated increase in (a) by virtue
e} of increase to mobile stops, but this was
(a) within 1 mile 62% 71% 62% [ ] subsequently deemed ineligible.
o]
(b) within 2 miles 98% 98% 98% ;E

APPENDIX FOUR — PROGRESS AGAINST OTHER PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Culture and Leisure Services

€01 abed



PLSS 2/ | Aggregate scheduled opening hours 92 91 ¢] Significant improvements have been
C2b per 1,000 population for all libraries o made with the introduction of the revised
2] Mobile timetable, but the 06/07 target has
not been achieved.
PLSS 3/ | % Of static libraries providing access 100% 100% [ ] Target met.
C3a to electronic information resources o
connected to the internet b
PLSS 4/ | Total number of electronic 7.6 7.6 [ ] Target met — service well used.
C3b workstations available to users per o
1,000 population #]
C19 % Of population that are within 20 N/a 35.62% a Within CPA thresholds.
minutes travel time (urban areas — by Work with partners to identify facilities to
walk; rural areas — by car) of a range work toward quality assured standards for
of 3 different sports facility types, of 2008/09 accreditation.
which one has a achieved a specified
quality assured standard

APPENDIX FOUR — PROGRESS AGAINST OTHER PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Culture and Leisure Services

01 ebed



Reduce the level of violent crime:

The number of recorded incidents of violent
crime within Halton (serious woundings and
common assault).

1913
(Mar 08)

N/a

O dr O

PLEASE NOTE - During February 2007

Cheshire Constabulary implemented new
crime recording systems and therefore,
Quarter 4 data may be subject to change
during settlement period. (Quarter 4
calculations are based on 118,450
population). During QUARTER 4 Halton Area
recorded 430 Common Assaults & Other
Woundings equating to 3.63 per 1000
population, also achieving a 8.3% reduction
when compared to the same period during
the previous year (469 to 430).

Fiscally Halton Area recorded 2005 Common
Assaults & Other Wounding equating to 16.93
per 1000 population, also achieving a 7.8%
reduction when compared to 2005/06 (2174
to 2005).

APPENDIX FIVE — PROGRESS AGAINST LPSA TARGETS

Culture and Leisure Services

GOl ebed



2 Reduction in vehicle crime in Halton: PLEASE NOTE - During February 2007

Cheshire Constabulary implemented new
crime recording systems and therefore,
Quarter 4 data may be subject to change
during settlement period. (Quarter 4
calculations are based on 118,450
population). During QUARTER 4 Halton Area
recorded 132 Theft OF Vehicles equating to
1.11 per 1000 population, also achieving a
17.0% reduction when compared to the same
period during the previous year (159 to 132).
Fiscally Halton Area recorded 529 Theft OF
Vehicles equating to 4.47 per 1000
population, also achieving a 28.1% reduction

i) The number of thefts of vehicles in Halton 558 N/a
(Mar 08)

w00

PLEASE NOTE - During February 2007

o Cheshire Constabulary implemented new

= crime recording systems and therefore,

* Quarter 4 data may be subject to change
during settlement period. (Quarter 4
calculations are based on 118,450
population). During QUARTER 4 Halton Area
recorded 247 Theft FROM Vehicles equating
to 2.09 per 1000 population, also achieving a
16.3% reduction when compared to the same
period during the previous year (295 to 247).
Fiscally Halton Area recorded 908 Theft
FROM Vehicles equating to 7.67 per 1000
population, also achieving a 21.1% reduction
when compared to 2005/06 (1151 to 908).

ii) The number of thefts from vehicles in Halton 749 N/a
(Mar 08)

APPENDIX FIVE — PROGRESS AGAINST LPSA TARGETS
Culture and Leisure Services

90| 8bed



LPSA LPSA Interim | Progress
Ref Definition Target Target (Traffic Commentary
(Stretch) | (Annual) lights)
3 Improving the health and well-being of o Now have baseline data by age/gender;
residents: distributed to partners; targeted work around
s girls 14-19 and older adults 50+. Introducing
The percentage of adults in Halton participating | Increase 19.62 performance management linked to LAA
in at least 30 minutes moderate intensity sport by 5% baseline reporting. Annual Active People survey to be
and active recreation (including recreational between result introduced 2008 to measure progress. Key
walking) on 3 or more days a week, as Nov 06 actions around communication, walking,
measured by Sport England’s Active People and Nov community activity.
survey. 09
4 Tackling the problems of domestic o Number of incidents by year end stood at
violence: 2132 — against a target of 1774.
'
1. The number of incidents of domestic 1774 1020
violence reported to the police (directly or (Mar 08)
through a third party) in Halton.
P This target is 282 — 20% of all incidents.
2. The proportion of incidents of domestic An 126 However, by year end 06/07, there had been
violence which result in a sanction detection. increase o 242 sanction detections.
of 5% This amounts to 11% of all incidents. It
between currently seems unlikely that the target will be
Mar 06 met by the end of 07/08.
and Mar Cheshire Police has an action plan and the
08 partnership hopes to tackle the issue.
P The target set for the reduction in repeat
3. The proportion of the total number of 18% 13.4% incidents was 18% of all incidents. By year
incidents of domestic violence reported © end 06/07 the figure was 20% of all incidents
annually to the police (directly or through a third from repeat victims.
party) in the same period, who are repeat
victims.

APPENDIX FIVE — PROGRESS AGAINST LPSA TARGETS
Culture and Leisure Services

/0 8bed



Reducing the harm caused by drug misuse:

1. The number of individuals in Halton who are
in contact with structured drug treatment
services.

2. The percentage of individuals in Halton
starting treatment who are retained in treatment
for over 12 weeks.

790

720

o0

879 at end of year. This is a provisional figure
provided by John Moores University using

NDTMS. The DAT is awaiting official
confirmation of this figure.

87% at Feb 07. Official end of year figures
will be received at the beginning of May.
Previous data indicates the interim target will
be met.

APPENDIX FIVE — PROGRESS AGAINST LPSA TARGETS
Culture and Leisure Services

80| obeyd



Page 109

The traffic light symbols are used in the following manner:

Objective Performance Indicators LPSA Indicators
(Excl. LPSA) Only

Green | Indicates that the Indicates that the annual Indicates that the
2| objective has 06/07 target has been target is on course to
— been achieved achieved or exceeded be achieved.

within the
appropriate
timeframe.

Amber o] N/A N/A Indicates that it is
< either unclear at this
< stage or too early to

state whether the
target is on course
to be achieved.

Red 4| Indicates that that Indicates that the Indicates that the
the_objective has annual 06/07 target has target will not be

not been not been achieved. achieved unless

achieved  within there is an

the  appropriate intervention or

timeframe. remedial action
taken.

APPENDIX SIX — EXPLANATION OF TRAFFIC LIGHT SYMBOLS
Culture and Leisure Services




Page 110

QUARTERLY MONITORING REPORT

DIRECTORATE: Environment
SERVICE: Economic Regeneration
PERIOD: Quarter 4 to year-end 31 March 2007

1.0 INTRODUCTION

This quarterly monitoring report covers the Economic Regeneration
Department for the period 1 January 2007 to 31 March 2007. It describes key
developments and progress against all objectives and performance indicators
for the service.

Given that there are a considerable number of year-end transactions still to
take place a Financial Statement for the period, which will be made available in
due course, has not been included within this report in order to avoid providing
information that would be subject to further change and amendment.

The way in which traffic lights symbols have been used to reflect progress to
date is explained within Appendix 5

It should be noted that this report is presented to a number of Policy and
Performance Boards. Those objectives and indicators that are not
directly relevant to this Board have been shaded grey.

2.0 KEY DEVELOPMENTS

The proposal, developed by TMP, to create a Liverpool City Region Single
Investment Agency (SIA) has been endorsed by the six Merseyside Local
Authorities (LA). The work of the new agency will begin in April 2007 with the
recruitment of a team of experienced sales people and market analysts to
identify and actively target mobile investment projects who’s locational
requirements can be satisfied in the sub-region.

The ICT Investment for Growth project (support to new businesses in the
transitional area) commenced January 1st 2007. From April 2007, this will be
extended across the borough using NRF funding.

The first of a series of town centre surgeries have taken place at the Borough'’s
Direct Links. As expected at this early stage and despite publicity before hand,
attendance was poor. The initiative will be kept under review.

The Lewis Carroll Study was discussed at a meeting with a representative from
the Heritage Lottery Fund (HLF) at the end of January, ready for final
submission in March. Funding issues regarding revenue expenditure and the
sustainability for future years were raised at the meeting. As a result of these
concerns, Daresbury Parish Church Council have elected to move forward with
a much scaled down plan which will house a smaller Lewis Carroll exhibition in

Economic Regeneration



Page 111

an annex to the Church. This will be presented to HLF end of July

Vintage Fair Organ and Steam Rally - In the past the concession has provided
the marquees in lieu of a site fee. HBC Stadium catering has expressed a
desire to operate the concession and this is being worked through.

An online calendar that can be accessed via the Council’'s Website, has been
set up to enable smaller organisation to benefit from listing small scale events
in Halton. The resource is free and open to everyone allowing individuals and
groups to input events into the system. It will be moderated to ensure the
integrity of the site is maintained.

Feedback on the new ‘Tourism Talk’ newsletter is proving positive. The next
edition is due in April.

The Annual Planning meeting with the Learning and Skills Council has taken
place and targets for the academic year 2007/8 have been established.
Additionally, the One Year Development Plan for adult learning has been
completed.

Meetings are taking place with local employers involved in 3MG to identify
future employment opportunities and skill requirements. NRF has been secured
to map out the skills requirements of the logistics and distribution sector across
Halton.

A Big Lottery expression of interest has been submitted that would fund the
delivery of a Family Science programme totalling £209K. Partners include
schools, the Catalyst Science Discovery Centre and Daresbury Labs.

As part of the ongoing skills development work, local businesses identified a
lack of cost effective IT courses. As a result, the adult learning service has
recently commenced delivering short course to fill this gap on a full cost
recovery basis. The service has already delivered 6 courses.

The new Enterprise Development Officer took up post on 1/1/2007 and has had
an immediate impact on raising enterprise awareness and promoting effective
working relationships with enterprise partner organisations. The NRF secured
for Train 2000 has enabled a Women’s Enterprise Training Programme to
commence and Silver Entrepreneurs have delivered enterprise awareness
sessions for people aged 50 years and over. Four experienced business start-
up advisers have been commissioned to deliver Enterprise Outreach Broker
sessions at various venues across the borough. HPiJ have commissioned the
development of an Enterprise Charter Training Programme to raise awareness
of self-employment opportunities for priority customers.

The new Neighbourhood Employment Outreach project has begun to operate
in the seven priority wards and has already achieved 32 confirmed job
outcomes.

A number of small value employment related contracts have been secured that
will contribute to operating expenditure during the coming financial year. -

1. Connexions Partnership/LSC Next Steps contract for Advice & Guidance
delivered to priority customers aged 20 years and over

Economic Regeneration



Page 112

2. Jobcentre Plus Pathways to Work In Work Support Service for Incapacity
Benefit customers moving into employment across the JCP Grater Mersey
District (Halton, Knowsley, Sefton & St Helens)

3. LSC Discretionary Fund to support salary costs of an Apprentice Co-
ordinator.

3.0 EMERGING ISSUES

Following on from the PPB topic review of the Business Park Improvement
Programme on four industrial areas in the Borough, two areas have been
identified as potential Business Improvement Districts (BIDs). A report will be
submitted to the next Executive Board requesting approval to proceed to formal
ballot.

The Promotions and Tourism Events Officer left the Authority on March 30 to
take up a new post. With the passing of the Halton Show the post will be
reviewed with the proposed Capital of Culture 2008 very much in mind.

A private sector chair, Andrew Littlewood from INEOS, has been appointed to
chair Halton Science Forum. A meeting schedule will now be put in place for
the forthcoming year.

With the creation of a Liverpool City Region Single Investment Agency (SIA)
there will be a profound effect upon the way investment enquiries are managed
locally. Over the coming months it will be necessary to integrate new ‘sub-
regional’ ways of working into existing, local, service delivery to ensure that the
Borough isn’t disadvantaged with respect to the generation of investment
projects. HBC has identified the £50,000 contribution required for year one but
is yet to identify funding for future years.

Plans to appoint a China/UK Business Development Support Officer, which
were on hold, are to be progressed later this year following the signing of an
offer of financial support from the North West Development Agency.

Agreement has been reached between the Council and The Mersey
Partnership (TMP) with respect to the delivery of Business Aftercare in Halton.
The current post holder will continue to be employed by TMP until 30
September 2007 servicing existing clients. The post holder will work up to 50
days in the period. TMP will also engage a full time replacement as soon as
possible. After October 1 2007 the position of the existing post holder will be
reviewed by TMP and HBC. At that point there is an option to retain the
services of the current post holder on a consultancy basis to deliver specific
investment projects.

During 2007-08, part of the town centre management budget will be overseen
by traders forums. The forums will be able to identify ways that the money
should be spent but all ideas must be aimed at improving the town centres. It is
hoped this will engage more traders in the forums and encourage traders to
contribute themselves as they see the council putting in money. The money for
core activities such as Christmas lights, gum cleaning, hanging baskets etc will
continue to be held separately.

Economic Regeneration



Page 113

The LSC’s Planning and Modelling System (PAMS), which is used for
commissioning of adult learning, is still not operational in Halton — technical
difficulties between HBC and LSC are still to be resolved. This means that the
Team is unable to access the many reports and databases stored on PAMS. It
is understood that Halton is the only council on Merseyside not to have the
system operational.

The merging of the Adult Learning Inspectorate with OFSTED (April 2008) will
mean that any future inspections of LSC-funded provision within a local council
will be joint inspections i.e. if any other department receives LSC funding, the
Adult Learning Team and that other department would be jointly inspected, with
a joint inspection report completed. This has implications in terms of inspection
nominee, etc.

Liverpool City Employment Strategy (CES). It now seems likely that Halton will
receive its share of the Deprived Area Funding directly through its LAA
processes (though how this works in detail is yet to be clarified). This is good
news as it means each Borough will have much more control that it would have
had if some of the other options had been pursued.

4.0 PROGRESS AGAINST KEY OBJECTIVES / MILESTONES

s © Ea
Total 7 * 7 < 0 o 0
L (o] o]

(Appendix 1)

4.1 PROGRESS AGAINST OTHER OBJECTIVES / MILESTONES

There are no ‘Other’ objectives for this service

5.0 SERVICE REVIEW

The Urban Renewal PPB has completed its review of the Business Parks
Improvement Programme and recommends that a report be sent to Executive
Board regarding the creation of two Business Improvement Districts.

The Employment Learning and Skills SSP will complete two reviews in 2007-08
e Halton People into Jobs
e Adult Learning Post Inspection Plan

The Department has reviewed its web based content and has commissioned
the development of a rationalised but enhanced web presence.

The review of the skills enquiry service has concluded that this service is no
longer required as the LSC Train to Gain programme now exists.

Economic Regeneration



Page 114

6.0 PROGRESS AGAINST KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

G @ b
Total 11 - 9 R 0 o 2
i o] o]

(Appendix 2)

6.1 PROGRESS AGAINST OTHER PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

o o -
Total 2 - 2 e 0 o 0
i o] o]

(Appendix 3)

7.0 PROGRESS AGAINST LPSA TARGETS

For details of progress against LPSA targets, please refer to Appendix 4

8.0 RISK CONTROL MEASURES

During the production of the 2006-09 Service Plan, the service was required to
undertake a risk assessment of all Key Service Objectives.

Of all the Key Service Objectives, four were assessed as having associated
High risk — Key Objectives reference ER 03, 04, 05 and 07. Progress against
the application of risk treatment measures is to be monitored, and reported in
the quarterly monitoring report in quarters 2 and 4.

For details of progress against the risk treatment measures applied to this
objective, please refer to Appendix 5.

9.0 PROGRESS AGAINST HIGH PRIORITY EQUALITY ACTIONS

During 2005/06 the service was required to undertake an Equality Impact
Assessment. Progress against actions identified through that assessment, with
associated High priority are to be reported in the quarterly monitoring report.

There are no High priority equality actions for this service, there is no progress
to report.

Economic Regeneration



Page 115

10.0 APPENDICES

Appendix 1- Progress against Key Objectives/ Milestones
Appendix 2- Progress against Key Performance Indicators
Appendix 3- Progress against Other Performance Indicators
Appendix 4- Progress against LPSA targets

Appendix 5- Progress against Risk Control Measures
Appendix 6- Financial Statement

Appendix 7- Explanation of traffic light symbols

Economic Regeneration



Service

2005/06

Progress

Plan Ref. CafEElie Key Milestone to date* DRI 25

ER 01 Promote diversity and competitiveness, in | Implement Phase 1
order to develop a modernised and more | marketing action plan by o Phase 1 Implemented
competitive business base to provide greater | 31-3-07 *
employment  security for the Halton
community. Halebank CCTYV live by Halebank CCTV live

30-6-06

Secure next phase Funding secured, project on-going

eHalton by 30-6-07

Revise all CRM and web Review has been completed. The next

sites by 31-3-07 stage is already progressing ahead of
schedule and is an upgrade of
www.widnes-runcorn.com site.

ER 02 Develop sectors and clusters with a view to Implement phase 1sector o Tourism Sector Plan now in place.
developing stronger business inter-linkages plans for tourism, science * Key personnel have been identified
and stronger overall business performance in | and chemicals by 31-3- 1 for reporting and delivery purposes.
Halton 07 The Tourism Forum has reformed and

meets quarterly, chaired by John
Wells from Claymoore Navigation.
The Forum provides business with a
voice and influence with HBC and
TMP.
Hold Science and November Economic Forum took
technology showcase by place at Daresbury Labs and
30-9-06 showcased what is available there
o
5
T

APPENDIX ONE — PROGRESS AGAINST KEY OBJECTIVES/ MILESTONES

Economic Regeneration

91| ebed



Champion by 31-7-06
Launch Enterprise Game Enterprise Game Launched 16/11/06.
by 31-3-07
ER 04 Reduce unemployment and increase Secure future of HPiJ & HPiJ funding secured until 31/3/2008.
employment by equipping people with the Emp team by 01-4-06 o
basic skills and assisting them to secure i
employment.
Develop employment SSP approved Employment Strategy
action plans for 4 key by and Action Plan.
30-9-06
Establish 1 new social Two new social enterprises have been
enterprise by 31-3-07 established.
Implement ALT post The Phase 1 Post-Inspection Action
inspection action plan Plan is completed whilst phase 2
Phase 1 by 31-3-07 continues to be implemented and sits
alongside the Self-Assessment Report
2005/6. It is a scrutiny topic for the
ELS PPB. The LSC has approved the
Team’s Adult Learning Plan for
2007/8 provision and we await final
financial allocations.
ER 05 Raise workforce skill levels by reviewing and | Assist in establishing new o SSP was established in April 2006.
addressing the skills deficit in Halton. SSP by 30-6-06 o The Skills Sub-Group of the SSP has
* now also been established and during
Q4 has met on 2 occasions. Its focus
will be from non-accredited provision
right through to supporting access to
HE provision.

APPENDIX ONE - PROGRESS AGAINST KEY OBJECTIVES/ MILESTONES

Economic Regeneration

/1| 8bed



Service Obiective 2005/06 Progress Commenta

Plan Ref. ) Key Milestone to date* ry

ER 06 Encouraging investment in land and property | Commercial property o Halton Commercial Property Study
to develop assets that meet business needs | review by * completed and reported to PPB on
and help to produce an attractive and | 31-12-06 u March 21 2007

prosperous Borough.

Delivery of Ph 3 BIA
scheme for EDZ by
31-3-07

DISTP venture capitalist
event by 31-12-06

BIA Ph 3 completed. Project
exceeding all output targets. The
project has been financially re-profiled
to enable delivery until 31.12.07.

Daresbury Incubator is nearing
capacity and links established with
Venture Capital community

APPENDIX ONE — PROGRESS AGAINST KEY OBJECTIVES/ MILESTONES

Economic Regeneration

gl | obed



Service Obiective 2005/06 Progress Commenta
Plan Ref. ) Key Milestone to date* ry
ER 07 Improving the environment and image of the Annual footfall statement All footfall counters installed and

borough including town centres, to appeal to
residents, encourage visitors, businesses and
investors.

by 30-9-06

Complete Victoria Square
night time plan by 30-6-
06

Establish Viability of BIDs
by 30-9-06

L]

T
e

i

operational.

Victoria Square report approved by
Exec Board

BID’s study completed. Concept
rejected by traders in both Widnes
and Runcorn, but supported on two
industrial estates.

APPENDIX ONE — PROGRESS AGAINST KEY OBJECTIVES/ MILESTONES

Economic Regeneration

611 obed



Page 120

Higher figures

ECORLI1 Number of local people into jobs represent better
performance
Key
700 ’777777777777777777777777:7777: 77777777
|:| 2005/6
600 — - - - - - - - - — - et I
I:l 2006/7 Trend
R TS I 1 -
400 +---------------~] ] e R
300 f e ] B SN e
200 +---------1 [----] - e R
00+ -4 [----1 N I I I Green
o L
. No quart”e data No data for Annual
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Outturn  Quartile available same Qtr ||target hit or
last year exceeded
Commentary

HPiJ have achieved 205 confirmed job outcomes from 1st January '07 to 27th March '07(with an additional 30 awaiting start
date confirmation letters). Of which 32 were achieved via engagement with the Outreach job brokers service (plus an
additional 18 awaiting confirmation letters), and of which 48 were from priority groups / disadvantaged wards and therefore
benefited from financial support to help them access employment. The Employment Team have helped 31 local people into
jobs during the period.

Number of local people with disabilities into Higher figures

represent better
ECORLI2 permitted/paid work ;)errormance
Key
100

04+ --—-—-—"-—-—"—"“"“"—“" -~~~ —~—~—~—~—~—~—~—— e — — — — g — — — — — — — I:l 2005/6
80 - |:| 2006/7 Trend
(e e I B

60 & - - - — - - [ I = Target

Sl S —— — L L Top 25%
40+ ] 11

1 [ RS B |:| Middle 50%
207 - Bottom 25% Green
104--7171---1 [--—-1 - - -

‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ o No quartile data || No data for [ Annual
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Outturn  Quartile available same Qtr ||target hit or
last year exceeded
Commentary

HPiJ has supported 32 clients (who were in receipt of a disability related benefit) into paid employment in Q4 and the
Employment Team have supported 9 clients into supported permitted work. The significant improvement over the target
reflects the new ways of working developed since the service has been transferred into the department.

APPENDIX TWO - PROGRESS AGAINST KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
Economic Regeneration




Page 121

Number of learners accessing adult learning Higher figures

ECORLI3 .. . represent better
provision (by end of July) - academic year performance
Key
3500 -
— I |:| 2006/7
3000 +-------[ p--------mmee o -
I:l 2007/8 Trend
250+ — | (-~ |
2000 | f---- fo----mmmmmmmeo o] e
1500 - e b o
1000 +{ f----| f----—=---- e T
500 4 SR I - N - Bottom 25% Green
0 T T
i No quart”e data Better than Annual
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Outturn  Quartile available this time last| | target hit or
year exceeded
Commentary

This quarter takes into account all new Spring term classes that started in January and ended end March 2007. The
number of learners accessing adult learning provision during Q4 were healthy and showed just over a 10% increase on the
Q3 return. Apart from about 70 learners who come from the small Service Level Agreement with Years Ahead (an elders'
arts project), the remaining learners are those accessing provision delivered directly by the Adult Learning Team.

Number of learner enrolments (by end of July) - Higher figures
ECO RLI 4 . represent better
academic year performance

Key

— _ I:l 2006/7
4000 - - |:| 2007/8 Trend

3000 - 1 S I = Target

5000

Top 25%

|:| Middle 50%
1000 - - Bottom 25% Green

2000 | |- f--- -1 |---------

0 T T 1
. No quartile data Worse than Annual
at @2 a3 Q4 Outturn  Quartile available this time last| | target hit or
year exceeded
Commentary

Q4 saw an increase in enrolments compared to Q3. This could suggest that despite increases in fees for learners, there
are still sufficient learners prepared to pay the £30 for a Next Steps class (in Q3 this seemed not to be the case). Each term
(quarter) can be different dependent upon the learners accessing the service, however, looking back at the overall
performance for the year, enrolments have remained healthy.

APPENDIX TWO - PROGRESS AGAINST KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
Economic Regeneration




Page 122

Number of inward investment enquiries per
annum

ECORLI 5

L ———__——_—_———————m——»

300 f---------------------

250 - -

200 +-------------- -- --

150 4~~~ - - -

100 - - -~ -~ -- -- --

50 + - - - -

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Outturn  Quartile

Commentary

Higher figures
represent better
performance

Key

|:| 2005/6
I:l 2006/7

No quartile data
available

Trend
Green
Worse than Annual
this time last|| target hit or
year exceeded

Strong performance throughout the year. However, reductions in the marketing budget next year may mean it is difficult to

maintain this level of performance.

ECORLI 6 Inward investment enquiry conversion rate
15
10 + - - - .- .-
5 € - — —4 B 1 e
0
Q1 Q4 Outturn  Quartile
Commentary

Higher figures
represent better
performance

Key

I:l 2005/6
- 2006/7

e Target

Top 25%

|:| Middle 50%
- Bottom 25%

No quartile data
available

Trend

Better than
this time last

year

Annual
target hit or
exceeded

Strong performance compares favourably with near neighbours. Future years conversions may be effected by reducing

supply of land and buildings.

APPENDIX TWO - PROGRESS AGAINST KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
Economic Regeneration




Page 123

Higher figures

Contribution to the number of jobs created, as a

ECORLI7 . . . . represent better
direct result of the service/s being provided performance
Key
BOO - —— - - - — - m - m oo
|:| 2005/6
B I:l 2006/7 Trend
Red
300 —
200 -
100 +--------- ﬂ‘ et T e T N R
0 ’_‘ T T T T
. No quart”e data No data for Annual
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Outturn  Quartile available same Qtr target
last year missed
Commentary

Whilst the conversion rate is holding up, there are less jobs being created by the smaller existing companies that
traditionally have boosted the figures.

Contribution to the number of jobs safe guarded, Higher figures

represent better
ECORLI® 3 a direct result of the servicels being provided ;)erformance
Key
1200 -

I:l 2005/6
100 —
|:| 2006/7 Trend
— — Red

800 1 - —-----------m-mm-- - L-{ B-------

s Target

600 -~~~ ———————————— I R N O Top 25%

400 f-- oo oo oo i A e I (R |:|Middle50%
oY SN SR 6 ) T

‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ o No quartile data || No data for Annual
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Outturn  Quartile available same Qtr target
last year missed
Commentary

HPiJ has supported 19 clients who were facing redundancy into employment in Q4. As a new indicator for this year the
2005-06 year end calculation used, as a basis for setting the 2006-07 target, did include an element of double counting with
local people into work which has been removed from this years calculation.

APPENDIX TWO - PROGRESS AGAINST KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
Economic Regeneration




Page 124

Higher figures
represent better
performance

Number of businesses actively supported as a

ECORLI® direct result of the service/s being provided

Key
L I

|:| 2005/6
10
I:l 2006/7 Trend

s Target

61 % Top 25%

47 I:l Middle 50%
2 - - Bottom 25% Green

0 1 L
} No quart”e data No data for Annual
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Outturn  Quartile available same Qtr ||target hit or
last year exceeded
Commentary

The 8 business start-ups have been achieved via a partnership arrangement with Halton Chamber of commerce &
Enterprise and 2 social enterprises via Business Link for Greater Merseyside and Mitchell Charlesworth. An Enterprise
Development Officer was appointed in January 2007 and she has now etablished an Enterprise Outreach Service to
support people into self-employment and has commissioned Train 2000, a Women's Enterprise & Training Organisation
and Silver Entrepreneurs to promote business start-up and self employment opportunities for women and people aged 50
years and over

There are 2 indicators that are reported on an annual basis:
ER Pl 10 — Number of day visitors to the borough

Data for 2004 = 4,013,380 visitors.
Data for 2005 = 4,154,400 (3.4% increase)
Data for 2006 will be out much later in 2007 (Target = year 2005 + 2%)

Commentary — these figures are based on the national STEM model. The initial figures for
any one year are early estimates and subject to review as the model is finalised later.

]
i)
b

ER Pl 11 — Footfall in Town Centres (millions)

Data for 2005-06 = 8.9 million.
Target for 2006/7 = year 2005/6 + 2% = 9.08 million.
Data for 2006-07 = 9.2 million (March 2007 figure to be added to this when available)

Commentary — Not directly comparable to previous years as all data points are now active.
Additionally, the contracted company has been experiencing data retrieval problems which
are presently being resolved so figures for first 11 months of the year need to be treated with
caution.

]

i)
b

T

APPENDIX TWO - PROGRESS AGAINST KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
Economic Regeneration




Quality
ER PI Percentage of business customers New for Baseline 100% Each individual or company requesting
12/ using the inward investment services | 06/07 to be set o commercial property information is invited
(including aftercare) expressing o to comment on the Service.
satisfaction with the services & ¥ Approximately 20% of clients respond. Of
support provided these respondents, 100% expressed
(Audit Commission ECR18e) satisfaction with the Service.
Cost Efficiency
ER PI Cost per job created and/or New for | £150.00 £126.00 Baseline established using partial data
13/ safeguarded to which the authorities | 06/07 o available from 2005/06. 2006/07 Q4
inward investment promotional < represents accurate assessment with
activity has made a significant * quality verified data.
contribution.
(Audit Commission ECR18d)

APPENDIX THREE — PROGRESS AGAINST OTHER PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
Economic Regeneration

Gz ebed



LPSA LPSA Interim | Progress
Ref Definition Target Target (Traffic Commentary
(Stretch) | (Annual) lights)

10 Helping people improve their literacy,
numeracy and spoken English
The number of adults who gain a Skills for Life 116 30 in first 5
Level 1 or Level 2 qualification in Adult Literacy | Aug 08 year o On target to achieve PSA. 30 individuals
(and or Numeracy) or an ESOL Skills for Life 4 achieved Adult Literacy/Adult Numeracy
national qualification at Entry Level 1, Entry qualifications at Level 1/Level 2.
Level 2, Entry Level 3, Level 1 or Level 2.
(Measured in an academic year)

12 To increase the number of local residents
currently on incapacity benefits moving in
to work or self-employment. 38 confirmed sustainable job outcomes as at

p 30/3/07. There are a further 25 IB customers

The number of people who have been claiming 179 40 year & that have been supported into jobs but they
an incapacity benefit helped by Halton Borough | (Mar 09) one 4 have not yet reached the 13th week of

Council into sustained employment of at least
16 hours per week for 13 consecutive weeks or
more. (Cumulative over a 3 year period)

remaining in work at which time they can be
claimed as an output.

APPENDIX FOUR — PROGRESS AGAINST LPSA TARGETS

Economic Regeneration

92| ebed



Page 127

The traffic light symbols are used in the following manner:

Objective Performance Indicators LPSA Indicators
(Excl. LPSA) Only

Green | Indicates that the Indicates that the annual Indicates that the
| objective has 06/07 target has been target is on course to
~ been achieved achieved or exceeded be achieved.

within the
appropriate
timeframe.

Amber o] N/A N/A Indicates that it is
i either unclear at this
< stage or too early to

state whether the
target is on course
to be achieved.

Red 4| Indicates that that Indicates that the Indicates that the
the_objective has annual 06/07 target has target will not be

not been not been achieved. achieved unless

achieved  within there is an

the  appropriate intervention or

timeframe. remedial action
taken.

APPENDIX FIVE — EXPLANATION OF TRAFFIC LIGHT SYMBOLS
Economic Regeneration




Page 128

QUARTERLY MONITORING REPORT

DIRECTORATE: Environment
SERVICE: Environmental & Regulatory Services
PERIOD: Quarter 4 2006/07

1.0 INTRODUCTION

This quarterly monitoring report covers the Environment & Regulatory
Services Department for the period 1 January 2007 to 31 March 2007.
It describes key developments and progress against all objectives and
performance indicators for the service.

Given that there are a considerable number of year-end transactions
still to take place a Financial Statement for the period, which will be
made available in due course, has not been included within this report
in order to avoid providing information that would be subject to further
change and amendment.

The way in which traffic lights symbols have been used to reflect
progress to date is explained within Appendix 5.

It should be noted that this report is presented to a number of
Policy and Performance Boards. Those objectives and indicators
that are not directly relevant to this Board have been shaded grey.

2.0 KEY DEVELOPMENTS

Environmental Health, Enforcement and Building Control Division
In Building Control, since the last report there are 3 items of interest: we
have dealt with the Introduction of New Fire Safety Regulations and the
Fire Safety Regulatory Reform; Local Authority Registers of Building
Control Information Consultation and The Energy Performance of
Buildings Regulations 2007.

To further enhance our actions to address emerging and long standing
environmental issues throughout the borough, a principal officer is now
in post with the task co-ordinating the Environment Directorates
enforcement activities. The role will primarily be responsible for pulling
together the Directorates enforcers, and key partners to deal with
singular and multi-functional environmental problems throughout the
Borough and to further the safer, greener, cleaner agenda.

Environmental Health’s Food Safety and Standards team have

Environment & Regulatory



Page 129

achieved 100% of high-risk safety inspections and 100% of high-risk
food standards inspections. The food team has launched the first phase
of it's "scores on the doors" scheme to publicise the hygiene rating of
food premises in the borough on the Halton BC web pages. The site
has so far received 8000 hits. The team successfully bid for funding
from the FSA for it's " Safer Food Better Business Project" and 136
businesses have been recruited to the scheme. The food team
launched its alternative strategy for enforcement in low risk food
premises. Low risk premises will no longer routinely receive an
inspection unless intelligence from various sources, including
questionnaires, reveals a change in risk. This will enable resources to
be focussed on higher risk premises and providing information to
businesses and the public.

Environmental Health’'s health and safety team have achieved one
hundred percent on in medium and lower risk premises targeted for
specific interventions. This has been achieved by introducing a system
using a self assessment questionnaire for low risk premises. A number
of campaigns and projects were run including young worker safety. The
trailer was also used to promote the work at height message on the
back of the HSE national campaign and the asbestos awareness
message. An extremely successful dermatitis campaign was carried out
in partnership with the HSE where all 90 hair and beauty salons in the
borough were sent a mail shot.

During the run up to Smoke Free legislation Halton Borough Councils
Environmental Health Team are hosting a number of free event across
the borough which are aimed at assisting businesses to ensure
compliance with the Smoke Free Legislation which comes into force on
the 1st July in England. Over 100 local businesses attended the
seminars.

Environmental Health are now participating in a newly formed Tobacco
Harm Reduction Group. This is a multidisciplinary group with
participants from Halton, St Helens Councils and the Halton & St
Helens PCT and various partners such as Heart of Mersey.

Planning and Policy Division
The Waste Development Plan Document is progressing well and public
consultation on Issues and Options is underway until 30 April 2007.

The Local Development Scheme (LDS) has been revised to take
account of the results of the Annual Monitoring Report. The current
document is the Halton LDS 2007 and is effective from 12 March 2007.
The Executive Board and Government Office North West (GONW)
have approved this document.

The e-Planning surveys undertaken by DCLG will occur at the end of
March. These surveys will impact upon the e-Planning award

Environment & Regulatory



Page 130

component of Planning Delivery Grant. We are hoping to achieve top
performance and obtain 100% of the component available for e-
Planning.

An Expert System is being implemented to help the public find out if a
planning or building regulation application will be required for their
proposal. This system is live and will be formally launched at the end of
April.

Landscape Division

There has been a key personnel change within the Division following
the resignation of the Head of Service in March 2007.

The Landscape Services Depot at Victoria Park closed for
redevelopment in February 2007. The redevelopment and
modernisation of the facilities at Victoria Park is being funded through
the sale of surplus land at the site to a developer who has bought the
former factory site that bordered the depot in Appleton Village. It is
anticipated that the new facilities will be ready for occupation in late
May 2007.

The Division was informed in March 2007 that the Parks for People Bid
for Hale Park has succeeded in getting through the first stage. The
project worth £850,000 will now be drawn in detail and submitted as a
stage two application. It is anticipated that this will be completed by
September 2007. The bid will substantially upgrade Hale Park to create
a local facility of a standard that will be equal to other recently
refurbished parks in the Borough.

Waste Management Division

Halton Council's Executive Board, at it's meeting of the 29th March
2006, approved the Contract Procurement Strategy with the
Merseyside Waste Disposal Authority, and noted the progress towards
the adoption of Halton’s Waste Action Plan.

3.0 EMERGING ISSUES

Environmental Health, Enforcement and Building Control Division

As part of our ongoing review and assessment of air quality in Halton
the Environmental Health section continually monitor the air quality
within the borough. Results of Nitrogen dioxide monitoring using
diffusion tubes in areas, close to busy roads indicate at this stage still
remain higher than desired.

Further monitoring needs to be done in these areas using real time
analysers. If the results continue to remain at the existing indicated

Environment & Regulatory



Page 131

levels then an action plan will be developed in consultation with the
Transport Division, to improve the air quality. A further bid for funding
from Defra has been submitted for the purchase of equipment in order
to undertake a detailed assessment in these areas.

The Contaminated Land Team are nearing completion of the first phase
of identification of sites of potential concern and subsequent
prioritisation. There are now 1393 sites identified that may warrant
some form of detailed inspection. A new target of completing 20 Phase
1 assessments has been set for 07/08.

Planning and Policy Division

Preparations are being made to ensure that the Mersey Gateway
planning application is adequately resourced. This major application is
expected at the end of 2007.

The Core Strategy Preferred Options stage is expected to go on public
consultation in the Summer 2007. This is the equivalent of Part 1 of the
UDP, the strategic policy context for the Borough. The Core Strategy
explains how we expect the Borough to develop to 2021.

Landscape Division
There are no emerging issues to report this quarter.

Waste Management Division
A key emerging issue for the Division is the revision of the national
waste strategy, which is due to be published by in May 2007. At the
time of writing this report no date for the publication had been
confirmed. However, indications are that the following outcomes are
likely:
e A proposed 40% recycling target by 2010 (Beyond that higher
targets may be proposed but subject to further consultation)
e Greater working on linking commercial/business waste and local
authorities
e The annual landfill tax escalator will be increased (This was
confirmed by budget announcements on 21 March)
e There will be a new target for the amount of residual waste per
household.

Local Authority powers for direct charging for household waste and
subsequent consultation is to be considered by the current “Lyons”
review.

4.0 PROGRESS AGAINST KEY OBJECTIVES / MILESTONES
o o -
Total 15 21 13 <l 0 o 2
' =] =

Environment & Regulatory




Page 132

(Appendix 1)

4.1 PROGRESS AGAINST OTHER OBJECTIVES / MILESTONES
o o -
Total 0 0 <0 0
L3 ] ]

There are no “Other” objectives for this Service.

5.0 SERVICE REVIEW

Environmental Health, Enforcement and Building Control Division

Merseyside Public Health and Pest Control Group are progressing with
staff development. A process of assessment is being carried out by
each of the 5 Authorities to assess operatives from other Authorities,
concentrating on knowledge, customer care and presentation. All
feedback has been positive and awards have been presented to
successful candidates. This is a two-year rolling programme of rodent
assessment and insect assessment.

Planning and Policy Division

The results of the triennial customer satisfaction survey for
Development Control (BVPI111) have been received. The overall result
is 83, which should place Halton within the top quartile. 81% of
respondents indicated they were either very or fairly satisfied with the
service received. Many agents indicated in the comments box that
Halton was one of the best authorities that they dealt with.

Comments have been received on the LDF Annual Monitoring Report
from Government Office (GO NW). This document has been well
received and sections are being promoted as best practice by GONW.

Landscape Division

The service has completed its winter works and in Mid March
commenced with its summer work schedule, which includes the
summer mowing season.

Over the past couple of months the service has taken delivery of four
new vehicles, which have had the new corporate livery applied along
with Streetscene branding. The vehicles present a much better
corporate look than their predecessors. Over the next two years the
services fleet will gradually be replaced with new vehicles in the

Environment & Regulatory



Page 133

corporate livery.

The service has signed up to the Greenspace facilitated GreenStadt
system. This web based database will enable the service to obtain data
directly from members of the public in relation to how it is performing in
managing its parks and open spaces.

In order to facilitate an enhanced regime of maintenance and in order to
cater better for the needs of visitors a restructure of the staffing
arrangements at Victoria Park has been carried out. From the 31%
March 2007 one of the existing members of staff will retire. The office
planter service will discontinue and a vehicle will go off lease. Two new
posts will be created to work at Victoria Park four days per week
including the busy weekend periods. As a result of this new
arrangement the Victoria Park Glasshouses will be able to open for
longer hours.

Waste Management Division

Direct consultancy support funding has recently been approved by
Defra in order to carry out updates of both the Merseyside Joint
Municipal Waste Management Strategy (JMWMS) and Halton’s current,
Waste Management Services - Aspirations and Guidelines document.

To successfully develop the Partnership with Merseyside and move
forward with strategic plans, both the JMWMS and Halton waste
management Guidelines need to be updated and restructured. Initial
meetings and preparatory work has already commenced.

The process will allow the content of each strategy to be updated,
tested and aligned to ensure policies, options and actions are
deliverable, challenging and sustainable and give regard to the ever-
changing and evolving local, regional, national and European waste
and resource management agenda.
The work will be based on three work streams:

e Strategy Updates

e Sustainability Appraisals, both for the strategy updates and of
district council Action Plans in Merseyside

¢ A Waste Prevention Plan

This work is due for completion by December 2007.

Environment & Regulatory



Page 134

6.0 PROGRESS AGAINST KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

o o Py
Total 27 * 12 K 0 g 12
T

o

(Appendix 2) There are 3 indicators which as yet there are no final
outturns. These are BV 86 & 87, cost of house hold collection and
disposal, and BV 106, new homes built on previously developed land.

6.1 PROGRESS AGAINST OTHER PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

o} o -
Total 15 ki 9 R 0 o 6
T = o]
(Appendix 3)

7.0 PROGRESS AGAINST LPSA TARGETS

For details of progress against LPSA targets, please refer to Appendix
4

8.0 RISK CONTROL MEASURES

During the production of the 2006-09 Service Plan, the service was
required to undertake a risk assessment of all Key Service Objectives.

Where a Key Service Objective has been assessed and found to have
associated ‘High’ risk, progress against the application of risk treatment
measures is to be monitored, and reported in the quarterly monitoring
report in quarters 2 and 4.

At the end of year, all relevant risk treatment measures have been
implemented for key service objectives that were initially assessed as
high risk in the Directorate Risk Register

9.0 PROGRESS AGAINST HIGH PRIORITY EQUALITY ACTIONS

During 2005/06 the service was required to undertake an Equality
Impact Assessment. Progress against actions identified through that
assessment, with associated High priority are to be reported in the
quarterly monitoring report.

Environment & Regulatory



Page 135

There are no High priority equality actions for this service, there is no
progress to report.

10.0 APPENDICES

Appendix 1- Progress against Key Objectives/ Milestones
Appendix 2- Progress against Key Performance Indicators
Appendix 3- Progress against Other Performance Indicators
Appendix 4- Progress against LPSA targets

Appendix 5- Explanation of traffic light symbols

Environment & Regulatory



01 To ensure that there is a co-ordinated and To produce and adopt a P A Principal Officer is now in post co-
robust regulatory/enforcement regime cross cutting ordinating the Environment
operable and that authorised development is enforcement policy. To o Directorates enforcement activities.
implemented in accordance with approved increase the number of The role will primarily be responsible
documents and that inappropriate actions taken against for pulling together the Directorates
unauthorised activity is quickly addressed. unauthorised activity. By enforcers, to deal with singular and
March 2007 multi-functional enforcement problems
throughout the Borough. This new,
and cross cutting approach to the
Directorates enforcement activities,
will consolidate the efforts already
being made to improve the Borough'’s
Environment and will support the
Council’s pro-active approach to
problems faced by the Borough.
02 Ensure that there is a robust auditable 2006/7 Plan completed [ ] Completed
regulatory regime for food by completing the and shared with o
mandatory annual Food Service inspection Members by June 2006 i
plan
03 Ensure that there is a robust auditable Annual review 2005/6 (o] Completed
regulatory regime for health and safety update shared with o
completing the mandatory annual review of Members by end of June ¥
the Health & Safety Service Plan 2006
04 Undertake mandatory annual review and Annual review complete [ ] The annual review for 2006 was
assessment of air quality in line with the and returns made to o submitted on time and a further
requirements laid out in national guidance and | DEFRA by 31-05-06 ¥ annual air quality Progress Report. Is
report findings to DEFRA due to be submitted May 2007. The
Progress Report, will be expected to
report any provisional monitoring data
over the previous calendar year.

APPENDIX ONE - PROGRESS AGAINST KEY OBJECTIVES/ MILESTONES

Environment & Regulatory

9¢| abed



Landscape Services Division

05 Continue Borough-wide Playground Identify and improve 3 o Site works have begun at Hale View,
Refurbishment Project. further playgrounds i Six Acre Lane, Moore and contractors

(31/3/07) fu will be going onto site at Cavendish
Street in April.

Submit three further bids

for landfill tax credit All milestones for this objective have

funding to enhance been met.

projects. (31/3/07)

Where appropriate

submit bids to other

funding bodies to

enhance projects e.g.

Lottery funds, Living

Landscapes (31/3/07)

06 Natural Assets Strategy. Complete the review and o The draft revised Natural assets
Publish the reviewed and revised Strategy publish the new Strategy o Strategy was reported to the Urban
and commence implementation of the relevant | and commence fud Renewal Policy and Performance
aspects of the new 5-year Action Plan. implementation of the Board in January 2007 and to

relevant aspects of the Executive Board in March. The

new 5-year Action Plan. Document is now ready to be printed

(31/3/07) in its agreed form. Implementation has
commenced and policies are being
implemented.

07 Implement the Halton Biodiversity Action Plan | Implement improvements o Progress is satisfactory towards this
on two habitats and i target. 2 habitats that have been
seven species (31/3/07) * improved are reed beds and

saltmarsh. There has been an
additional reed bed planted.
Saltmarsh improvements have been
made by way of biological recording
and a draft management plan. For the

APPENDIX ONE - PROGRESS AGAINST KEY OBJECTIVES/ MILESTONES

Environment & Regulatory

/€| abed



7 species: 20,000 bluebells planted;
purple hairstreak butterfly
improvements in recording; Great
crested newt increase in survey work
and technical training seminar;
Redshank specific survey completed
with over 400 records; Skylark 230
records of skylark; Song Thrush
specific survey in 06 via In Touch
magazine; Reed Bunting the survey is
continuing and this specie will benefit
from the improvements in reed bed
habitat.

Planning Services Division

social, economic and cultural well-being of the
local population

December 2006

08 To prepare and adopt a local development Produce Annual o Annual Monitoring Report produced
framework (LDF) and to review the LDF ona | Monitoring Report- o and submitted in December 2006.
regular basis to ensure it continues to be up to | December 2006 ¥ Work is progressing well on LDF. The
date and relevant. Preferred Options stage of the Core

Strategy is being prepared. A revised
LDS document has been produced.
This was agreed by the Executive
Board and GONW on 12 March.

09 To develop and implement a strategy for the Produce Annual o Annual Monitoring Report produced
three town centres in order to maximise the Monitoring Report- ;}k_ and submitted in December 2006.

Three Town Centre Strategies are
currently being produced (Halton Lea,
Widnes and Runcorn Old Town).
Runcorn Old Town and Halton Lea
have been on consultation over the
period 1/2/07 to 15/3/07. There is also
to be a future Widnes Town Centre
Area Action Plan DPD to reflect
additional work required in Widnes. It

APPENDIX ONE - PROGRESS AGAINST KEY OBJECTIVES/ MILESTONES

Environment & Regulatory

8¢ | ebed



will commence at the end of 2007.

10

Produce reports

Survey and data collection process

where beneficial to the Council.

To review matters expected to affect o
development through the maintenance of a annually-December 2006 i has commenced for 2007. Baseline
robust and credible information base shared * reports will be published in June 07
corporately. and Annual Monitoring Report in Dec
07.
11 To ensure that Halton interests are Representations made to o The Inspectors Report on RSS
represented and reflected within emerging draft RSS (Regional o following the Jan 07 Inquiry is awaited
Regional and Strategic planning documents. Spatial Strategy) —Spring fud (due April / May 07). Once received
2006. Represent GONW will decide what changes
Authority at any need to be made to RSS and these
examination in decisions will be on consultation for
public/enquiry. consideration by Halton in the autumn
of 2007.
Waste Management Division
12 Review and publish a revised Municipal Carry out o Direct consultancy support funding
Waste Management Strategy and commence | Consultation o has recently been approved by Defra
implementation of the relevant objectives commencing in fud in order to carry out updates of both
contained within the strategy September 2006, publish the Merseyside Joint Municipal Waste
revised strategy in Spring Management Strategy (JMWMS) and
2007 and implement Halton’s current, Waste Management
relevant objectives as Services - Aspirations and Guidelines
detailed within the document.
revised document.
13 To formalise joint working arrangements with | Formal Partnerships o Formal partnerships established. To
other Local Authorities and the Private Sector | established (31/3/07) 4{;}' successfully develop the Partnership

with Merseyside and move forward
with strategic plans, both the JMWMS
and Halton waste management
Guidelines need to be updated and
restructured. Initial meetings and
preparatory work has already

APPENDIX ONE — PROGRESS AGAINST KEY OBJECTIVES/ MILESTONES
Environment & Regulatory

6¢| abed



commenced.

14

To procure an integrated waste management
infrastructure to meet the requirements of the
Municipal Waste Management Strategy

Negotiate and implement
contractual arrangements
as necessary (31/3/07)

Contractual arrangements now in
place.

15

To develop and publish an integrated
environmental nuisance prevention and
enforcement strategy

Develop strategy in
consultation with relevant
internal and external
officers (31/3/07)

Although this work remains in
progress, the target date for
completion was not met as a result of
resource capacity issues. However, it
is anticipated that the strategy will be
completed in mid to late 2007.

APPENDIX ONE - PROGRESS AGAINST KEY OBJECTIVES/ MILESTONES

Environment & Regulatory

ot | ebed



Page 141

BFI Higher figures
g2ai % of household waste recycled represent better
perotmance
ke
25 y

I:I 20055
- 00T Trend

15 Tt

Top 25%
10
Midclle S0%.

20

. - Bottom 25% Green
J ) Better than Annual
=1 Q2 =3 24 Cutturn - Guiartile this time last| | target hit or
vear exceeded
Commentary

This figure is an estimate only, however, indications are that the end of year target will be exceeded. The extension to
the blue wheeled bin paper recycling service in this financial year is one of the contributing factors towards the
increased performance.

BRI Higher figures
B2hi % of household waste composted represent better
perfarmance
ke
15 ¥
20055
12 - i Trend
Red
g T et

Top 25%

I:' iccdle 509
3
Bottom 25%

i Worse than Annual
oy | o2 o3 o4 Outturn Cuartile this tirne last target
year missed
Commentary

This figure is an estimate only, however, indications are that performance will be fractionally lower than the end of year
target, despite an extension to the green bin collection serice this year. The production of garden waste is subject to
seasanal variation and as such performance is affected by the amaount of garden waste produced. Less garden waste
was produced in 2005 due to the exceptionally high temperatures. The Council's overall recycling and composting rate
has however excesded the 2006/07 target,

APPENDIX TWO — PROGRESS AGAINST KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
Environment & Regulatory



Page 142

BFI Lower figures
a2di % of household waste landfilled represent better
performance
ke
100 ¥
I:I 20055
an - T Trend
&0 Tt
]
Top 25%
Bl
Micldlle S0%
= - Bottom 25% Green
= ) Better than Annual
£l e 2k Q4 Qutturn - Guiartile this tirne last| | target hit or
vear exceeded
Commentary

This figure is an estimate only, howewver, indications are that the end of year target will be exceeded as a result of the
Council's overall increased recycling and compasting perfarmance.

Bl Percentage of residents served by kerbside Higher Tigures
b . represent better
recycling of at least 2 recyclables perfarmance
ke
il ¥

: Mo quartile data Mo data for Annual
it Gl available sarme Ot || target hit or
|35t'!.|'Ear exceeded

20055
=]
- 0BT Trend
40
 Target
- Top 25%
a0 I:' Miclclle: 0%
10 - Bottom 25% Green
o
oy | o2 o3 o4

Commentary

A kerbside paper recycling serice is available to all households within the borough, and the extension to the Council's
the kerbside green waste collection service to a further 5 000 households resulted in an increase in peformance in
200607

APPENDIX TWO — PROGRESS AGAINST KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
Environment & Regulatory



Page 143

BVPI % of new reports of abandoned vehicles SIS
218s ) ) o represent hetter
investigated within 24 hours perormance
ke
100 ¥

I:I 200508
ElL - T Trend
Red

&0 Tt

Top 25%
7
Midclle S0%
G
Bottom 25%
=l
@1 @2 23 a4

: Mo quartile data Mo data for Annual
Outturn Gzrtile availahle . arget

lastyear missed

)

)

Commentary
Although pedformance in 2006/07 is higher than the previous year, the target has not been met. Mechanisms are now
in place that will ensure that the 200708 target is met.

BRI Higher figures
218h % of abandoned vehicles removed within 24 hours  represent better
perfarmance
Key

100

200506
an - 200617 Trend
&0 T et

Top 25%
7o

I:' iccdle 509
= - Bottom 25% Green
a0
i Q2 o3 o4

: Mo quartile data Mo data for Annual
S available sarme Ot || target hit or

lastyear exceeded
Commentary

The Council rermoves all vehicles within 24 hours fram the paoint that it is entitled to.

APPENDIX TWO — PROGRESS AGAINST KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
Environment & Regulatory



Page 144

BVP % of pollution contral improvements to existing Ul LS
217 ) ) ) represent hetter
installations completed on time perormance
ke
100 ¥

I:I 200305
e - SO0ET Trend

T et
=l Top 25%
Micldlle S0%
&5
- Bottom 25% Green
o : Mo quartile data Better than Annual
e e = R vailahle this tirme last| | target hit or
vear exceeded
Commentary

This is an annual target and is calculated on a cumnulative basis, the figure reported being a percentage of paollution
contral improvermnents to existing industrial intallations completed on time.

Guidance to local authorities states that they should aim to secure completion of at least 90% of all pollution cantral
impravernents to the timetable specified. This target has been achieved in Halton this year.

BVPI Percentage of major planning applications Higher figures
109a . oL s represent better
determined within 13 weeks performance
Key
100 -
- 2005/6
90 -
- 2006/7 Trend
80 -
70 -
60 - I:l Middle 50%
50 - Bottom 25%
40 - ] Better than Annual
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Outturn  Quartile this time last target
year missed
Commentary

There were 10 applications decided within the 13 weeks and 4 that took longer, these were 06/783/FUL, 06/720/REM,
06/809/FUL, 06/758/REM. Performance has been hampered by the team covering a vacant post.

APPENDIX TWO — PROGRESS AGAINST KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
Environment & Regulatory




Page 145

?(\)/;bl Percentage of minor planning applications rs;?::er:itgg‘erﬁzr
determined within 8 weeks performance
Key
100 -
_l |:| 2005/6
% - 2006/7 Trend
80 |- == == = Target
Top 25%
70 + -- --
|:| Middle 50%
0T . o - Bottom 25%
50 . Worse than Annual
Q1 Q4 Outturn  Quartile this time last target
year missed
Commentary

There were 37 applications decided within the time period. 7 took longer than the 8 week target. Performance has been
hampered by the team covering a vacant post.

?(\)/;l Percentage of other planning applications rs;?::é:itgg‘éﬁser
(o3 . cel:
determined within 8 weeks performance
Key
100 -
I:l 2005/6
%01 - 2006/7 Trend
80 + -- -- -- -—- --
70 + -- -- -- -—- --
801 - Bottom 25%
50 . Worse than Annual
Q1 Q4 Outturn  Quartile this time last target
year missed
Commentary

There were 129 applications decided. Only 8 took longer than the 8 week target. Performance has been hampered by the
team covering a vacant post.

APPENDIX TWO — PROGRESS AGAINST KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
Environment & Regulatory




Page 146

BFI Higher figures
205 Quality of service checklist (%) represent hetter
perormance
ke
100 ¥
I:I 20055
an - T Trend
Red
&0 Tt
Top 25%
Bl
Micldlle S0%
= - Bottom 25%
= ) Same as Annual
@ &2 8] g Outturn Gzrtile this tirme last target
vear missed
Commentary

In order to score 100% an arrangement for permanent and continual specialist design advice needs to be sought. This
arrangement will have a budgetary impact either for consultancy or staffing. In the next year 0708 proposals to
implement a framewaork agreement far the provision of these services to the department will be considered.

BVPI % of conservation areas in the LA with an up to Higher figures
219b . represent better
date character appraisal performance
Key
| —_—_

|:| 2005/6

e I - 2006/7 Trend

30 4

20 -

|:| Middle 50%
10 - Bottom 25%

0 T
. No quartile data No data for Annual
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Outturn  Quartile available same Qtr target
last year missed
Commentary

A programme for targets and approach to appraisals is being developed. Of the 10 appraisals required we will consider
achieving 1 per year over a 10 year period. The commission to produce an appraisal and management plan for the
conservation area called Halton Village commenced in 05/06. Staff resources to either undertake the work or manage
consultants prevent the completion of these appraisals faster.

APPENDIX TWO — PROGRESS AGAINST KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
Environment & Regulatory



Page 147

BVPI % of conservation areas with published Higher figures
219c represent better
management proposals berformance
Key
50 -

|:| 2005/6
401 - 2006/7 Trend

30 4 - - - e Target

Top 25%

I:l Middle 50%
10
- Bottom 25%

20 T - - m e

0 T
. No quartile data No data for Annual
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Outturn  Quartile available same Qtr target
last year missed
Commentary

A programme for targets and approach to appraisals is being developed. Of the 10 appraisals required we will consider
achieving 1 per year over a 10 year period. The commission to produce an appraisal and management plan for the
conservation area called Halton Village commenced in 05/06. Staff resources to either undertake the work or manage
consultants prevent the completion of these appraisals faster.

Bz\(/)il The % of appeals allowed against the authorities re";z:;:]itgs;f;r
decision to refuse planning applications performance
Key
100 -
o0l - PO W - I:l 2005/6
80 1 - 2006/7 Trend
(RE==1 F===] |ro=====cccmmmmmecce ==
60 S R e T ==
50 S R e e ==
40 - - . ==
30
201 - Bottom 25%
10 - --
0- ] Worse than || Annual
Q4 Outturn  Quartlle this time last||  target
year missed
Commentary

There were 3 appeals determined over this period. 2 were dismissed and 1 was allowed by the inspector. Applications
06/00410/FUL and 06/00561/FUL were dismissed. The application allowed was 06/00281/FUL. This application was for the
retention of boundary wall and gates at 13 Penrhyn Crescent Runcorn Cheshire WA7 4XJ

APPENDIX TWO — PROGRESS AGAINST KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
Environment & Regulatory




Page 148

The following Key Performance Indicators are reported on an annual basis,

Ref

Indicator

Actual
05/06

Target
06/07

Actual
06/07

Commentary

BV
119e

Resident
satisfaction with
open spaces (%)

N/a

75

77

The 2006 BV Survey has shown
an increase of 6% satisfaction
since the last BV survey in 2003.

BV
106

% of new homes
built on previously
developed land

45.97

45

Not Yet
Availab
le

This indicator is not available
until the end of May when the
housing survey work on
completed dwellings is finished.

BV
111

Satisfaction with the
planning service
(%)

91

83

83

Bt

This survey was undertaken in
Autumn 2006. Results need to
be examined in the light of the
national results to assess
performance. On past
experience 83 should place
Halton in the upper quartile of
performing authorities.

BV
199a

Prop relevant
land/highways with
combined deposits
of litter/detritus
below acceptable
levels

17.75

22

==

This indicator measures litter
and detritus levels in randomly
selected areas across the
borough. The 2005/06 outturn is
reflective of the areas randomly
selected for inspection, and the
2006/07 target reflected the
variances in standards that can
be expected in different areas of
the borough. The 2006/07
figure does not necessarily
reflect a reduction in service
standard, but is as a result of
carrying out inspections in
different areas to those
inspected in 2005/06. This
variance in annual performance
is consistent with the results
experienced in other local
authorities. One of the
intentions of producing this
indicator is to identify those
areas of the borough that are in
need of greater treatment, and
resources are then directed
accordingly.

BV
199b

Proportion of
relevant
land/highways from
which unacceptable
levels of graffiti
visible

Bt

The National benchmark for
levels of graffiti is 4%. The
Council does not have the ability
to control graffiti but has
mechanisms in place to provide
a response for its removal.
Given that graffiti is likely to be
encountered in some areas
when inspected, the authority

APPENDIX TWO — PROGRESS AGAINST KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Environment & Regulatory




Page 149

Ref

Indicator

Actual
05/06

Target
06/07

Actual
06/07

Commentary

has set a target to maintain
levels of graffiti within the
national standard, and has met
this target.

BV
199c

Proportion of
relevant
land/highways from
which unacceptable
levels of fly posting
visible

Bt

The National benchmark for
levels of fly-posting is 1%.
Recognising that the Council
does not have the ability to
control fly-posting, but has
mechanisms in place to provide
a rapid response for its removal,
the authority has set a target to
maintain levels of fly-posting
within the national standard,
which was met.

BV
199d

Reduction in
incidents &
increase in
enforcement
actions, taken to
deal with fly tipping

e

In 2005/06 there were 1920
incidents of fly-tipping and in
2006/07 there was an estimate
of 1711. In 2005/06 the Council
recorded 15 enforcement
actions and in 2006/07 recorded
187. As the total number of fly-
tipping incidents dealt with in
2006/07 has decreased from the
previous year and the total
number of enforcement actions
has increased, the Council's
grading has remained as ‘Very
Effective’ or ‘1’

BV
89

% of people
satisfied with the
cleanliness
standard in their
area

N/a

63.7

67

e

In the recent Best Value
Satisfaction Survey, 67% of
respondents were satisfied that
the Council keeps public land
clear of litter and refuse. The last
survey was undertaken in 2003
when satisfaction was 58%. The
Council had set itself a target of
increasing satisfaction by 10%
on the 2003.

BV
90a

Satisfaction with
waste collection (%)

N/a

90

87

==

Survey result was slightly below
target. Although results are
broadly considered to be of an
acceptable standard, future
levels of satisfaction will depend
both on investment in quality
services, and the delivery of a
public communications strategy,
currently being developed for
waste management.

BV
90b

Satisfaction with
waste recycling (%)

N/a

70

73

Survey result was satisfactory.
Although results are broadly
considered to be of an

APPENDIX TWO — PROGRESS AGAINST KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Environment & Regulatory




Page 150

Ref

Indicator

Actual
05/06

Target
06/07

Actual
06/07

Commentary

acceptable standard, future
levels of satisfaction will depend
both on investment in quality
services, and the delivery of a
public communications strategy,
currently being developed for
waste management.

BV
90c

Satisfaction with
waste disposal (%)

N/a

90

86

===

Survey result was slightly below
target. Although results are
broadly considered to be of an
acceptable standard, future
levels of satisfaction will depend
both on investment in quality
services, and the delivery of a
public communications strategy,
currently being developed for
waste management.

BV
86

Cost of household
collection per
household (£)

26.29

29.00

Figure not yet available.
Expected to be in line with the
predicted 06/07 target.

BV
87

Cost of waste
disposal per tonne
for municipal waste

(£)

42.04

51.00

Figure not yet available.
Expected to be in line with the
predicted 06/07 target.

APPENDIX TWO — PROGRESS AGAINST KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Environment & Regulatory




Service Delivery

BV 216a

Identifying contaminated land, the
number of sites of potential
concern

283

258

258

o0

Annual target which is expected to
increase for year 07-08. The 258 sites are
those sites where it is highly likely
problems will be experienced. The list of
‘sites of potential concern’ is quite
extensive at 13

BV 216b

Identifying contaminated land, the
% of sites of potential concern with
information available

9%

8%

9%

Our consistent progress has resulted in
the annual target being exceeded.

BV 166a

Score (%) against a checklist of
enforcement best practice for
environmental health

100%

100%

80%

Local authorities providing Environmental
Health services need to report a
percentage figure against their provision
of environmental health services.
Environmental Health Services
component functions in Halton include:
Food Safety, Health and Safety, ,
Pollution Control, Pest Control,. The
maximum score for this BVPI is 10 points
(100%). Due to staff absence in the
quarter certain targeted and educational
programmes in pest control and pollution
control were not completed resulting in a
score of 8 out of a maximum of 10

LI 01

% of playgrounds that conform to
national standards for locally
equipped areas

66.6%
(24 sites)

72.2%
(26 sites)

66%

Works will have commenced on site at
two playgrounds in April 2007 which will
bring both sites up to the national
standards. The target of 72.2% will be
met in Q1 of 2007/8. A further three
playgrounds will also be refurbished in
that year.

APPENDIX THREE — PROGRESS AGAINST OTHER PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Environment & Regulatory

G| ebed



BV 91a | % of households served by a 100% 100% 100% o All properties within the borough are
kerbside collection of one served with a kerbside paper recycling
recyclable fud service.

BV 82 ci | Percentage of household waste 0% 0% 0% o Currently, the emphasis is on increased
arisings used to recover heat, recycling of household waste in line with
power and other energy sources ¥ the national strategy and waste hierarchy.

Longer-term treatment of residual waste,
and technologies used, will depend on
future procurement to achieve the aims of
the EU directives in diverting waste from
landfill.

LI 04 % of incidents of offensive graffiti 72.22% 85% 82.35% I Although performance is significantly up
responded to within 24 hours of o against last year, the Division has fell
notification L& fractionally short of target.

LI 05 % of incidents of fly-tipping 93.55% 95% 96.41% [ ] Efforts to improve response times to fly
responded to within 48 hours of o tipping incidents are continuing.
notification ¥

Quality

LI 02 Pl based on annual survey 80.6% 82% 77% ] It is worth noting that the2006 Best Value
question: “How satisfied are you in o Survey results, which have just become
general with the level of cleanliness A=l available show a 77% satisfaction rating.
in parks.” This is an improvement of 6% from the

2003 survey.

LI 03 Number of Green Flag Awards 5 8 6 i There has been no change since Q3 as

achieved for Halton Green Flag Awards are made in August of
e each year. Eight submissions for the year
2007/8 were completed in January 2007.

LI 06 % of residents satisfaction with the N/a 2006/7 to 67% o The 2006 Best Value Survey results show
cleansing standards in Halton establish i a 9% improvement when compared to the
(Annual PI). a * 2003 results. (2003 = 58%, 2006 = 67%)

baseline

APPENDIX THREE — PROGRESS AGAINST OTHER PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Environment & Regulatory

2G| ebed



collected per head.

BV 200a | Plan making — current development Yes Yes Yes [ ] UDP adopted April 05. LDF in
plan? o preparation. New Local Development
b Scheme (project plan for LDF production)
produced and agreed 12 March 07.
BV 200b | Plan making — proposals on Yes Yes Yes (o] Preferred Options stage of Core Strategy
deposit? o being prepared. Likely to be on public
b consultation during summer 2007.
BV 200c | Plan making — annual monitoring Yes Yes Yes [ ] Submitted to Government Office in
report? _i December 2006
BV 84b Percentage change on previous -0.04% +1% +8.06% I Although nationally waste growth has
year in Kg of household waste o] slowed down in general, local growth has
[ proven difficult to predict. Currently local

policies do not have a direct effect on this
indicator. A future waste prevention
strategy is under discussion.

APPENDIX THREE — PROGRESS AGAINST OTHER PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Environment & Regulatory

£G| ebed



LPSA LPSA Interim | Progress
Ref Definition Target Target (Traffic Commentary
(Stretch) | (Annual) lights)
6 Reducing vehicle arson:
The estimated number of car fires for 2006/07
The number of incidents of arson occurring to 140 160 o is 143. The Council is therefore on track to
non derelict vehicles (during the year 1 April to (Mar 08) | (Mar 07) 2 meet the LPSA target.
i

31 March)

APPENDIX FOUR — PROGRESS AGAINST LPSA TARGETS

Environment & Regulatory

G| abed



LPSA LPSA Interim | Progress
Ref Definition Target Target (Traffic Commentary
(Stretch) | (Annual) lights)
7 Improving health and well-being: For 06/07 the target for people who are not
smoking after four weeks is 1036.

The number of people reporting to the NHS 2000 N/a o

stop smoking services who had set a quit date (Mar 09) 2 This target is broken down into:
i

and who are still not smoking at the four weeks
review (during the year 1 April to 31 March)

Q1 - 15% - Reported in August
Q2 - 20% - Reported in December
Q3 - 30% - Reported in February
Q4 — 35% - Reported in June

The target is not split into an average 25%
per quarter, as quitting smoking is seasonal.
In the winter months there are more colds
and chest problems and so people examine
their health more. In the last quarter there are
new years resolutions, valentines day and
heart promotion and quit smoking day in
March. This explains the targets for each
quarter.

Results:

Q1 - 335 people set a quit date & 161 were
not smoking at the 4 week review.

Q2 — 491 people set a quit date and 228
were not smoking at the 4 week review.

Q3 - 651 People set quit date, 326 still
stopped at week 4 review

Q4 — 652 people set quit date, 334 still
stopped at week 4 review.

Totals Year 06 / 07 — 2129 people set quit
date, 1049 still quit at week 4 review

APPENDIX FOUR - PROGRESS AGAINST LPSA TARGETS
Environment & Regulatory

GG| ebed



Page 156

The traffic light symbols are used in the following manner:

Objective Performance Indicators LPSA Indicators
(Excl. LPSA) Only

Green | Indicates that the Indicates that the annual Indicates that the
| objective has 06/07 target has been target is on course to
' been achieved achieved or exceeded be achieved.

within the
appropriate
timeframe.

Amber o] N/A N/A Indicates that it is
< either unclear at this
< stage or too early to

state whether the
target is on course
to be achieved.

Red 4| Indicates that that Indicates that the Indicates that the
the_objective has annual 06/07 target has target will not be

not been not been achieved. achieved unless

achieved  within there is an

the  appropriate intervention or

timeframe. remedial action
taken.

APPENDIX FIVE — EXPLANATION OF TRAFFIC LIGHT SYMBOLS
Environment & Regulatory




Page 157

QUARTERLY MONITORING REPORT

DIRECTORATE: Health & Community
SERVICE: Health & Partnerships
PERIOD: Quarter 4 to year-end 31 March 2007

1.0 INTRODUCTION

This quarterly monitoring report covers the Health & Partnerships
Department fourth quarter period up to 31 March 2007.

Given that there are a considerable number of year-end transactions still
to take place a Financial Statement for the period, which will be made
available in due course, has not been included within this report in order
to avoid providing information that would be subject to further change
and amendment.

The way in which traffic light symbols have been used to reflect progress
to date is explained in Appendix 6

It should be noted that this report is presented to a number of
Policy and Performance Boards. Those objectives and indicators
that are not directly relevant to this Board have been shaded grey.

2.0 KEY DEVELOPMENTS

Direct Payments

The number of service users in receipt of Direct Payments continues to
rise. Currently there are 357 service users and 126 carers receiving
their services via a Direct Payment.

Appointee & Receivership

The Appointee & Receivership service continues to be considerably
oversubscribed. Measures are in hand to reduce the numbers of service
users receiving this service, so that a better quality service can be
delivered. Discussions are at an initial stage to pilot the transfer of some
appointeeships to a local ‘not-for-profit’ company, with checks being
made into the background of the company and reasonableness of future
charges to service users.

Human Resources
Protection of Vulnerable Adults Policy, Procedure and Practice updated
and distributed to all relevant managers.

Health & Partnerships



Page 158

National Minimum Dataset for Social Care — organisation questionnaires
completed for all regulated services.

Consumer Protection

Warrington Borough Council will be initiating a project and pulling
together a project team to move forward the proposals to deliver the
Consumer Protection Service for both Halton and Warrington. Staff and
Trade Unions from both authorities will be involved in the project from
the outset. There are key risks to be managed: the partnership may
prove too costly or fail to generate the required efficiencies and we will
therefore need to focus on reducing internal management and
administration costs.

As part of his recent Budget statement the Chancellor announced the
publication of the findings of Peter Rogers, Chief Executive of
Westminster City Council, recent review on regulatory policy
prioritisation. Five priority areas have been highlighted for
Environmental Health and Trading Standards Services. The two
priorities that will impact on the work of the Consumer Protection Service
are “Alcohol, entertainment and late-night refreshment licensing and its
enforcement” and “Fair Trading (trade description, trade marking, mis-
description and doorstep selling)”.

The national launch of the web-based system for the registration of
births and deaths took place on 26 March 2007. Significant problems
have been experienced both with the national Registration On Line
database and with the Council’s IT infrastructure.

Housing
The revised Private Sector Housing Renewal Strategy was approved by

Executive Board in March 07.

Contracts/Supporting People

Supporting People (SP) and the contracts team have been merged to
improve the effectiveness of the service. In conjunction with ALD
services, the contracts team successfully procured care services for the
new respite service at Bredon, Palacefields.

A project team has been established to reconfigure/procure domiciliary
care services. An outline project plan was presented to provider
agencies in March.

The Supporting People Commissioning Body approved the development
of the following short-term pilot services:

e Homelessness intervention/prevention welfare service

e Expanded LD floating support service

Carers’ Centres
Discussions relating to the transfer of the Carers’ Centres to the
voluntary sector have identified two main options. Option one involves

2
Health & Partnerships



Page 159

establishing an independent Princess Royal Trust for Carers’ Centre for
Halton. The second option would involve merging Halton’s local authority
run Carers’ Centre with St Helens Carers Centre. Discussions will be
ongoing. They would then be aware of the outcome of the
Government’s comprehensive spending review and the Council’s ability
to enter into associated financial commitments.

3.0 EMERGING ISSUES

Direct Payments

A Pilot Scheme delivering Individualised Budgets will be in place by the
end of 07/08. Staffing resources within the Client Finance Team are
currently being considered to deliver this pilot.

Human Resources

The completion of the individuals’ questionnaire for the National
Minimum Dataset for social care will be required during 2007/08 and will
impact upon resources. A working group will be set up April 2007 to
progress this requirement.

Performance Management
A new Performance Assessment Framework for Adults and Older
People that will focus on outcomes has been developed by CSCI. The
Directorate continues to review how outcomes are measured by all
services, and is working with the NW Leads Performance organisation to
provide information to CSCI.

Consumer Protection

The Executive Board has agreed to the pursuance of new governance
arrangements for the delivery of the Registration Service. All the
necessary information has been given to the General Register Office in
order for them to draft a new Scheme.

Housing
Work is advanced sub regionally in developing a Liverpool City Region

Housing Strategy as part of the sustainable communities workstream
under the City Region Development Programme. It will seek to ensure
the “housing offer” supports the planned economic growth within the City
Region. Cross authority endorsement is likely to be sought early in
2007/08.

A number of workstreams are being developed in an effort to reduce
homeless presentations and the use of temporary accommodation.
Examples include a rent deposit scheme, a new SP funded
welfare/prevention service, and increased use of HDL to filter
applications/signpost clients to appropriate support services.

Health & Partnerships



Page 160

4.0 PROGRESS AGAINST KEY OBJECTIVES / MILESTONES

O *
Total 11 - 8 N/A g 3
¥

Of the eleven key objectives for the service, eight have made
satisfactory progress and have been achieved by the year end point.
Three have not been completely achieved. For further details, please
refer to Appendix 1.

Qg 0

4.1 PROGRESS AGAINST OTHER OBJECTIVES / MILESTONES

O *
Total 12 - 8 N/A g 4
¥

Of the twelve other objectives for the service, eight have made
satisfactory progress and have been achieved by the year end point.
Four have not been completely achieved. For further details, please
refer to Appendix 2.

Qg 0

5.0 SERVICE REVIEW

Direct Payments
Promotions to increase the uptake of Direct Payments continue through
events for professionals, carers and voluntary organisations.

Appointee & Receivership

Work continues to reduce the numbers accessing the service in order to
provide a more responsive and qualitative service. Refer to item in
section 1.0, Key Developments.

Housing
A project group has been established to reconfigure homelessness

services. Some of the early outcomes are described in section 3 above.

Contracts/Supporting People
The Supporting People Commissioning Board has now approved all
service review reports.

Commissioning (Mental Health)

Following the CSCI visit, Halton received the Improvement Review
Report in March 07. It identified the areas that require improvement —
leadership, partnership and integration, service user and carer

4
Health & Partnerships



Page 161

experience and involvement, assessment and care planning, interface
and transition between services.

An action plan will be developed to address the areas requiring
improvement and will be monitored by CSCI and the Healthcare
Commission.

6.0 PROGRESS AGAINST KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
o o P

Total 6 * 5 o N/A o 1
i ] o]

Of the six key performance indicators for the service, five have made
satisfactory progress and the target has been achieved by the year end
point. One target has not been achieved. For further details, please
refer to Appendix 3.

6.1 PROGRESS AGAINST OTHER PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
o o +

Total 24 - 17 R N/A < 7
hd o] =

Of the twenty-four key performance indicators for the service, seventeen
have made satisfactory progress and the target has been achieved by
the year end point. Seven indicators have not achieved target. For
further details, please refer to Appendix 4.

7.0 PROGRESS AGAINST LPSA TARGETS

There are no current LPSA targets for this service.

8.0 RISK CONTROL MEASURES

During the production of the 2006-09 Service Plan, the service was
required to undertake a risk assessment of all Key Service Objectives.

Where a Key Service Objective has been assessed and found to have
associated ‘High’ risk, progress against the application of risk treatment
measures is to be monitored, and reported in the quarterly monitoring
report in quarters 2 and 4.

At the half-year stage, all relevant risk treatment measures have been
implemented for key service objectives that were initially assessed as
high risk in the Directorate Risk Register.

Health & Partnerships



Page 162

9.0 PROGRESS AGAINST HIGH PRIORITY EQUALITY ACTIONS

During 2005/06 the service was required to undertake an Equality
Impact Assessment. Progress against actions identified through that
assessment, with associated High priority are to be reported in the
quarterly monitoring report.

There are no High priority equality actions for this service.

10.0 APPENDICES

Appendix 1- Progress against Key Objectives/ Milestones
Appendix 2- Progress against Other Objectives/ Milestones
Appendix 3- Progress against Key Performance Indicators
Appendix 4- Progress against Other Performance Indicators
Appendix 5- Explanation of traffic light symbols

Health & Partnerships



Service

2006/07

Progress

Plan Ref. Objective Key Milestone to date Commentary
HP1 Review the Fairer Charging Policy The revised Fairer o Community Care Charges for services
Charging Policy will be & have been consulted on and new
implemented fu charges were agreed by Exec Sub on
29/3/07. A new charging Policy Group
Income generation using will convene in May 2007.
the revised Fairer
Charging policy will be
monitored
HP2 Maximise the number and range of people Promote and continue to o Numbers in this quarter continue to
using Direct Payments. develop DP and ensure o rise, again with a great emphasis on
that support, advice, and fu carers receiving funding for support.
information is offered.
A steering group has been formed to
Explore the delivery of oversee the implementation of the
Individualised Budgets Individualised Budgets pilot scheme,
which will be in place by the end of
07/08.
HP3 Develop IT solutions which enable delivery of | A pilot of remote working The Mobile working project was

services electronically in support of the e-
Government agenda

systems will be
implemented and
evaluated.

The first phase of the
electronic social care
record system will be
implemented in 2006 to
meet

e-government
requirements by 2008.

delayed because of problems with
supply of 14 Tablet PC’s which have
now been replaced by laptops and
care currently being set up.

CareStore has been purchased and
C&YP are using the HDL Contact
centre to scan documents which H&C
will review as part of the project.

APPENDIX ONE — PROGRESS AGAINST KEY OBJECTIVES/ MILESTONES
Health & Partnerships

€9| ebed



Service Obiective 2006/07 Progress Commenta
Plan Ref. ) Key Milestone to date ry
HP5 Develop a three year financial strategy, Develop three year o Completed — needs linking to
matching funding to changing service financial strategy for each 2 Government Comprehensive
requirements service area, in u Spending Assessment and alignment
conjunction with the of the information into future
commissioning strategies commissioning strategies
HP6 Develop and implement Halton's 5yr Delivery of strategic Good progress has been made

Supporting People Strategy to meet the needs
of vulnerable people locally.

objectives identified for
action 2006/7

Commence renegotiation
of high cost contracts.

Develop financial plan for
2007/8

0o

against targets in strategy:

o Develop 6 bed unit-young
single homeless-achieved -
Orchard House opened in
2006

o Develop 2 bed unit for MH-
achieved —Pickering close
Opened in 2005.

o Develop 42 units of extra care
housing for OP-achieved-
Dorset gardens opened in
2006.

e Increase provision for drug
and Alcohol by 4units- target
achieved-increase in SHAP
contract from 7 to 11units at
no additional cost.

e Target to encourage
development of 2 private
developments of sheltered
housing for sale- achieved -2
private developers withdrew-1
opened by McCarthy Stone in
Widnes.

e Develop 6 units of support for

APPENDIX ONE — PROGRESS AGAINST KEY OBJECTIVES/ MILESTONES

Health & Partnerships

9| abed



Service
Plan Ref.

Objective

2006/07
Key Milestone

Progress
to date

Commentary

HP6
continued

ex-offenders-target exceeded-
new pilot service for drug
using ex-offenders-30units. In
addition HHT have approved
an additional 6 units of
supported accommodation for
ex-offenders in 2007/8.

e Teenage parents-target
exceeded-new service for
young homeless and teenage
parents-20units carr-gomm.

Reconfiguration of generic floating
support-target achieved-over 50%
now client specific at no extra cost.

Good progress with reconfiguration of
Adults with Learning Disabilities
services- SP savings to date over
£300,000 pa.

Gross savings through contract
negotiations approx £700,000pa

Target to develop financial planning
strategy linked to govt announcement
on long-term funding-on target to be
developed in response to
announcement.

HP11

Review and consult on local housing strategy,
in partnership with stakeholders, and report
on progress and new developments annually

Produce annual progress
statement by Summer
2006

An annual progress statement was
submitted to the Housing Partnership
in September 2006.

APPENDIX ONE — PROGRESS AGAINST KEY OBJECTIVES/ MILESTONES

Health & Partnerships

G9| ebed



Service Obiective 2006/07 Progress Commenta

Plan Ref. ) Key Milestone to date ry

HP12 Develop and consult on strategic Implement service P A formal review of the current
homelessness service and ensure that changes where o Homelessness Strategy has been
homelessness services are delivered in necessary e deferred whilst efforts are focussed on
accordance with Agency Agreement developing the homelessness

prevention approach to reduce
presentations and reliance on the use
of B&B. The strategy review will
probably now commence in the
Autumn.

HP13 Ensure that sufficient longer-term cemetery Present options to P The options appraisal work requested
provision exists to meet the future needs of members for decision by members has commenced but will
the Halton community. and formulate project o roll forward into 2007/2008. This will

plan to deliver preferred delay member decision but will ensure
option that all appropriate options will have
been considered.

HP15 Reduce the access that children and young Strategy developed and o The strategy has been developed and
people have to certain age restricted products | implementation o is constantly evolving based on the
by developing and implementing an under- commenced ¥ additional information the Service
age-sales strategy, informed by the results of receives throughout the year.
previous research and activity, and having Implementation has commenced.
regard to the joint national enforcement
statement issued in November 2005.

HP16 Improve Access to the service for the socially | Resources permitting, o Some 20% of the actions have now
excluded (Consumer Protection) implement 20% of _3} been completed. A number of actions

actions in the action plan
(developed from the
consultation in 2005) by
the end of 2007 or
research possible
opportunities for external
funding of actions by end
Dec 06

have been taken to raise the profile of
the Service in the 5 most deprived
wards via contact with all primary
schools in those wards and by
attendance at ‘coffee mornings’ at two
of the schools plus 3 sessions on
current “scams” at the Brow Primary
School in Castlefields.

APPENDIX ONE — PROGRESS AGAINST KEY OBJECTIVES/ MILESTONES
Health & Partnerships

99| abed



Service 2006/07 Progress

Plan Ref. Objective Key Milestone to date Commentary

Relationships with community groups
that are likely to come into contact
with the most disadvantaged
consumers have been enhanced and
a system of alerting such groups to
current scams has been developed.
A beer-mat campaign advertising the
service has been launched.

HP20 Ensure the smooth transfer of statutory Career development & Officers have been consulted on the
Registration officers to local authority training needs identified new registration scheme and are
employment once legislation permits as legislative changes awaiting the results of job evaluation.
are implemented during New letters of appointment will be
2007/08. produced by Personnel in time for the
proposed scheme change on 4 July

2007.

o0

APPENDIX ONE — PROGRESS AGAINST KEY OBJECTIVES/ MILESTONES
Health & Partnerships

/9| 8bed



Service Obiective 2006/07 Progress Commenta
Plan Ref. ) Key Milestone to date y
&
o
o
HP7 Work with Operational Managers to produce a Implement Performance o A Performance Management
performance management framework that Monitoring Framework - Framework has been implemented
'

meets their needs.

Provide high quality performance monitoring
and management information to improve the
quality of information and report service
delivery to assist services to continuously
improve

for each service area

Manage data quality
issues through the use of
reporting mechanisms as
part of overall
performance
management

Consult and implement
Performance Monitoring
Framework for each
service area

which directs the flow of
performance information throughout
the year.

Data quality reports are circulated to
all teams and subsequent actions
are progress chased.

All operational teams have
established Performance
Management Groups and
frameworks. The teams are advised
and supported by an allocated
performance specialist on what
actions they need to take

APPENDIX TWO - PROGRESS AGAINST OTHER OBJECTIVES/ MILESTONES

Health & Partnerships

89| ebed



Service Obiective 2006/07 Progress Commenta
Plan Ref. ) Key Milestone to date y
throughout the year to demonstrate
and improve performance.
The performance dashboard is
being launched w/b 14™ May 2007
so that performance information is
accessible from the desktop.
HP8 Develop workforce plans to ensure that there Review and update the o The Workforce Development Plan
are appropriate resources to deliver services Directorate Workforce - for 2006/07 has been reviewed.
plan v The WDP for 2007/08 has been
drafted ready to be approved at
SMT during April 2007.
o
o
HP10 Develop and implement joint commissioning Review and revise all Strategies in place for ALD, OP,

strategies in each service area, in partnership
with key stakeholders, service users and
carers, that fully reflect national and local
priorities and the social inclusion agenda

Develop robust contract management and
monitoring arrangements across all service
areas.

strategies in the light of
changing national and
local priorities. Ensure
consolidation of strategy
format takes place.

Evidence is available for
all contracts or SLAs,
which demonstrates
quality and VFM and can

o0

MH. PSD strategy and action plan
drafted and on target for July 07.

Work to merge Supporting People
and Contracts teams will ensure
robust contracts management is
priority in monitoring Framework &

APPENDIX TWO - PROGRESS AGAINST OTHER OBJECTIVES/ MILESTONES

Health & Partnerships

691 abed



Service Obiective 2006/07 Progress Commenta

Plan Ref. ) Key Milestone to date y

HP10 be used to plan and Minimum Data Set agreed re:

continued commission / Voluntary Sector Contracts

decommission future
services.

HP14 Enable members to make informed decisions Present options to [ ] Options presented to members via
about crematorium facilities in the Borough, members for o Executive Board Sub Committee
with particular regard to the issue of mercury development of longer- i meetings in May and June 2006.
abatement. term policy Policy agreed.

HP17 Introduce prevention measures to protect Research the possibility [ ] Funding has been identified for
vulnerable adults from falling pray to doorstep of funding in order to o 2007/2008 and work on the Voice
crime implement a Voice i Connect ICAN system will

Connect system for commence in April 2007.
vulnerable adults for the

purpose of Doorstep

crime alerts.

Seek funding for a pilot Once funding was identified, a two-
‘No Cold-callers Zone’ in street No-Cold-Calling-Zone was
one street. set-up in Widnes.

HP18 Identify and implement improvements to the Survey all customers o Service improvements that flowed
Registration Service from intelligence gleaned visiting the office during _i from 2005/2006 surveys included

from surveys of customers each year, to
ascertain their views on the quality and scope
of services provided

a particular week in the
first quarter of 07

Survey all couples
marrying during one of
the peak summer
months of 2006

supplying maps covering the
register office to all couples and the
simplification of information pages
for marriages and civil partnerships

The marriage survey in September
had a 33% response rate. Of these
100% said they were extremely

APPENDIX TWO - PROGRESS AGAINST OTHER OBJECTIVES/ MILESTONES

Health & Partnerships

0.1 8bed



Service

2006/07

Progress

Plan Ref. Objective Key Milestone to date Commentary
Analyse results by satisfied with the service, both when
31.12.2006 organising the event and on the day
of the marriage. 100% said it
Implement any service represented good value for money
improvements from and that the facilities offered and
previous year’s survey service given could not be improved
by end 2006 upon.
HP19 Ensure that the Council meets its statutory Procedures agreed and o A total of 17 civil partnership
responsibilities with regard to the provision of structure in place for E registrations have been conducted
Civil Partnership registrations provision of ceremonies * since 1 April 2006.
in 2006
HP21 All supervisors to discuss and record within Work life balance |f Due to a reprioritisation of activity
EDR and monitored in supervision, work life policies distributed and o around the development of a Work
balance issues with staff ensuring that staff are | communicated to staff = Life Balance Strategy, it has not
fully aware of Council policy and monitored via staff been possible to undertake the
supervision audit audit process this year.
process
A Corporate Work-life Balance
Strategy has been drafted to
strengthen work-life balance
initiatives across the Council.
HP22 Identification of staff with caring responsibilities | |dentify staff as carers. Eight HBC employees responded to

Provide staff with
information to enable
them to be supported
with flexible working

w00

the messages inserted on the salary
document. Four of these were
Halton residents and have been
referred to receive carer support.
The Carer Development Team now
have a presence at Corporate
Induction courses to help identify
Carers.

APPENDIX TWO - PROGRESS AGAINST OTHER OBJECTIVES/ MILESTONES

Health & Partnerships

1,1 obed



Service
Plan Ref.

Objective

2006/07
Key Milestone

Progress
to date

Commentary

A message aimed at identifying
carers employed within HBC has
been inserted in the monthly salary
document three times during
2006/2007. It is planned to repeat
this three times in the forthcoming
year.

A section on working carers has
been inserted into the HBC Work life
Balance Strategy.

One event planned for Carers Week
2007 will be targeted at HBC
employee’s who are carers

HP23

To develop a comprehensive Health
Improvement Strategy

Implementation of Health
Improvement Strategy

Mapping exercise
conducted of all local
health or associated
partnerships.

Self-assessment
performance tool
adopted.

We already have a Baseline Report
and Health Equity Audit, which are
in the process of being brought
together to form a Health
Improvement Strategy.

This has been done and shared
with the PCT.

The Joint Halton & Warrington
Youth Offending Service use the
OPDM Partnership Audit Tool and
as a result have their partnership
agreement. Use has also been

APPENDIX TWO - PROGRESS AGAINST OTHER OBJECTIVES/ MILESTONES

Health & Partnerships

2.\ ebed



Service Obiective 2006/07 Progress Commenta

Plan Ref. ) Key Milestone to date y

HP23 made of this model for a new
continued

Analysis conducted of
authorities similar to
HBC.

Production of Health
Impact Assessments
bundle.

partnership emergency duty tram
service which is across St. Helens
and Halton.

A benchmarking exercise has been
conducted.

An example of the utilisation of HIA
is with respect to proposals for all-
day drinking. Joint training has
recently been delivered to council
and PCT staff on health needs
assessment and health impact
assessments.

APPENDIX TWO - PROGRESS AGAINST OTHER OBJECTIVES/ MILESTONES

Health & Partnerships

€/ ebed



Page 174

- . Higher figures
BYPl Number of adults and older people receiving Direct gnerfiy Skl
20 represent hetter Better  a—
Payments perfarmance Band P
Target X
Key Current X
= ::::: Likely to hit PAF target
" 20055
175 ] I:I
L ]
150 ] - 20067 Trend
I:I:I
125 E:E:E Tt
I...I
N
1 ) Top 25%
75 e
Middlle S0%
50
- Bottom 25% Green
25
g ) Better than Annual
e e 5 @4 Oufum  Quartie this time last| | taraet hit or
vear exceeded
Commentary

Current performance of 190.43 people per 100,000 population in receipt of direct payments. This indicator is in relation
to client users only. Direct payments used to benefit the carer (|.e respite or carers break) are reported in a separate
performance indicator to measure carers services, Current performance would be awarded a PAF Band 5, and target
for 2006/ has been exceeded.

S Fercentage of schools {(incl. % 11 and Sixth pupils) Higher figures
Ha&PARL : represent bettar
4 offered a Validate card. perfarmance
ke

100 ¥

a0 200515

&0 - i Trend

70

=11  Target

= Top 25%

40

an I:' Midclle 50%

< - Bottom 25% Green
10

1
0 :
. Mo quartile data Same as Annual
i = = Q4 Oufum  Quartie available this time last| | taraet hit or
year exceeded
Commentary

100% of schools and Bth form colleges were offered the Yalidate card. Some 8 out of the 10 schools took up that
offer.  All Gth form Colleges including St Chads, St Peter and Paul and the 3 Riverside College sites were all visited
and offered %alidate cards. In total 856 cards were requested and issued ta 16 year olds attending Halton schoals and
183 were issued to Gth form pupils, making a total of 1 032 cards

APPENDIX THREE — PROGRESS AGAINST KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
Health & Partnerships



Page 175

B4 % of times service has offered 2 burial Higher figures
H&FARLL  appointments within 9 working days (Dec to Feb represent better
10 inclusive) or within 7 working days at other times performance
ke
e = e T i
- 200515
SRR RN R R R " R - B Trend
a0 1---------J------ - -
T et
&9 Top 25%
e [ e R | e Midile S0%.
75 4----------------------F---------------- - Bottom 25%
" ' ' ' ' ' ' Mo guartile data || Modatafor || Annual
1 @2 K] 24 Ctturn Cuartile a\railahle came Qtr 1argEthI1 ar
lastyear exceeded
Commentary

Bereavernent Services were able to meet this standard for all 311 full burials that took place during the 2006/2007
financial year. Longer booking periods were accepted where there was a specific family request for a longer period (for
example where family members were away ar where a family wished to wait until a specific minister was availablg).

Shll FPercentage of clients attended to within 10 minutes Higher fgures
Ha&PARL . : ) represent bettar
13 of their appointment time. perfarmance
ke
100 - ¥
- 20056
9395 +
- 0BT Trend
a3
 Target
#31 T 25%
9B T I:' Miclclle 50%
975 | - Biottom 25%
97 | .
: Mo quartile data Better than Annual
i o = B0 LT EHGiL available this fime 1ast| | target hit or
year exceeded
Commentary

899.9%, or 4170 customers were seen within 10 minutes of their appointment time during the year, an increase of 2458
on the previous twelve months, Five clients were not seen within the 10-minute standard, delays to 3 of these clients
being caused by IT problems.

In addition 951 clients were seen without an appointment.

APPENDIX THREE — PROGRESS AGAINST KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
Health & Partnerships




Page 176

BFI M . . . Higher figures
0. of assessed social work practice learning days
H&PARPA, : ) H ) g tay represent hetter
F £g perwhole time equivalent social worker perormance
Key
30
I:I 20058
a5 - 200857
T et
- Top 25%
Middle 50%
15
- Bottom 25%
10 l }
Mo gquartile data
oy | a2 23 4 Outturn uartile 4 .
available
Commentary

Trend

Green

Mo data for Annual
same Qtr || target hit or
lastyear exceeded

This Pl iz calculated by dividing the number of placement days, both directly provided and those supported in the val
sector, by the no of WTE social workers, Last year we were awarded 1030 vals and although this will not be confirmed
until the end aof the year, we can confidently anticipate at least this number in future years because the total no of
students has increased.
To date, we have provided 1484 days, which gives a total of 25864 (including vols) divided by WTE 97 7=26.24

BRI
H&PARLI
17

4.4

35

% of 350 gross current expenditure on staffing
which was spent on training the Council's directhy

employved staff during the financial year

25

=)

1.4

—

05

G 2 3 1

Commentary
Training Budget spend April-March against cost centres BOB0, BO00, 5647, 5200 & 6220, including Children Services.

T&D Spend £538 108 divided by £18 870 277 multiplied by 100, Staff costs provided by finance. Doesnt include spend
on Ind Sectar (£27 332)

Cwturn

Czrtile

Miether high ar [ow
figures represent
hetter performance

Key

200505

- 20067

 Target

Top 25%

I:' iccdle 509
- Bottom 25%

Mo quartile data
available

Trend

Mo data far Annual
Same Gir target
lastyear missed

APPENDIX THREE — PROGRESS AGAINST KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
Health & Partnerships



Ref Indicator '3‘; t/uoab! '(I)'gl}g:?t Quarter 4 | Progress Commentary
Service Delivery Indicators.
PAF The number of carers receiving a |f Figure provided is as at end February
C62 specific carers service as a 7.04 9% 8.45% o] 2007, target may still be achieved. Final
percentage of clients receiving = year end figure not yet known as admin
community based services staff are still back loading data onto
Carefirst.
BVPI Score against a checklist of o This ‘year end’ best value performance
166b enforcement best practice for 100% 100% 100% o indicator provides an indication of the
Trading Standards + performance of Halton’s Consumer
Protection Service when measured
against a checklist of enforcement best
practice. The checklist has regard to
written enforcement policies, risk based
inspection programmes and sampling and
surveillance regimes, educational and
information programmes, customer
complaint/enquiry processes,
benchmarking and consultation
arrangements and performance reporting
mechanisms.
Number of private sector dwellings 1 o The target has been achieved.
returned into occupation or 0 2 2 &
BVPI 64 demolished as a direct result of *
action by the local authority.

1 Target for BVPI 64 — due to the low number of empty properties in Halton, along with the absence of grants to encourage landlords to take on and improve

any empty properties, the target is set below bottom quartile figure.

APPENDIX FOUR — PROGRESS AGAINST OTHER PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Health & Partnerships

// | abed



Ref Indicator 3\5(,: t/uoa(; '(I)'g rlg(;a7t Quarter 4 | Progress Commentary
4 Estimated figure.
The average length of stay in B&B 1.86 1.8 4.92 o Increased homeless presentations,
BVP accommodation of homeless 2 coupled with a reduction in the supply of
183a households tha_lt are u_nlntentlonally relets, has resulted ina fall in
homeless and in priority need performance. A Project Group has been
(weeks) established to redesign homelessness
services to address this problem.
The average length of stay in hostel [ ] Halton does not have any accommodation
BVPI accommodation of homeless 0 0 0 2 that that falls into the criteria of a hostel.
183b households that are unintentionally L
homeless and in priority need?
Number of Rough Sleepers [ ] This is an estimate as there has_ not been
BVPI N/A 0 0 est 2 a formal rough sleepers count since
202 S March 2004. One is planned for Autumn
2007.
BVP The % change_i_n the average 4 Estimated figure.
203 number of families placed in 10.85% 13.0% 16.66% o See comments for BV 183a above.
temporary accommodation e
The number of households who ﬁ Estimated figure.
considered themselves as homeless, 0 1.06 0.3 o Whilst this is an improvement over
BVP who approached the LA housing 2 2005/06, it is below the target for 2006/07.
213 adwqe service, and for whom Improved performgpge .should.result in
housing advice casework 2007/08 from the initiatives being
intervention resolved their situation developed under the homelessness
(expressed as the number divided by service redesign.
the number of thousand households
in the Borough)

% Halton does not have any accommodation that falls within the definition of a hostel as stated in the guidance for this indicator.

APPENDIX FOUR — PROGRESS AGAINST OTHER PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Health & Partnerships

g8/ | ebed



Ref Indicator 3\5(,: t/uoa(; -(I)-g rlg(;a7t Quarter 4 | Progress Commentary
The proportion of households o Estimated figure.
BVPI accepted as statutorily homeless 4.89 9.5% 1.26% - Performance was significantly better than
214 who were accepted as statutorily i the target, evidence of the success of the
homeless by the same LA within the support services developed under the
last 2 years Supporting People programme.
Has there been a reduction in the o The wording of this Pl has changed from
BVPI percentage of cases accepted as - -7.5% YES the % reduction in cases to whether or not
225 Part | homeless due to domestic violence s there has been a reduction. The

8

that had previously been re-housed
in the last 2 years by that LA as a
result of domestic violence

provisional outcome is that there were no
repeat cases during 2006/07.

w00

APPENDIX FOUR — PROGRESS AGAINST OTHER PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Health & Partnerships

6.1 abed



Ref Indicator '3‘; t/uoab! '(I)'gr/g:_; Quarter 4 | Progress Commentary
HP/ % of Halton pupils completing a 60% 45% 70% o A cigarettes survey was carried out in
LPI 3 survey on the supply of age of of 2 relation to Year 9 pupils. The 70%
restricted products appropri | appropri * response rate far exceeded the 45%
ate ate target we aimed for. This increases the
School School validity of the results.
year year
We have received the individual school
reports, which Officers are working
through in order to provide information to
tackle future problems. We are awaiting
the full Halton report so we can produce a
list of relevant intelligence based actions
for the coming year.
HP/ Carry out all cremations within 24 [ ] A total of 587 cremations took place
LPI9 hours of receipt of written 100% 100% 100% o during the 2006/2007 financial year.
instructions. i
HP/ Applications for current certificates [ ] 1035 applications for current certificates
LPI112 processed on the day of receipt. 98.3% 99% 99.7% o were received during the year. Of these
i" 1032 were issued on the day of receipt.
HP/ The percentage of undisputed [ ] Target achieved due to improved
LPI1 18 invoices which were paid in 30 days 89% 95% 96% 2 monitoring and weekly chasing of invoice
(Based | (BVPI 8) ¥ authorisers by the Financial Services
on BVPI team to ensure prompt payment.
8)

APPENDIX FOUR — PROGRESS AGAINST OTHER PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Health & Partnerships

08| 8bed



Ref Indicator 'g‘sc t/uoaﬁl '(I)'grlg:; Quarter 4 | Progress Commentary
Quality of Service Indicators.
HP/ Percentage of consumer service 4 It should be noted that the above relates
LPI7 users satisfied with the Trading New for 88% 80% to the return of only 1 consumer feedback
Standards Service, when last 06/07 2 form plus 4 returned questionnaires. The
surveyed low return rate, which included a single
expression of dissatisfaction, has resulted
in a failure to meet the locally set target.
Consultation methods are to be reviewed
in light of the poor return rate.
HP/ Percentage of Business service o Target exceeded, but note that the above
LPI 8 users satisfied with the Trading N 88% 100% < relates to only 7 trader feedback forms
Standards Service, when last ew for * plus 18 returned questionnaires.
’ 06/07
surveyed
HP/ Percentage of Bereavement Service [ ] The above is based on 76 feedback forms
LPI 11 users who rated the staff New f 70% 100% & from clients who had made contact with
courteousness / helpfulness as oegy()?r i Bereavement staff.
reasonable / good / excellent when
last surveyed
HP/ Percentage of couples who felt that [ ] The response rate for the marriages
LPI 14 they received an excellent or good 88% 100% & survey of 33% was poor. However,
service from staff on the day of their New for i everyone said that they had received a
marriage / partnership, when last 06/07 very good or good service on the day of
surveyed. their ceremony.

APPENDIX FOUR — PROGRESS AGAINST OTHER PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Health & Partnerships

18| abed



Ref Indicator 'g‘sc t/uoaﬁl '(I)'grlg:; Quarter 4 | Progress Commentary
HP/ Percentage of other Registration o The general survey of clients had an 81%
LPI 15 Service users who rated the staff’s 88% 100% o response rate. Of these everyone said
helpfulness / efficiency as excellent N * the helpfulness and efficiency of the staff
ew for
or good, when last surveyed. 06/07 had been very good or good. One
comment made: “Every Borough should
provide this excellent service.”
Fair Access Indicators.
HP/ No. of initiatives undertaken to raise o Some 20% of the actions have now been
LPI 5 the profile of the Service in the 5 9 3 13 _i completed. A number of actions have

most deprived wards

been taken to raise the profile of the
Service in the 5 most deprived wards via
contact with all primary schools in those
wards and by attendance at ‘coffee
mornings’ at two of the schools plus 3
sessions on current “scams” at the Brow
Primary School in Castlefields.
Relationships with community groups that
are likely to come into contact with the
most disadvantaged consumers have
been enhanced and a system of alerting
such groups to current scams has been
developed. A Service beer-mat
advertising campaign has been launched.

APPENDIX FOUR — PROGRESS AGAINST OTHER PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Health & Partnerships

28| ebed



Ref

Indicator

Actual
05/06

Target
06 /07

Quarter 4

Progress

Commentary

HP/
LPI 6

% of Improving Access Action Plan
implemented (resources permitting)

N/A

20%

20%

o
o
&+

Some 20% of the actions have now been
completed. A number of actions have
been taken to raise the profile of the
Service in the 5 most deprived wards via
contact with all primary schools in those
wards and by attendance at ‘coffee
mornings’ at two of the schools plus 3
sessions on current “scams” at the Brow
Primary School in Castlefields.
Relationships with community groups that
are likely to come into contact with the
most disadvantaged consumers have
been enhanced and a system of alerting
such groups to current scams has been
developed. A Service beer-mat
advertising campaign has been launched.

Cost & Efficiency Indicators.

HP/
LPI 16

% of SSD directly employed posts
vacant on 30 September

9.77%

8%

11.78

We continue to raise the profile of a
career within social care through various
means, for example the northwest
authorities Thinkcare website
(www.thinkcare.gov.uk). Representatives
attended the SOCNOW recruitment fair in
May 2006, which is also planned for May
2007, as well as regularly reviewing our
policies and procedures in relation to
recruitment.

APPENDIX FOUR — PROGRESS AGAINST OTHER PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Health & Partnerships

£g| ebed



Page 184

The traffic light symbols are used in the following manner:

Objective Performance Indicator

Indicates that the objective Indicates that the annual
has been achieved within 06/07 target has been
the appropriate timeframe.  achieved or exceeded.

Green

o)

Indicates that the objective Indicates that the annual
has not been achieved 06/07 target has not been

within ~ the  appropriate achieved.
timeframe.

A
D
Q.
Eo%]

APPENDIX FIVE — EXPLANATION OF TRAFFIC LIGHT SYMBOLS
Health & Partnerships



Page 185

QUARTERLY MONITORING REPORT

DIRECTORATE: Environment
SERVICE: Highways, Transportation & Logistics
PERIOD: Quarter 4 2006/07

1.0 INTRODUCTION

This quarterly monitoring report covers the Highways & Transportation
Department for the period 1 January 2007 to 31 March 2007. It
describes key developments and progress against all objectives and
performance indicators for the service.

Given that there are a considerable number of year-end transactions still
to take place a Financial Statement for the period, which will be made
available in due course, has not been included within this report in order
to avoid providing information that would be subject to further change
and amendment.

The way in which traffic lights symbols have been used to reflect
progress to date is explained within Appendix 4

It should be noted that this report is presented to a number of
Policy and Performance Boards. Those objectives and indicators
that are not directly relevant to this Board have been shaded grey.

2.0 KEY DEVELOPMENTS

Quarter 4 has seen starts to two long awaited schemes. The final section
of Queensbury Way, Upton Rocks, that links to a new junction with
Cronton Lane has started on site. The scheme had been delayed by
complex and lengthy negotiations over the acquisition of a vital piece of
land needed for the road scheme. The road should be open by October
2007 and will provide much improved access to this rapidly expanding
residential area.

The refurbishment of the Halton Lea North bus station has also started.
The bus station is part of the Rutland House/Direct Link/Library group of
buildings and has been sadly neglected over the years. The make over
is being funded through the LTP and will provide modern high quality
facilities for bus passengers to match the new high quality buses
operated by Arriva and Halton Transport. This scheme should be
completed by July 2007.

Highways & Transportation



Page 186

3.0 EMERGING ISSUES

Last year the Regional Assembly jointly with the Development Agency
undertook an assessment of all the region’s major transport schemes
(excluding rail) in order to provide advice to the Secretary of State on the
North West’'s transport priorities. The work resulted in the Regional
Funding Allocation advice in the form of a fully costed and prioritised 10-
year programme for the North West.

Recent large increase in costs estimates e.g the Highways Agency
Mottram — Tintwistle scheme and Cheshire’s Alderley Edge By-pass
have brought a need to review the allocation advice. There is some
concern that a review could disadvantage Halton’s major schemes i.e.
Mersey Gateway and Silver Jubilee Bridge Major Maintenance. The
Regional Assembly has set up a working group to advise on the review
and Halton and Merseyside are both represented on it. This work will be
closely monitored through the coming months.

4.0 PROGRESS AGAINST KEY OBJECTIVES / MILESTONES

s © Ea
Total 5 * 4 < 0 o 1
L (o] o]

(Appendix 1) HT 04 Silver Jubilee Bridge Maintenance Major Scheme —
to secure funding, complete procurement and deliver works: the major
scheme bid has been with DfT since March 2006 but DfT have only in
February 2007 responded. Consultants have now been commissioned to
review the Council’'s submission. Their further response is now expected
in 2007/08.

4.1 PROGRESS AGAINST OTHER OBJECTIVES / MILESTONES

There are no ‘Other’ objectives for this service.

5.0 SERVICE REVIEW

There have been no service reviews this quarter.

6.0 PROGRESS AGAINST KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

o o Py
Total 2 * 1 < 0 o 1
L (o] o]

Highways & Transportation



Page 187

(Appendix 2)

6.1 PROGRESS AGAINST OTHER PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

o o Y
Total 23 - 14 B 0 O 9
L (o] o]

(Appendix 3) Performance against all three road safety indicators has
been exceptional and all are already below the Government’s target
figure for 2010. Statistical returns can fluctuate and whilst some upward
movement could be expected from one year to the next the overall trend
is very encouraging.

Performance against the road and footway condition BVPIs is again
inconclusive. The parameters applied have changed since last year and
different survey methods are applied. Overall performance is good but
how this compares with previous years remains impossible to measure
with any accuracy.

7.0 PROGRESS AGAINST LPSA TARGETS

There are no current LPSA targets for this service.

8.0 RISK CONTROL MEASURES

During the production of the 2006-09 Service Plan, the service was
required to undertake a risk assessment of all Key Service Objectives.

Where a Key Service Objective has been assessed and found to have
associated ‘High’ risk, progress against the application of risk treatment
measures is to be monitored, and reported in the quarterly monitoring
report in quarters 2 and 4.

At the half-year stage, all relevant risk treatment measures have been
implemented for key service objectives that were initially assessed as
high risk in the Directorate Risk Register

9.0 PROGRESS AGAINST HIGH PRIORITY EQUALITY ACTIONS

During 2005/06 the service was required to undertake an Equality
Impact Assessment. Progress against actions identified through that
assessment, with associated High priority are to be reported in the
quarterly monitoring report.

Highways & Transportation



Page 188

There are no High priority equality actions for this service, there is no
progress to report.

10.0 APPENDICES

Appendix 1- Progress against Key Objectives/ Milestones
Appendix 2- Progress against Key Performance Indicators
Appendix 3- Progress against Other Performance Indicators
Appendix 4- Explanation of traffic light symbols

Highways & Transportation



Service Obiective 2006/07 Progress Commenta
Plan Ref. ) Key Milestone to date y
HT 01/ New Mersey Crossing — to deliver a new Achieve Programme [ ] Achieved in March 2006.
SA1 crossing of the Mersey in Halton. Entry — May 2006 *
&
HT 02/ Capital Programme - to deliver the Highways | Completed by 31.03.07 — [ ] The capital programme works have
SA1 capital programme as supported by LTP est. cost £4.385m * been completed by 31 March 2007.
funding. ]
HT 03/ Local Transport Plan 2. - To develop and Final LTP submitted by [ ] Final LTP submitted by target date.
SA1/ submit Annual Progress Reports on LTP2, 31.03.06. 2
SA2/ delivery meeting the requirements of DfT and i
SA3 monitoring progress against the Council’s APR 2001/02-05/06 Delivery Report (APR) submitted by
transport objectives. submitted by 31.07.06 target date.
Progress report for Reporting requirements for 06/07 are
2006/07 in preparation. confined to performance relating to
targets, finance and scheme outputs.
Data collection is underway.
HT 04/ Silver Jubilee Bridge Maintenance Major Funding secured, ¢] DfT have announced that they are
SA1 Scheme — to secure funding, complete delivery procured. o engaging consultants to review the
procurement and deliver works. (£38m) by 31.03.07 L& bid. An early response is not
expected.
HT 05/ Vehicle Fleet Replacement Program — Draft Tenders completed [ ] The procurement was funded from
SA4 Implement and complete tendering process. by 31.03.07 2 capital and undertaken successfully
L through an external Framework by the

target date.

APPENDIX ONE — PROGRESS AGAINST KEY OBJECTIVES/ MILESTONES
Highways & Transportation

681 abed



Page 190

BFI Lower figures
2183 Average days to repair street light faults: non ONO represent better
performance
ke
10 ¥

]

L]

=

[ga]

I:I 200508
- 00T Trend
Red
T et
Top 25%

Midclle S0%

- Bottom 25%
0
ey o2 o] eh)

: Mo quartile data Mo data for Annual
Cuwturn Gzrtile availahle . arget

lastyear missed
Commentary
Target not met due to contractor having staff shortages and problems with access for maintaining high mast lighting

BRI Loweer figures
215h Average days to repair street light faults: DMNO represent better
perfarmance
- Key
20055
a0

- 0BT Trend

 Target

- Top 23%
20 I:' Midldle 50%
10 I - Bottom 25% Green
0
oy | o2 o3 g

: Mo quartile data Mo data for Annual
it Gl available sarme Ot || target hit or

lastyear exceeded

40

Commentary
Target met and improved due to improved performance by Scottish Power contractors.

APPENDIX TWO — PROGRESS AGAINST KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
Highways & Transportation



Ref Indicator '3‘; tluoa6l Ig'}g:; Quarter 4 | Progress Commentary
Service Delivery
o
2
o
3
o
3
BVPI Percentage of principal road network SCANNER surveys are used to measure
223 where structural maintenance should | 1.44% 1.44% 1.7% 4 this BVPI. 100% of the network is
be considered surveyed each year but only in one
2 direction. The direction surveyed is
changed each year. Direct year on year
comparisons are therefore not possible. In
2004/05 a completely different method
was used. Although at 1.7% of the road
network needing repair, condition can
comfortably be assumed to be very good.
BVPI Condition of Non-Principal classified SCANNER surveys are used to measure
224a Roads 2.2% 2.2% 6.4% Y this BVPI. 100% of the network is
(% non-principal classified road o surveyed each year but only in one
network where structural & direction. The direction surveyed is
maintenance should be considered) changed each year. Direct year on year
comparisons are therefore not possible. In
2004/05 a completely different method
was used.

APPENDIX THREE — PROGRESS AGAINST OTHER PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Highways & Transportation

16| ebed



Actual

Target

Ref Indicator 05/ 06 06 /07 Quarter 4 | Progress Commentary
BVPI Condition of Unclassified Roads CVI (Coarse Visual Inspection) surveys
224b (% unclassified road network where 12.9% 12% 4.0% o are used to measure this BVPI. 100% of
structural maintenance should be - the network has been surveyed this year
considered) s but in previous years only part of the
network has been surveyed. Direct year
on year comparisons are therefore not
possible.
BVPI % of footways not in good condition DVI (Detailed Visual Inspection) surveys
187 (across categories 1 & 2) 22.4% 22% 23.2% ﬁ are used to measure this BVPI. A different
o 50% of the network is surveyed each
2 year. Direct year on year comparisons are
therefore not possible.
HT LI Damage to roads and pavements (% o The figure for the full year 2006/07 is
01 dangerous damage repaired within 98% 98% 99.71% - 99.71% which exceeds the target.
24 hours) r
BVPI Local bus service (passenger ﬁ Although the target for 2006/7 has not
102 journeys per year) 5.51m 6.14m 6.07m o been achieved. Local bus patronage has
2 actually risen by 10% over the 12 month
period 2006/7, which is mostly attributable
to the introduction of free concessionary
travel after 09.30am (Monday to Fridays)
— all day weekends from April 2006.
HT LI ¢ No of sites with new bus shelters. | 16 20 35 (o] Performance for both indicators has been
02 2 exceeded. This is due to additional shelter
L investment through the Local Transport
Plan Quality Corridor Programme.
e No of sites with replacement 44 39 40 (o]
bus shelters. -
&
HT LI Percentage of schools with School [ ] Note target s in LTP for 2006/7-
03 Travel Plans in place. 39% 52% 53% 2 2010/11have been restructured to reflect
Sl availability of resources. Target for

2010/11 remains at 100%.

APPENDIX THREE — PROGRESS AGAINST OTHER PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Highways & Transportation

261 abed



Ref Indicator '3‘; tlu0a6l '(I)'grlg(;e; Quarter 4 | Progress Commentary
HT LI Percentage of employers (> 100 o Target for 06/07 has been exceeded by
04 employees) with Green Travel Plans | 27% 18% 36% - 100%. This higher growth in adopted
in place i Green Travel Plans by businesses relates
to an increased emphasis on the adoption
of Travel Plan requirements on local
businesses through the local planning
process (Section 106 agreements etc.)
HT LI Proportion of LGV'’s that pass the P Due to the increased number of LGV’s
05 annual MOT test first time 88% 90% 84% tested, as necessitated by the
2 requirement to prepare the current RCV
Fleet for resale this target has not been
met. However, the figure is above the
national target average of 80%.
HT LI Proportion of workshop jobs o As a result of an enhanced inspection
06 attributed to non-scheduled 27.54% | 25% 17% 2 regime, to provide a reliable operational
maintenance v service, performance has significantly
exceeded target.
Quality
BVPI % of people satisfied with local public | N/a - 4 The triennial residents survey (which is
103 transport information. triennial | 56.8% All: 55% used to measure progress against this
survey 2 indicator) has been adjusted to separately

identify bus service user satisfaction from
all residents’ satisfaction for 2006/7. This
has revealed that bus user satisfaction
with public transport information is 75%,
which considerably exceeds the targets
set for all residents. However, overall,
general satisfaction (non users and users)
has remained at the 2003 level and has
therefore not met the target.

APPENDIX THREE — PROGRESS AGAINST OTHER PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Highways & Transportation

€61 abed



Ref

Indicator

Actual
05/06

Target
06 /07

Quarter 4

Progress

Commentary

BVPI
104

% of people satisfied with local bus
services.

N/a -
triennial
survey

63%

All: 63%

w00

The survey this year has been required to
separately identify both bus and non
service user satisfaction. Bus user
satisfaction has been shown to be 71%,
which is considerably higher than the
general satisfaction level for users and
non users combined, which actually met
the 06/07 target set.

Fair Acce

BVPI
178

% of footpaths and ROWs that are
easy to use.

96%

96%

94%

5o%]

Whilst the 06/07 target has been narrowly
missed, the samples used to derive the
figures are taken at random and can
result in variances in the results obtained.
However, efforts will be made increase
performance on this indicator.

HT LI 07

No. of passengers on community
based accessible transport.

112,600

113,800

121,465

o]

During 2006/7 — 121,465 passenger
journeys were made on community
accessible transport, which exceeded the
target for 2006/7 by 6.7%. All of the
services funded by Halton Borough
Council such as “Dial a Ride”, “Women’s
Safe” transport have risen, however there
has been a fall in the number of affiliated
community group vehicle hires with HCT.

HT LI 08

% of bus stops with Quality Corridor
accessibility features. (No. of stops —
603)

28.4%

26%
(156)

31.7%
(191)

w00

Target exceeded

APPENDIX THREE — PROGRESS AGAINST OTHER PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Highways & Transportation

61 abed



HT LI Number of third party compensation Initial analysis of the claims received in
09 claims received due to alleged 113 110 121 4 2006 / 2007 indicates a rise to 39% in
highway / footway defects claims for damage to vehicles from
2 carriageway incidents particularly tyres. In
2005/2006 carriageway incidents formed
only 18% of total claims. Footway claims
have largely fallen in line with predictions.
The potential reasons for this increase in
‘carriageway’ claims and the success of
these claims is being investigated.
HT LI 10 | Increase MOT test facility turnover by o
5% per annum £131213 | £137774 £144624 i Target exceeded

APPENDIX THREE — PROGRESS AGAINST OTHER PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Highways & Transportation

G61 abed



Page 196

The traffic light symbols are used in the following manner:

Objective Performance Indicator

Indicates that the objective Indicates that the annual
has been achieved within 06/07 target has been
the appropriate timeframe. achieved or exceeded

Green

o)

Indicates that that the Indicates that the annual
objective has not been 06/07 target has not been
achieved within the achieved.

appropriate timeframe.

Red

Eo%]

APPENDIX FOUR - EXPLANATION OF TRAFFIC LIGHT SYMBOLS
Highways & Transportation



Page 197

QUARTERLY MONITORING REPORT

DIRECTORATE: Environment
SERVICE: Major Projects Department
PERIOD: Quarter 4 2006/07

1.0 INTRODUCTION

This quarterly monitoring report covers the Major Projects Department
for the period 1 January 2007 to 31 March 2007. It describes key
developments and progress against all objectives and performance
indicators for the service.

Given that there are a considerable number of year-end transactions still
to take place a Financial Statement for the period has not been included
within this report in order to avoid providing information that would be
subject to further change and amendment.

The way in which traffic lights symbols have been used to reflect
progress to date is explained within Appendix 5. While these (and the
indicator figures) reflect performance over the whole vyear, the
commentaries refer only to developments in Quarter 4.

2.0 KEY DEVELOPMENTS

e The Castlefields Regeneration Programme has been awarded
Exemplar status for 2007 by Renew, the North West centre of
excellence for regeneration.

e £72k has been secured from WREN towards Halebank Recreation
Ground. These upgrading works started in March.

e The North West Development Association has allocated £4.5m
within the SIP towards the 3MG (Mersey Multimodal Gateway)
Programme.

o ‘Determination’ of the St. Michael’s Golf Course has been completed
and agreed with the EA, allowing an application to EA/DEFRA for
further funding to design the remediation scheme.

¢ Brindley mound removal contract commenced

e Three key developments have started on site on Venture Fields, with
Outline Planning Permission having been received for a fourth, i.e.
the commercial leisure development being brought forward by
Widnes Regeneration Ltd. (WRL).

Major Projects



3.0

4.0

41

5.0

6.0

6.1

Page 198

EMERGING ISSUES

3MG - Board Approval will be sought in the summer 2007
programming changes to the 3MG area boundary, finance
timetabling

for
and

PROGRESS AGAINST KEY OBJECTIVES / MILESTONES

< b
Total 7 217 o
ey ]

0
(Appendix 1)
PROGRESS AGAINST OTHER OBJECTIVES / MILESTONES
o 4+
Total 7 2l 5 ol 2
% o
(Appendix 2)
SERVICE REVIEW
There have been no reviews in the Service in Q4.
PROGRESS AGAINST KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
< +
Total 5 kil 5 o 0
' =
(Appendix 3)
PROGRESS AGAINST OTHER PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
< +
Total 4 kil 4 o 0
' =
(Appendix 4)

Major Projects



Page 199

7.0 PROGRESS AGAINST LPSA TARGETS

There are no current LPSA targets for this service.

8.0 RISK CONTROL MEASURES

During the production of the 2006-09 Service Plan, the service was
required to undertake a risk assessment of all Key Service Objectives.

Where a Key Service Objective has been assessed and found to have
associated ‘High’ risk, progress against the application of risk treatment
measures is to be monitored, and reported in the quarterly monitoring
report in quarters 2 and 4.

At the end of year, all relevant risk treatment measures have been
implemented for key service objectives that were initially assessed as
high risk in the Directorate Risk Register

9.0 PROGRESS AGAINST HIGH PRIORITY EQUALITY ACTIONS

During 2005/06 the service was required to undertake an Equality
Impact Assessment. Progress against actions identified through that
assessment, with associated High priority are to be reported in the
quarterly monitoring report.

Since there are no High priority equality actions for this service, there is
no progress to report.

10.0 APPENDICES

Appendix 1- Progress against Key Objectives/ Milestones
Appendix 2- Progress against Other Objectives/ Milestones
Appendix 3- Progress against Key Performance Indicators
Appendix 4- Progress against Other Performance Indicators
Appendix 5- Explanation of traffic light symbols

Major Projects



Service
Plan Ref.

Objective

2006/7
Key Milestone

Progress
to date

Commentary On Q4 Progress

Area Regeneration

ARO1

To implement a regeneration plan for the
Widnes Waterfront EDZ in accordance with
the EDZ Team Plan and Regeneration
Masterplan

(See Team Plan)

Implementation
proceeding according to
Masterplan

o]

e Outline planning permission
secured by WRL for a leisure
development on Venture
Fields.

e Priority Sites start on site with
construction of Phase 1

o Saffil moved into their new
office development

e NWDA funding secured to
undertake Sl on proposed
linear park site.

e Construction of new access
road started on site.

e Performance Plan for 2007-8
North West Development
Association Funding approved
by Urban Renewal PPB and
SSP

AR02

To implement a regeneration plan for
Castlefields according to the Castlefields
Team Plan and Regeneration Masterplan
(See Team Plan)

Implementation
proceeding according to
Masterplan

o0

e Local centre CPO served April
5™ April 2007;

e Phase 2 RSL developments
commenced. including the
redevelopment of LHT blocks
at Hedge Hey and Meadow
Row.

¢ A planning application for the
demolition and redevelopment
of the deck assess flats at
Caesars Close has been

APPENDIXONE - PROGRESS AGAINST KEY OBJECTIVES/ MILESTONES

Major Projects

002 obed



Service
Plan Ref.

Objective

2006/7
Key Milestone

Progress
to date

Commentary On Q4 Progress

approved.

Planning application submitted
for HBC's Lakeside and
Canalside development sites.

ARO3

To implement a regeneration plan for the 3MG
(Mersey Multimodal Gateway)
(See Team Plan)

Implementation is
proceeding in line with
the Masterplan.

o)

Works begun on the
improvements to Halebank
Recreation Ground

AR04

Monitor investment levels in the 3 town
centres in order to comply with Community
Plan objectives

(See Team Plan)

Ensure continued
investment in town
centres of at least £1
million per annum

o)

Liebig Court development in
Widnes completed;

Canal Quarter development in
Runcorn commenced with
property acquisitions and site
preparation;

Shopfront improvement grant
scheme progressed according
to targets;

Planning permission secured
by Stadium Developments for
renewal of the Windmill
Centre;

Start on site by St. Modwen
Properties for the Homebase
development on the
Expressway Development site.

Land Reclamation

LRO1

Carry out Site Investigations on the EDZ

Compiletion of project: 10
ha. surveyed

o0

Completed

APPENDIXONE - PROGRESS AGAINST KEY OBJECTIVES/ MILESTONES

Major Projects

102 obed



Service o 2006/7 Progress

Plan Ref. Objective Key Milestone to date Commentary On Q4 Progress

LRO2 Remediation of the 3 ha. Norton site for the Completion of [ ] Project completed

Castlefields Youth Activity Park reclamation project: 3 ha. -

remediated Sl

LRO3 Development of the Canal Quarter, Runcorn Design of scheme [ ] e A further £300,000 has been
completed and agreed. - secured from English
Phase 1 construction L Partnerships for surveys and

initiated.

additional work which will
inform the final design.

e Development in Runcorn
commenced with property
acquisitions and site
preparation contract let for the
removal of the Brindley
Mound.

APPENDIXONE - PROGRESS AGAINST KEY OBJECTIVES/ MILESTONES

Major Projects

20g obed



Service Obiective 2006/7 Progress Commenta
Plan Ref. J Key Milestone to date y
Area Regeneration
ARO0S5 To regenerate Broseley Square and its Compiletion of 2 8.600 sq. o Development completed
streetscape: WRL to build 28,600 sq ft of ft. Liebig Court -
retail, residential and office accommodation development iy
ARO6 To manage the development of 200 houses 40 homes built and sold ﬁ 22 actually completed and sold.
for sale in Halebank o Although this is below the stated
= target a further 24 units are under
construction, taking the figure to
above target. It should be noted,
however, that since this Indicator was
set the development site has been
acquired by Barrett’s Developments,
and so the delivery of the scheme is
entirely outwith the Council’s control
or influence.
ARO7 To implement a shop-front improvement 20 premises’ [ ] 21 premises improved
scheme for Runcorn and Widnes Town improvements effected -
Centres to achieve visual and physical ]
improvements to the commercial fabric
AR08 To devise and implement a regeneration plan | Implementation [ ] SPD approved in September 2006
for Halebank proceeding according to -
Masterplan L]
Urban Renewal
URO1 To implement the Urban Renewal Strategy Three meetings of Urban o All achieved
and Action Plan Renewal SSP held. NRF -
-

and CPF programmes
delivered as programmed
according to funding
allocations

APPENDIX TWO - PROGRESS AGAINST OTHER OBJECTIVES

Major Projects

€0g obed



Service

o 2006/7 Progress
Plan Ref. SleffEEiiE Key Milestone to ?:Iate UL
Land Reclamation
LR0O4 Remediation of contamination on the 48 ha. of | Phase 1 & 2 reclamation 4 Site ‘determined’; remediation options
St Michael's Golf Course of 30 ha. of the Golf o analysis completed and submitted to
Course started i the EA.
LRO5 Phoenix Park, Castlefields, site reclamation Completion of works o Completed
o
]
'

APPENDIX TWO - PROGRESS AGAINST OTHER OBJECTIVES

Major Projects

v0g abed



Reference | Indicator g‘g tlu;é '(I)'grlg(;e; Quarter 4 Progress | Commentary
Cost & Efficiency
LPI7 Grant secured from the ERDF £200,000 £2m £2.83 (o] Target exceeded in previous quarters
2 as reported in Q3 Report.
&
Service Delivery
LPI 6 Land reclamation (acres) 12 10 11 [ ] Contract let for the removal of the
- Brindley Mound. Annual target
L | exceeded.
LPI 9 Castlefields regeneration. 100% 100% 100% See (o] See comments re Key Objective AR02
Outputs as set out in Masterplan ARO2 2
(% achieved) L]
LPI 10 Urban Renewal. Outputs as set 100% 100% 100% (o] All projects being funded through the
out in Urban Renewal Strategy & 2 Urban Renewal Strategy/NRF were
Action Plan (%) L completed on target.
LPI 14 3MG (Mersey Multimodal 100% 100% 100% See (o] See comments re Key Objective AR03
Gateway) Outputs as set out in ARO03 2
&

Masterplan (%)

APPENDIX THREE — PROGRESS AGAINST KEY INDICATORS

Major Projects

Gog obed



Actual

Target

Reference | Indicator 05/ 06 06/ 07 Quarter 4 Progress | Commentary

Service Delivery

LPI1 New retail floor space (sq ft) 10,593 8,500 8,500 [ ] Liebig Court completed

LPI 3 New private housing 20 40 60 [ ] 38 units @Liebig Court and 22 @
- Barrett’'s Halebank completed
R

LPI 4 Local business premises 31 20 21 [ ] See ARO7 above.

improved k.

]

LPI 8 EDZ Programme 100% 100% 100% [ ] Match funding secured for the Heron
- Phase 2 development.
]

Outputs as set out in ERDF offer
letter (% achieved)

APPENDIX FOUR — PROGRESS AGAINST OTHER INDICATORS

Major Projects

90¢ obed



Page 207

The traffic light symbols are used in the following manner:

Green

Red

o)

Objective

Indicates that the objective
has been achieved within

Eo%]

the appropriate timeframe.

Indicates that that the
objective has not been
achieved within the

appropriate timeframe.

Performance Indicator

Indicates that the annual
06/07 target has been
achieved or exceeded

Indicates that the annual
06/07 target has not been
achieved.

APPENDIX FIVE — EXPLANATION OF TRAFFIC LIGHT SYMBOLS
Major Projects




